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THE VIRGINIA REGISTER INFORMATION PAGE

THE VIRGINIA REGISTER OF REGULATIONS is an official state
publication issued every other week throughout the year. Indexes are
published quarterly, and are cumulative for the year. The Virginia
Register has several functions. The new and amended sections of
regulations, both as proposed and as finally adopted, are required by law
to be published in the Virginia Register. In addition, the Virginia
Register is a source of other information about state government,
including petitions for rulemaking, emergency regulations, executive
orders issued by the Governor, the Virginia Tax Bulletin issued
periodically by the Department of Taxation, and notices of public
hearings and open meetings of state agencies.

ADOPTION, AMENDMENT, AND REPEAL OF REGULATIONS
An agency wishing to adopt, amend, or repeal regulations must first
publish in the Virginia Register a notice of intended regulatory action; a
basis, purpose, substance and issues statement; an economic impact
analysis prepared by the Department of Planning and Budget; the
agency’s response to the economic impact analysis; a summary; a notice
giving the public an opportunity to comment on the proposal; and the
text of the proposed regulation.

Following publication of the proposal in the Virginia Register, the
promulgating agency receives public comments for a minimum of 60
days. The Governor reviews the proposed regulation to determine if it is
necessary to protect the public health, safety and welfare, and if it is
clearly written and easily understandable. If the Governor chooses to
comment on the proposed regulation, his comments must be transmitted
to the agency and the Registrar no later than 15 days following the
completion of the 60-day public comment period. The Governor’s
comments, if any, will be published in the Virginia Register. Not less
than 15 days following the completion of the 60-day public comment
period, the agency may adopt the proposed regulation.

The Joint Commission of Administrative Rules (JCAR) or the
appropriate standing committee of each house of the General Assembly
may meet during the promulgation or final adoption process and file an
objection with the Registrar and the promulgating agency. The objection
will be published in the Virginia Register. Within 21 days after receipt
by the agency of a legislative objection, the agency shall file a response
with the Registrar, the objecting legislative body, and the Governor.
When final action is taken, the agency again publishes the text of the
regulation as adopted, highlighting all changes made to the proposed
regulation and explaining any substantial changes made since
publication of the proposal. A 30-day final adoption period begins upon
final publication in the Virginia Register.

The Governor may review the final regulation during this time and, if he
objects, forward his objection to the Registrar and the agency. In
addition to or in lieu of filing a formal objection, the Governor may
suspend the effective date of a portion or all of a regulation until the end
of the next regular General Assembly session by issuing a directive
signed by a majority of the members of the appropriate legislative body
and the Governor. The Governor’s objection or suspension of the
regulation, or both, will be published in the Virginia Register. If the
Governor finds that changes made to the proposed regulation have
substantial impact, he may require the agency to provide an additional
30-day public comment period on the changes. Notice of the additional
public comment period required by the Governor will be published in the
Virginia Register.

The agency shall suspend the regulatory process for 30 days when it
receives requests from 25 or more individuals to solicit additional public
comment, unless the agency determines that the changes have minor or
inconsequential impact.

A regulation becomes effective at the conclusion of the 30-day final
adoption period, or at any other later date specified by the promulgating
agency, unless (i) a legislative objection has been filed, in which event
the regulation, unless withdrawn, becomes effective on the date
specified, which shall be after the expiration of the 21-day objection
period; (ii) the Governor exercises his authority to require the agency to

provide for additional public comment, in which event the regulation,
unless withdrawn, becomes effective on the date specified, which shall
be after the expiration of the period for which the Governor has provided
for additional public comment; (iii) the Governor and the General
Assembly exercise their authority to suspend the effective date of a
regulation until the end of the next regular legislative session; or (iv) the
agency suspends the regulatory process, in which event the regulation,
unless withdrawn, becomes effective on the date specified, which shall
be after the expiration of the 30-day public comment period and no
earlier than 15 days from publication of the readopted action.
Proposed regulatory action may be withdrawn by the promulgating
agency at any time before the regulation becomes final.
FAST-TRACK RULEMAKING PROCESS
Section 2.2-4012.1 of the Code of Virginia provides an exemption from
certain provisions of the Administrative Process Act for agency
regulations deemed by the Governor to be noncontroversial. To use this
process, Governor's concurrence is required and advance notice must be
provided to certain legislative committees. Fast-track regulations will
become effective on the date noted in the regulatory action if no
objections to using the process are filed in accordance with § 2.2-4012.1.
EMERGENCY REGULATIONS
If an agency demonstrates that (i) there is an immediate threat to the
public’s health or safety; or (ii) Virginia statutory law, the appropriation
act, federal law, or federal regulation requires a regulation to take effect
no later than (a) 280 days from the enactment in the case of Virginia or
federal law or the appropriation act, or (b) 280 days from the effective
date of a federal regulation, it then requests the Governor’s approval to
adopt an emergency regulation. The emergency regulation becomes
operative upon its adoption and filing with the Registrar of Regulations,
unless a later date is specified. Emergency regulations are limited to
addressing specifically defined situations and may not exceed 12 months
in duration. Emergency regulations are published as soon as possible in
the Register.
During the time the emergency status is in effect, the agency may
proceed with the adoption of permanent regulations through the usual
procedures. To begin promulgating the replacement regulation, the
agency must (i) file the Notice of Intended Regulatory Action with the
Registrar within 60 days of the effective date of the emergency
regulation and (ii) file the proposed regulation with the Registrar within
180 days of the effective date of the emergency regulation. If the agency
chooses not to adopt the regulations, the emergency status ends when the
prescribed time limit expires.
STATEMENT
The foregoing constitutes a generalized statement of the procedures to be
followed. For specific statutory language, it is suggested that Article 2
(§ 2.2-4006 et seq.) of Chapter 40 of Title 2.2 of the Code of Virginia be
examined carefully.

CITATION TO THE VIRGINIA REGISTER
The Virginia Register is cited by volume, issue, page number, and date.
23:7 VA.R. 1023-1140 December 11, 2006, refers to Volume 23, Issue
7, pages 1023 through 1140 of the Virginia Register issued on
December 11, 2006.
The Virginia Register of Regulations is published pursuant to Article 6
(§ 2.2-4031 et seq.) of Chapter 40 of Title 2.2 of the Code of Virginia.
Members of the Virginia Code Commission: R. Steven Landes,
Chairman; John S. Edwards, Vice Chairman; Ryan T. McDougle;
Robert Hurt; Robert L. Calhoun; Frank S. Ferguson; E.M. Miller,
Jr.; Thomas M. Moncure, Jr.; James F. Almand; Cleo Elaine
Powell.
Staff of the Virginia Register: Jane D. Chaffin, Registrar of Regulations;
June T. Chandler, Assistant Registrar.
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PUBLICATION SCHEDULE AND DEADLINES

This schedule is available on the Register's Internet home page (http://register.state.va.us).

Volume: Issue

24:12
24:13
24:14

INDEX 2 Volume 24

24:15
24:16
24:17
24:18
24:19
24:20

INDEX 3 Volume 24

24:21
24:22
24:23
24:24
24:25
24:26

FINAL INDEX Volume 24

25:1
25:2
25:3
25:4
25:5
25:6
25:7

*Filing deadlines are Wednesdays unless otherwise specified.

Material Submitted By Noon*

February 2008 through December 2008

Will Be Published On

January 30, 2008
February 13, 2008
February 27, 2008

March 12, 2008
March 26, 2008
April 9, 2008
April 23, 2008
May 7, 2008
May 21, 2008

June 4, 2008
June 18, 2008
July 2, 2008
July 16, 2008
July 30, 2008
August 13, 2008

August 27, 2008
September 10, 2008
September 24, 2008
October 8, 2008
October 22, 2008
November 5, 2008

November 18, 2008 (Tuesday)

February 18, 2008
March 3, 2008
March 17, 2008

April 2008

March 31, 2008
April 14, 2008
April 28, 2008
May 12, 2008
May 26, 2008
June 9, 2008

July 2008

June 23, 2008
July 7, 2008

July 21, 2008
August 4, 2008
August 18, 2008
September 1, 2008

October 2008

September 15, 2008
September 29, 2008
October 13, 2008
October 27, 2008
November 10, 2008
November 24, 2008
December 8, 2008
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CUMULATIVE TABLE OF VIRGINIA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE
SECTIONS ADOPTED, AMENDED, OR REPEALED

The table printed below lists regulation sections, by Virginia Administrative Code (VAC) title, that have been amended,
added or repealed in the Virginia Register since the regulations were originally published or last supplemented in VAC (the
Fall 2007 VAC Supplement includes final regulations published through Virginia Register Volume 23, Issue 21, dated June
25, 2007). Emergency regulations, if any, are listed, followed by the designation "emer," and errata pertaining to final
regulations are listed. Proposed regulations are not listed here. The table lists the sections in numerical order and shows
action taken, the volume, issue and page number where the section appeared, and the effective date of the section.

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
Title 1. Administration
1 VAC 55-30-10 through 1 VAC 55-30-90 Added 23:26 VA.R. 4413-4416 10/3/07
1 VAC 55-30-10 through 1 VAC 55-30-90 Erratum 24:7 VA.R. 940 --
Title 2. Agriculture
2 VAC 5-110 (Forms) Amended 23:26 VA.R. 4452 --
2 VAC 5-210-30 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1096 12/11/07
2 VAC 5-210-41 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1097 12/11/07
2 VAC 5-580-10 through 2 VAC 5-580-310 Repealed 24:2 VAR. 72 10/16/07
2 VAC 5-585-10 through 2 VAC 5-585-4070 Added 24:2 VA.R. 72-133 10/16/07
Title 3. Alcoholic Beverages
3 VAC 5-50-40 Amended 23:25 VA.R. 4107 *
3 VAC 5-50-50 Amended 23:25 VA.R. 4108 *
3 VAC 5-50-80 Amended 23:25 VA.R. 4108 *
3 VAC 5-50-100 Amended 23:25 VA.R. 4108 *
3 VAC 5-50-130 Amended 23:25 VA.R. 4109 *
3 VAC 5-50-140 Amended 23:25 VA.R. 4110 *
3 VAC 5-50-140 emer Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1344 1/9/08-1/8/09
3 VAC 5-50-145 emer Added 24:11 VA.R. 1345 1/9/08-1/8/09
3 VAC 5-70-225 emer Added 24:10 VA.R. 1257 1/2/08-1/1/09
Title 4. Conservation and Natural Resources
4 VAC 5-36-50 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 638 1/1/08
4 VAC 5-36-60 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 644 1/1/08
4 VAC 5-36-70 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 645 1/1/08
4 VAC 5-36-90 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 647 1/1/08
4 VAC 5-36-100 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 649 1/1/08
4 VAC 5-36-110 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 654 1/1/08
4 VAC 5-36-120 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 655 1/1/08
4 VAC 5-36-130 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 656 1/1/08
4 VAC 5-36-140 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 657 1/1/08
4 VAC 5-36-150 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 659 1/1/08
4 VAC 5-36-200 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 662 1/1/08
4 VAC 5-36-210 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 670 1/1/08
4 VAC 5-36-220 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 675 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-20-50 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1258 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-20-130 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1259 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-20-200 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1261 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-20-210 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1261 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-30-5 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1262 1/1/08

* Objection to Fast-Track Rulemaking 24:1
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Cumulative Table of VAC Sections Adopted, Amended, or Repealed

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE | EFFECTIVE DATE |
4 VAC 15-30-40 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1262 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-200-10 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 676 10/26/07
4 VAC 15-270-40 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 676 7/1/08
4 VAC 15-270-80 Added 24:6 VA.R. 676 10/26/07
4 VAC 15-270-90 Added 24:6 VA.R. 677 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-320-25 Amended 24:10 VAR. 1265 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-330-30 Amended 24:10 VAR. 1272 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-330-100 Amended 24:10 VAR. 1272 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-330-120 Amended 24:10 VAR. 1272 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-330-160 Amended 24:10 VAR. 1272 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-330-171 Amended 24:10 VAR. 1273 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-330-200 Amended 24:10 VAR. 1273 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-340-10 Amended 24:10 VAR. 1273 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-340-30 Amended 24:10 VAR. 1274 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-350-20 Amended 24:10 VAR. 1275 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-350-30 Amended 24:10 VAR. 1275 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-350-60 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1275 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-350-70 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1275 1/1/08
4 VAC 15-360-10 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1276 1/1/08
4 VAC 20-20-50 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 555 11/1/07
4 VAC 20-150-30 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1277 1/1/08
4 VAC 20-252-55 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1278 1/1/08
4 VAC 20-252-90 Amended 24:4 VAR. 471 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-252-100 Amended 24:4 VAR. 471 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-252-120 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1278 1/1/08
4 VAC 20-252-150 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1279 1/1/08
4 VAC 20-252-160 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1279 1/1/08
4 VAC 20-252-230 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1281 1/1/08
4 VAC 20-260-10 Amended 24:4 VAR. 472 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-260-20 Amended 24:4 VAR. 472 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-260-30 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 473 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-260-35 Added 24:4 VAR. 474 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-260-40 Amended 24:4 VAR. 474 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-260-60 Amended 24:4 VAR. 474 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-610-20 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 959 12/1/07
4 VAC 20-610-25 Added 24:8 VA.R. 959 12/1/07
4 VAC 20-610-30 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 960 12/1/07
4 VAC 20-610-50 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 961 12/1/07
4 VAC 20-610-60 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 961 12/1/07
4 VAC 20-620-30 Amended 24:10 VAR. 1281 12/27/07
4 VAC 20-620-40 emer Amended 24:8 VA.R. 962 11/28/07-12/27/07
4 VAC 20-620-40 Amended 24:10 VAR. 1282 12/27/07
4 VAC 20-650-20 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 474 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-650-30 Amended 24:4 VAR. 475 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-650-40 Amended 24:4 VAR. 475 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-720-20 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 475 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-720-20 Erratum 24:5 VA.R. 621 --
4 VAC 20-720-40 through 4 VAC 20-720-80 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 478-480 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-720-95 Added 24:4 VAR. 480 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-720-110 Amended 24:4 VA R. 480 10/1/07
4 VAC 20-755-10 Amended 24:2 VAR. 133 9/1/07
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Cumulative Table of VAC Sections Adopted, Amended, or Repealed

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE |  EFFECTIVE DATE |
4 VAC 20-755-20 Amended 24:2 VAR. 133 9/1/07
4 VAC 20-755-30 Amended 24:2 VAR. 136 9/1/07
4 VAC 20-910-45 Amended 24:5 VAR. 556 11/1/07
4 VAC 20-960-45 Amended 24:8 VA R. 964 1/1/08
4 VAC 20-960-47 Amended 24:8 VA R. 964 1/1/08
4 VAC 20-1040-20 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 964 1/1/08
4 VAC 20-1090-30 Amended 24:8 VA R. 965 12/1/07
4 VAC 20-1120-20 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3871 6/28/07
4 VAC 20-1130-10 through 4 VAC 20-1130-70 Added 24:8 VA .R. 968-970 12/1/07
4 VAC 25-20 (Forms) Amended 23:24 VA.R. 3968 --
4 VAC 25-50-10 through 4 VAC 25-50-110 Repealed 23:22 VA.R. 3696 8/8/07
4 VAC 25-130 (Forms) Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1424 --
4 VAC 25-130-777.17 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3696 8/8/07
Title 5. Corporations
5 VAC 5-20-20 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1347 2/15/08
5 VAC 5-20-140 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1347 2/15/08
5 VAC 5-20-150 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1348 2/15/08
5 VAC 5-20-170 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1348 2/15/08
5 VAC 5-20-240 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1349 2/15/08
5 VAC 5-30-10 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3872 7/1/07
5 VAC 5-30-20 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3872 7/1/07
5 VAC 5-30-30 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3873 7/1/07
5 VAC 5-30-40 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3873 7/1/07
5 VAC 5-30-50 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3874 7/1/07
5 VAC 5-30-60 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3874 7/1/07
5 VAC 5-30-70 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3875 7/1/07
Title 6. Criminal Justice and Corrections
6 VAC 15-20-10 through 6 VAC 15-20-230 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3697-3703 8/9/07
6 VAC 15-61-10 through 6 VAC 15-61-300 Repealed 24:83 VAR. 970 1/24/08
6 VAC 15-62-10 through 6 VAC 15-62-120 Added 24:8 VA.R. 970-979 1/24/08
6 VAC 20-120-40 Amended 23:25 VAR. 4177 9/19/07
6 VAC 35-20-37 emer Amended 23:25VA.R. 4178 8/1/07-7/31/08
6 VAC 35-180-10 through 6 VAC 35-180-170 Added 24:5 VAR. 557-561 1/1/08
6 VAC 35-190-10 through 6 VAC 35-190-110 Added 24:2 VAR. 137-139 10/31/07
6 VAC 40-50-10 through 6 VAC 40-50-80 emer Added 23:23 VA.R. 3876 7/1/06-12/29/07
6 VAC 40-50-10 through 6 VAC 40-50-80 Added 24:9 VAR. 1103-1104 2/6/08
Title 8. Education
8 VAC 20-21-10 through 8 VAC 20-21-730 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4179 9/21/07
8 VAC 20-22-10 through 8 VAC 20-22-760 Added 23:25 VA.R. 4179-4214 9/21/07
8 VAC 20-160-10 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3876 8/27/07
8 VAC 20-160-20 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3878 8/27/07
8 VAC 20-160-30 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3878 8/27/07
8 VAC 20-160-40 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3879 8/27/07
8 VAC 20-160-50 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3879 8/27/07
8 VAC 20-160-60 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3879 8/27/07
8 VAC 20-190-10 Repealed 24:5 VAR. 562 1/1/08
8 VAC 20-500-10 Repealed 24:5 VAR. 563 1/1/08
8 VAC 20-541-10 through 8 VAC 20-541-60 Repealed 23:25VA.R. 4214 9/21/07
8 VAC 20-542-10 through 8 VAC 20-542-600 Added 23:25 VA.R. 4214-4270 9/21/07
8 VAC 35-60-10 Added 24:1 VAR. 25 8/28/07
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Cumulative Table of VAC Sections Adopted, Amended, or Repealed

| SECTION NUMBER | ACTION | CITE |  EFFECTIVE DATE |
8 VAC 35-60-20 Added 24:1 VA.R. 25 8/28/07
8 VAC 35-60-30 Added 24:1 VA.R. 25 8/28/07
8 VAC 40-140-10 through 8 VAC 40-140-90 Added 23:22 VA.R. 3704-3706 7/1/07
Title 9. Environment
9 VAC 5-20-203 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 564 12/12/07
9 VAC 5-20-204 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 565 12/12/07
9 VAC 5-40-20 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 566 12/12/07
9 VAC 5-50-20 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 570 12/12/07
9 VAC 5-50-400 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 573 12/12/07
9 VAC 5-50-410 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 573 12/12/07
9 VAC 5-60-60 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 579 12/12/07
9 VAC 5-60-90 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 579 12/12/07
9 VAC 5-60-92 Added 24:5 VA.R. 579 12/12/07
9 VAC 5-60-95 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 579 12/12/07
9 VAC 5-60-100 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 580 12/12/07
9 VAC 5-91-20 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 587 12/12/07
9 VAC 5-140-1061 Added 24:6 VA.R. 679 12/26/07
9 VAC 5-140-1062 Added 24:6 VA.R. 680 12/26/07
9 VAC 5-140-2061 Added 24:6 VA.R. 681 12/26/07
9 VAC 5-140-2062 Added 24:6 VA.R. 682 12/26/07
9 VAC 5-140-3061 Added 24:6 VA.R. 683 12/26/07
9 VAC 5-140-3062 Added 24:6 VA.R. 683 12/26/07
9 VAC 5-140-3400 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 594 12/12/07
9 VAC 20-60-18 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1106 2/6/08
9 VAC 20-130-10 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 480 11/28/07
9 VAC 20-130-40 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 484 11/28/07
9 VAC 20-130-60 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 484 11/28/07
9 VAC 20-130-70 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 484 11/28/07
9 VAC 20-130-90 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 485 11/28/07
9 VAC 20-130-110 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 485 11/28/07
9 VAC 20-130-120 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 486 11/28/07
9 VAC 20-130-120 Erratum 24:6 VA.R. 889 --
9 VAC 20-130-125 Added 24:4 VA.R. 488 11/28/07
9 VAC 20-130-125 Erratum 24:6 VA.R. 889 --
9 VAC 20-130-130 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 489 11/28/07
9 VAC 20-130-140 Repealed 24:4 VA.R. 489 11/28/07
9 VAC 20-130-150 Repealed 24:4 VA.R. 489 11/28/07
9 VAC 20-130-165 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 489 11/28/07
9 VAC 20-130-175 through 9 VAC 20-130-230 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 490-493 11/28/07
9 VAC 20-130-200 Erratum 24:6 VA.R. 889 -
9 VAC 25-20-10 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 701 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-20-20 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 702 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-20-30 Repealed 24:6 VA.R. 702 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-20-40 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 702 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-20-50 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 703 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-20-60 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 703 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-20-90 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 704 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-20-100 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 704 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-20-110 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 705 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-20-120 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 706 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-20-130 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 708 1/1/08
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9 VAC 25-20-146 Added 24:6 VA.R. 708 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-20-147 Added 24:6 VA.R. 709 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-20-148 Added 24:6 VA.R. 709 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-20-149 Added 24:6 VA.R. 709 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-31-100 Amended 24:3VAR. 313 11/14/07
9 VAC 25-31-100 Amended 24:6 VAR. 711 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-31-120 Amended 24:3 VA.R. 309 11/14/07
9 VAC 25-31-165 Amended 24:3 VA.R. 333 11/14/07
9 VAC 25-31-220 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 731 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-31-290 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 735 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-31-460 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 738 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-31-475 Added 24:6 VA.R. 738 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-31-485 Added 24:6 VA.R. 738 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-31-505 Added 24:6 VA.R. 739 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-32 (Forms) Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1316 --

9 VAC 25-32-40 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 739 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-32-60 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 739 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-32-80 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 740 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-32-100 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 743 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-32-140 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 743 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-32-210 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 744 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-32-220 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 745 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-32-240 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 745 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-32-300 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 745 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-32-310 through 9 VAC 25-32-760 Added 24:6 VA.R. 746-781 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-120-10 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1107 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-120-20 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1107 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-120-50 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1108 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-120-60 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1108 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-120-70 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1108 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-120-80 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1109 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-196-20 Amended 24:9 VAR. 1124 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-196-40 Amended 24:9 VAR. 1124 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-196-60 Amended 24:9 VAR. 1124 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-196-70 Amended 24:9 VAR. 1125 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-210-10 Amended 24:9 VAR. 1132 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-210-60 Amended 24:9 VAR. 1136 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-210-116 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1140 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-210-130 Amended 24:9 VAR. 1142 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-260-5 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 536 8/14/07
9 VAC 25-260-30 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 139 9/11/07
9 VAC 25-260-30 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 140 9/11/07
9 VAC 25-260-30 Amended 24:7 VA.R. 908 ok

9 VAC 25-260-50 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 536 8/14/07
9 VAC 25-260-187 Added 24:4 VA.R. 536 8/14/07
9 VAC 25-260-310 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 536 8/14/07
9 VAC 25-260-480 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 536 8/14/07
9 VAC 25-660-10 Amended 24:9 VAR. 1144 2/6/08

ek
Effective upon filing notice of U.S. EPA approval with Registrar.
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9 VAC 25-660-60 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1145 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-660-70 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1147 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-660-80 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1148 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-660-100 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1148 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-670-10 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1156 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-670-70 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1157 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-670-80 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1158 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-670-100 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1159 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-680-10 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1170 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-680-60 Amended 249 VA.R. 1172 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-680-70 Amended 249 VAR. 1174 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-680-80 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1175 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-680-100 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1176 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-690-10 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1188 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-690-70 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1190 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-690-80 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1191 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-690-100 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1191 2/6/08
9 VAC 25-720-50 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3881 10/22/07
9 VAC 25-720-50 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3888 10/22/07
9 VAC 25-720-50 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3895 10/22/07
9 VAC 25-720-50 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 140 11/15/07
9 VAC 25-720-80 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3901 10/22/07
9 VAC 25-720-90 Amended 242 VAR. 147 11/15/07
9 VAC 25-790-10 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 784 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-50 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 787 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-60 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 787 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-120 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 788 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-130 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 790 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-150 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 790 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-180 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 791 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-200 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 791 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-240 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 791 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-540 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 792 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-550 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 792 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-570 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 795 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-580 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 797 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-590 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 797 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-600 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 798 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-660 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 799 1/1/08
9 VAC 25-790-880 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 799 1/1/08
Title 11. Gaming
11 VAC 10-45-10 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 595 12/12/07
11 VAC 10-45-25 Added 24:5 VA.R. 596 12/12/07
Title 12. Health
12 VAC 5-31-2300 through 12 VAC 5-31-2970 Added 24:6 VA.R. 806-818 1/1/08
12 VAC 5-40-10 through 12 VAC 5-40-190 Repealed 24:6 VA.R. 806 1/1/08
12 VAC 5-90-80 emer Amended 24:5 VA.R. 597 10/24/07-10/23/08
12 VAC 5-125-10 through 12 VAC 5-125-180 Added 23:23 VA.R. 3904-3919 9/1/07
12 VAC 5-220-10 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1350 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-220-110 Amended 24:11 VAR. 1353 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-220-130 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1354 3/5/08
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12 VAC 5-220-200 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1354 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-371-150 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1357 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-381-10 through 12VAC5-381-40 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1358-1361 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-381-60 through 12VACS5-381-100 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1361-1362 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-381-120 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1362 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-381-140 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1362 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-381-150 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1362 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-381-240 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1363 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-381-280 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1363 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-391-10 Amended 24:11 VAR. 1364 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-391-30 through 12 VAC 5-391-100 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1366-1368 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-391-120 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1368 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-391-130 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1368 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-391-150 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1369 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-391-160 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1369 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-391-250 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1370 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-391-280 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1370 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-410-230 Amended 24:11 VAR. 1371 3/5/08
12 VAC 5-421-10 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 149 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-90 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 157 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-100 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 157 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-120 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 158 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-140 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 158 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-160 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 159 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-170 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 159 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-180 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 159 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-190 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 159 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-200 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 160 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-230 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 160 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-250 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 160 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-270 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 160 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-295 Added 24:2 VA.R. 160 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-300 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 160 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-330 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 161 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-340 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 161 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-350 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 161 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-360 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 161 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-430 Amended 24:2 VAR. 162 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-440 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 162 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-450 Amended 24:2 VAR. 162 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-460 Added 24:2 VAR. 162 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-500 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 162 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-520 Amended 24:2 VAR. 163 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-530 Amended 24:2 VAR. 163 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-550 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 163 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-560 Amended 24:2 VAR. 163 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-570 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 163 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-580 Amended 24:2 VAR. 163 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-590 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 164 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-600 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 164 10/16/07
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12 VAC 5-421-620 Amended 24:2 VAR. 164 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-670 Amended 24:2 VAR. 164 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-680 Amended 24:2 VAR. 164 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-700 Amended 24:2 VAR. 164 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-720 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 166 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-760 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 166 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-765 Added 24:2 VA.R. 166 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-780 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 166 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-790 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 166 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-800 Amended 24:2 VAR. 167 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-820 Amended 24:2 VAR. 167 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-830 Amended 24:2 VAR. 167 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-840 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 169 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-850 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 169 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-860 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 170 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-870 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 170 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-880 Added 24:2 VAR. 171 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-890 Added 24:2 VAR. 171 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-900 Added 24:2 VAR. 171 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-910 Added 24:2 VAR. 171 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-920 Added 24:2 VAR. 171 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-930 Added 24:2 VAR. 171 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-940 Amended 242 VAR. 172 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-950 Amended 242 VAR. 172 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-960 Amended 24:2 VAR. 173 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-970 Amended 24:2 VAR. 173 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-990 Amended 24:2 VAR. 173 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1000 Amended 242 VAR. 173 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1010 Amended 242 VAR. 173 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1020 Amended 242 VAR. 173 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1030 Amended 24:2 VAR. 173 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1040 Amended 24:2 VAR. 173 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1070 Amended 24:2 VAR. 174 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1090 Amended 24:2 VAR. 174 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1120 Amended 24:2 VAR. 174 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1200 Amended 24:2 VAR. 174 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1260 Amended 24:2 VAR. 174 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1270 Amended 24:2 VAR. 174 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1300 Amended 24:2 VAR. 174 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1310 Amended 24:2 VAR. 174 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1320 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 175 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1330 Amended 24:2 VAR. 175 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1340 Amended 24:2 VAR. 175 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1350 Amended 24:2 VAR. 175 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1360 Amended 24:2 VAR. 175 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1370 Amended 24:2 VAR. 176 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1460 Amended 24:2 VAR. 176 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1510 Amended 24:2 VAR. 176 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1520 Amended 24:2 VAR. 176 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1530 Amended 24:2 VAR. 177 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1540 Amended 24:2 VAR. 177 10/16/07
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12 VAC 5-421-1620 Amended 24:2 VAR. 177 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1640 Amended 242 VAR. 177 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1660 Amended 242 VAR. 177 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1670 Amended 24:2 VAR. 178 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1680 Amended 24:2 VAR. 178 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1690 Amended 24:2 VAR. 178 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1700 Amended 24:2 VAR. 178 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1710 Amended 24:2 VAR. 179 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1720 Amended 24:2 VAR. 179 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1730 Amended 24:2 VAR. 179 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1750 Amended 24:2 VAR. 179 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1760 Amended 24:2 VAR. 179 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1780 Amended 24:2 VAR. 179 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1810 Amended 24:2 VAR. 180 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1820 Amended 24:2 VAR. 180 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1880 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 180 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1890 Amended 24:2 VAR. 180 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1900 Amended 24:2 VAR. 180 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-1960 Amended 24:2 VAR, 181 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2010 Amended 24:2 VAR. 181 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2080 Amended 24:2 VAR. 181 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2190 Amended 24:2 VAR, 181 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2200 Amended 24:2 VAR. 181 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2210 Amended 24:2 VAR. 181 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2270 Amended 24:2 VAR. 181 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2310 Amended 24:2 VAR. 182 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2320 Amended 24:2 VAR. 182 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2520 Amended 24:2 VAR. 182 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2630 Amended 24:2 VAR. 182 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2680 Amended 24:2 VAR. 182 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2710 Amended 24:2 VAR. 182 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2790 Amended 24:2 VAR. 182 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2810 Amended 24:2 VAR. 182 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2820 Amended 24:2 VAR. 183 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2840 Amended 24:2 VAR. 183 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2850 Amended 24:2 VAR. 183 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2870 Amended 24:2 VAR. 183 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2880 Amended 24:2 VAR. 183 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2930 Amended 24:2 VAR. 183 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-2990 Amended 24:2 VAR. 184 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3040 Amended 24:2 VAR. 184 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3120 Amended 24:2 VAR. 184 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3200 Amended 24:2 VAR. 184 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3210 Amended 24:2 VAR. 184 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3230 Amended 24:2 VAR. 184 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3310 Amended 24:2 VAR. 184 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3370 Amended 24:2 VAR, 185 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3380 Amended 24:2 VAR, 185 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3450 Amended 24:2 VAR. 185 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3510 Amended 24:2 VAR, 185 10/16/07
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12 VAC 5-421-3560 Amended 24:2 VAR. 185 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3580 Amended 24:2 VAR. 185 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3590 Amended 24:2 VAR. 186 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3620 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 186 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3660 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 186 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3700 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 186 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3750 Amended 24:2 VAR. 187 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3760 Amended 24:2 VAR. 188 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3800 Amended 24:2 VAR. 188 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3815 Added 24:2 VA.R. 188 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3860 Amended 24:2 VAR. 188 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3900 Amended 24:2 VAR. 188 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3960 Amended 24:2 VAR. 189 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-3970 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 189 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-4000 Amended 24:2 VAR. 189 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-4035 Added 24:2 VA.R. 190 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-4050 Amended 24:2 VAR. 191 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-421-4070 Amended 24:2 VAR. 191 10/16/07
12 VAC 5-585-70 Amended 24:5 VAR. 602 12/17/07
12 VAC 5-585-510 Amended 24:5 VAR. 602 12/17/07
12 VAC 5-585-600 Amended 24:5 VA.R. 607 12/17/07
12 VAC 5-585-610 Amended 24:5 VAR. 607 12/17/07
12 VAC 5-585-620 Amended 24:5 VAR. 612 12/17/07
12 VAC 5-585-630 Amended 24:5 VAR. 614 12/17/07
12 VAC 5-585-760 through 12 VAC 5-585-830 Added 23:25 VA.R. 4298-4301 10/1/07
12 VAC 30-10-820 Added 24:2 VAR. 191 10/31/07
12 VAC 30-60-500 emer Added 23:26 VA.R. 4427 8/8/07-8/7/08
12 VAC 30-80-40 emer Amended 24:3 VAR. 377 10/1/07-9/30/08
12 VAC 30-120 Erratum 23:24 VA.R. 4080 -
12 VAC 30-120-370 emer Amended 23:24 VA.R. 4029 9/1/07-8/31/08
12 VAC 30-120-380 emer Amended 23:24 VAR. 4032 9/1/07-8/31/08
12 VAC 30-120-1500 through 12 VAC 30-120-1550  Added 24:6 VA.R. 819-829 12/26/07
12 VAC 30-135-100 through 12 VAC 30-135-360 Added 24:2 VA.R. 196-218 12/1/07
12 VAC 35-105-115 Added 24:11 VAR. 1372 3/5/08
12 VAC 35-115-10 through 12 VAC 35-115-250 Amended 23:25 VAR. 4301-4340 9/19/07
12 VAC 35-115-90 Erratum 24:6 VA.R. 889 -
12 VAC 35-115-145 Added 23:25 VAR. 4329 9/19/07
12 VAC 35-115-146 Added 23:25 VAR. 4330 9/19/07
12 VAC 35-115-160 Repealed 23:25 VAR. 4332 9/19/07
Title 13. Housing
13 VAC 5-31 Erratum 23:24 VAR. 4079 -
13 VAC 591 Erratum 23:24 VAR. 4080 -
13 VAC 5-112-340 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 979 1/23/08
13 VAC 10-40-20 Amended 24:7 VAR. 911 11/13/07
13 VAC 10-40-60 Amended 24:7 VAR. 914 11/13/07
13 VAC 10-40-80 Amended 24:7 VAR. 915 11/13/07
13 VAC 10-40-100 Amended 24:7 VAR. 916 11/13/07
13 VAC 10-40-110 Amended 24:7 VAR. 917 11/13/07
13 VAC 10-40-120 Amended 24:7 VAR. 917 11/13/07
13 VAC 10-40-130 Amended 24:7 VAR. 917 11/13/07
13 VAC 10-40-170 Amended 24:7 VA.R. 920 11/13/07
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13 VAC 10-40-190 Amended 24:7 VA.R. 920 11/13/07
13 VAC 10-40-210 Amended 24:7 VAR. 921 11/13/07
13 VAC 10-40-230 Amended 24:7 VAR. 921 11/13/07
13 VAC 10-180-10 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1373 2/4/08
13 VAC 10-180-50 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1374 2/4/08
13 VAC 10-180-60 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1376 2/4/08
13 VAC 10-180-60 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1387 2/4/08
13 VAC 10-180-100 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1397 2/4/08
Title 14. Insurance
14 VAC 5-215-20 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3768 7/1/07
14 VAC 5-215-30 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3768 7/1/07
14 VAC 5-215-50 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3769 7/1/07
14 VAC 5-215-60 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3770 7/1/07
14 VAC 5-215-80 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3770 7/1/07
14 VAC 5-420-10 through 14 VAC 5-420-60 Added 24:7 VA.R. 926-931 2/15/08
Title 16. Labor and Employment
16 VAC 15-21-30 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3933 8/23/07
16 VAC 25-90-1910.6 Amended 24:1 VA.R. 26 12/15/07
16 VAC 25-90-1910.66 Appendix D Amended 24:1 VA.R. 26 12/15/07
16 VAC 25-90-1910.302 through 16 VAC 25-90- Amended 24:1 VA.R. 26 12/15/07
1910.308
16 VAC 25-90-1910.399 Subpart S Appendix A Amended 24:1 VA.R. 26 12/15/07
Title 18. Professional and Occupational Licensing
18 VAC 30-20-80 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1284 2/20/08
18 VAC 30-20-170 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1284 2/20/08
18 VAC 30-20-171 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1285 2/20/08
18 VAC 41-70-10 through 18 VAC 41-70-280 Added 23:25 VA.R. 4349-4359 9/20/07
18 VAC 50-30-10 Amended 24:3 VAR. 416 11/15/07
18 VAC 50-30-40 Amended 24:3 VAR. 418 11/15/07
18 VAC 50-30-90 Amended 24:3 VAR. 419 11/15/07
18 VAC 50-30-100 Amended 24:3 VAR. 419 11/15/07
18 VAC 50-30-120 Amended 24:3 VAR. 419 11/15/07
18 VAC 50-30-130 Amended 24:3 VAR. 420 11/15/07
18 VAC 50-30-190 Amended 24:3 VAR. 421 11/15/07
18 VAC 50-30-200 Amended 24:3 VAR. 422 11/15/07
18 VAC 50-30-220 Amended 24:3 VAR. 422 11/15/07
18 VAC 60-20-17 Amended 24:3 VAR. 424 11/29/07
18 VAC 60-20-71 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3934 8/22/07
18 VAC 60-20-220 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1287 3/10/08
18 VAC 65-10-10 through 18 VAC 65-10-80 Amended 24:2 VAR. 226-228 11/15/07
18 VAC 65-10-100 Amended 24:2 VAR. 228 11/15/07
18 VAC 65-10-110 Amended 24:2 VAR. 228 11/15/07
18 VAC 65-10-120 Amended 24:2 VAR. 228 11/15/07
18 VAC 85-20-22 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1404 3/5/08
18 VAC 85-20-140 Amended 24:1 VAR. 27 10/17/07
18 VAC 85-20-226 Added 24:11 VA.R. 1404 3/5/08
18 VAC 85-20-235 Amended 23:25 VA.R. 4360 9/20/07
18 VAC 85-20-235 Amended 23:25 VA.R. 4361 9/20/07
18 VAC 85-20-290 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3934 8/22/07
18 VAC 85-20-400 through 18 VAC 85-20-420 Adding 23:25 VA.R. 4362-4363 9/20/07
18 VAC 85-40-35 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1404 3/5/08
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18 VAC 85-40-61 Amended 24:1 VA.R. 28 10/17/07
18 VAC 85-40-61 Amended 24:1 VA.R. 29 10/18/07
18 VAC 85-40-65 Amended 24:1 VA.R. 28 10/17/07
18 VAC 85-40-67 Added 24:11 VA.R. 1405 3/5/08
18 VAC 85-50-35 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1405 3/5/08
18 VAC 85-50-58 Amended 24:1 VA.R. 29 10/18/07
18 VAC 85-50-61 Added 24:11 VA.R. 1405 3/5/08
18 VAC 85-80-26 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1406 3/5/08
18 VAC 85-80-72 Amended 24:1 VA.R. 29 10/18/07
18 VAC 85-80-73 Added 24:11 VA.R. 1406 3/5/08
18 VAC 85-101-25 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1406 3/5/08
18 VAC 85-101-152 Amended 24:1 VA.R. 30 10/18/07
18 VAC 85-101-153 Added 24:11 VA.R. 1407 3/5/08
18 VAC 85-110-35 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1407 3/5/08
18 VAC 85-110-155 Amended 24:1 VA.R. 30 10/18/07
18 VAC 85-110-161 Added 24:11 VA.R. 1407 3/5/08
18 VAC 85-120-130 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 229 10/31/07
18 VAC 90-20-30 Amended 23:25 VA.R. 4363 10/1/07
18 VAC 90-20-225 Added 23:25 VA.R. 4364 10/1/07
18 VAC 90-30-10 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1288 2/20/08
18 VAC 90-30-120 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1288 2/20/08
18 VAC 90-30-121 Added 24:10 VA.R. 1289 2/20/08
18 VAC 90-30-240 Added 24:3 VA.R. 427 11/29/07
18 VAC 90-40-100 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 831 1/11/08
18 VAC 90-60-100 Amended 24:3 VA.R. 429 11/29/07
18 VAC 95-10-10 through 18 VAC 95-10-80 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 231-232 11/15/07
18 VAC 95-10-100 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 232 11/15/07
18 VAC 95-10-110 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 232 11/15/07
18 VAC 95-10-120 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 232 11/15/07
18 VAC 95-30-10 through 18 VAC 95-30-210 Added 24:6 VA.R. 832-837 1/2/08
18 VAC 105-20-10 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3791 9/24/07
18 VAC 110-20-10 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 983 1/23/08
18 VAC 110-20-180 Erratum 24:3 VA.R. 444 --
18 VAC 110-20-321 Added 24:8 VA.R. 986 1/23/08
18 VAC 110-20-411 through 18 VAC 110-20-416 Repealed 24:8 VA.R. 986-987 1/23/08
18 VAC 110-30-15 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1290 2/20/08
18 VAC 110-40-10 through 18 VAC 110-40-50 Amended 24:3 VA.R. 430-431 11/14/07
18 VAC 110-50-10 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1290 2/20/08
18 VAC 110-50-160 Added 24:10 VA.R. 1291 2/20/08
18 VAC 110-50-170 Added 24:10 VA.R. 1291 2/20/08
18 VAC 110-50-180 Added 24:10 VA.R. 1292 2/20/08
18 VAC 110-50-190 Added 24:10 VA.R. 1292 2/20/08
18 VAC 112-20-81 emer Added 24:4 VAR. 497 11/1/07-10/31/08
18 VAC 112-20-90 emer Amended 24:4 VA.R. 497 11/1/07-10/31/08
18 VAC 112-20-130 emer Amended 24:4 VA.R. 498 11/1/07-10/31/08
18 VAC 112-20-131 emer Amended 24:4 VA.R. 498 11/1/07-10/31/08
18 VAC 112-20-150 emer Amended 24:4 VA.R. 499 11/1/07-10/31/08
18 VAC 120-40-10 Amended 23:24 VA.R. 4038 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-15 Added 23:24 VA.R. 4039 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-20 Amended 23:24 VA.R. 4039 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-60 Repealed 24:3 VA.R. 433 12/29/07
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18 VAC 120-40-80 through 18 VAC 120-40-360 Amended 23:24 VA.R. 4040-4052 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-221 Added 23:24 VA.R. 4043 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-222 Added 23:24 VA.R. 4043 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-295 Added 23:24 VA.R. 4048 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-342 Added 23:24 VA.R. 4050 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-370 Repealed 23:24 VA R. 4052 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-380 Repealed 23:24 VA R. 4052 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-385 Added 23:24 VAR. 4052 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-390 Amended 23:24 VA.R. 4053 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-400 Repealed 23:24 VA.R. 4053 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-410 Amended 23:24 VA.R. 4053 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-411 Added 23:24 VA.R. 4053 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-411.1 through 18 VAC 120-40-411.21 Added 23:24 VA.R. 4054-4064 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-415 Added 23:24 VA.R. 4064 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-415.1 Added 23:24 VA.R. 4065 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-415.2 Added 23:24 VA.R. 4065 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-415.3 Added 23:24 VA.R. 4065 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-420 Amended 23:24 VA.R. 4066 9/5/07
18 VAC 120-40-430 Amended 23:24 VA.R. 4066 9/5/07
18 VAC 130-20-10 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 838 1/1/08
18 VAC 130-20-30 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 842 1/1/08
18 VAC 130-20-60 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 843 1/1/08
18 VAC 130-20-110 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 844 1/1/08
18 VAC 130-20-170 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 844 1/1/08
18 VAC 130-20-180 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 844 1/1/08
18 VAC 130-20-210 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 846 1/1/08
18 VAC 130-20-220 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 847 1/1/08
18 VAC 130-20-230 Amended 24:6 VA.R. 847 1/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-10 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1408 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-30 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1409 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-60 Amended 24:11 VAR. 1410 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-100 Amended 24:11 VAR. 1410 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-101 Added 24:11 VAR. 1412 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-105 Amended 24:11 VAR. 1413 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-160 Amended 24:11 VAR. 1413 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-170 Amended 24:11 VAR. 1414 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-180 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1414 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-190 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1416 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-210 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1417 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-220 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1417 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-280 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1417 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-300 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1418 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-345 Added 24:11 VA.R. 1418 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-360 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1419 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-370 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1419 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-20-390 Amended 24:11 VA.R. 1420 4/1/08
18 VAC 135-30 (Forms) Amended 24:1 VA.R. 41 --
18 VAC 135-40 (Forms) Amended 24:1 VA.R. 43 --
18 VAC 135-50-10 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3794 9/22/07
18 VAC 135-50-20 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3795 9/22/07
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18 VAC 135-50-220 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3795 9/22/07
18 VAC 135-50-400 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3795 9/22/07
18 VAC 135-60-60 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1230 3/1/08
18 VAC 150-10-10 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3937 10/7/07
18 VAC 150-10-20 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3937 10/7/07
18 VAC 150-10-30 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3937 10/7/07
18 VAC 150-10-40 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3938 10/7/07
18 VAC 150-10-50 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3938 10/7/07
18 VAC 150-10-60 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3938 10/7/07
18 VAC 150-10-70 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3938 10/7/07
18 VAC 150-10-80 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3938 10/7/07
18 VAC 150-10-100 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3939 10/7/07
18 VAC 150-10-110 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3939 10/7/07
18 VAC 150-10-120 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3939 10/7/07
18 VAC 150-20-30 Amended 24:3 VA.R. 436 11/29/07
18 VAC 150-20-100 Amended 24:3 VA.R. 436 11/29/07
18 VAC 150-20-140 Amended 24:3 VA.R. 437 11/29/07
18 VAC 150-20-220 Added 24:3 VA.R. 438 11/29/07
18 VAC 150-20-230 Added 24:3 VA.R. 438 11/29/07
18 VAC 150-20-240 Added 24:3 VA.R. 438 11/29/07
Title 19. Public Safety
19 VAC 30-20-115 Added 24:11 VA.R. 1421 3/6/08
19 VAC 30-70-6 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 988 3/1/08
19 VAC 30-70-7 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 988 3/1/08
19 VAC 30-70-9 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 989 3/1/08
19 VAC 30-70-10 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 991 3/1/08
19 VAC 30-70-40 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 994 3/1/08
19 VAC 30-70-50 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 995 3/1/08
19 VAC 30-70-60 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 997 3/1/08
19 VAC 30-70-80 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 998 3/1/08
19 VAC 30-70-90 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 1001 3/1/08
19 VAC 30-70-110 through 19 VAC 30-70-660 Amended 24:8 VA.R. 1001-1070 3/1/08
19 VAC 30-170-15 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 233 10/1/07
19 VAC 30-170-50 Amended 24:2 VA.R. 233 10/1/07
19 VAC 30-190-10 through 19 VAC 30-190-140 Added 24:11 VA.R. 1421-1423 3/6/08
Title 20. Public Utilities and Telecommunications
20 VAC 5-417-10 Amended 24:4 VAR. 513 10/9/07
20 VAC 5-417-50 Amended 24:4 VAR. 513 10/9/07
Title 21. Securities and Retail Franchising
21 VAC 5-10-40 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3940 7/1/07
21 VAC 5-20-65 Added 23:23 VA.R. 3942 7/1/07
21 VAC 5-20-95 Added 23:23 VA.R. 3942 7/1/07
21 VAC 5-20-280 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3943 7/1/07
21 VAC 5-20-330 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3947 7/1/07
21 VAC 5-80-65 Added 23:23 VA.R. 3949 7/1/07
21 VAC 5-80-160 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3950 7/1/07
21 VAC 5-80-200 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3954 7/1/07
21 VAC 5-110 Erratum 23:24 VA.R. 4079 --
21 VAC 5-110-65 Added 23:23 VA.R. 3959 7/1/07
21 VAC 5-110-75 Added 23:23 VA.R. 3960 7/1/07

Title 22. Social Services
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22 VAC 15-30-310 Amended 24:10 VA.R. 1295 3/6/08
22 VAC 40-35-10 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3962 9/1/07
22 VAC 40-35-80 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3965 9/1/07
22 VAC 40-35-90 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3965 9/1/07
22 VAC 40-35-100 Amended 23:23 VA.R. 3966 9/1/07
22 VAC 40-41-10 through 22 VAC 40-41-50 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3796-3799 9/1/07
22 VAC 40-41-55 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3799 9/1/07
22 VAC 40-41-60 Amended 23:22 VA.R. 3799 9/1/07
22 VAC 40-72-55 Added 24:5 VA.R. 616 12/12/07
22 VAC 40-72-367 Added 24:5 VA.R. 616 12/12/07
22 VAC 40-72-930 Amended 24:1 VA.R. 38 11/1/07
22 VAC 40-72-960 Amended 24:1 VA.R. 39 11/1/07
22 VAC 40-375-10 through 22 VAC 40-375-60 Repealed 24:5VA.R. 616 12/12/07
22 VAC 40-470-10 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1231 2/6/08
22 VAC 40-685-30 Amended 24:9 VA.R. 1231 2/6/08
22 VAC 40-770-10 through 22 VAC 40-770-160 Repealed 24:2 VA.R. 234 11/1/07
22 VAC 40-771-10 through 22 VAC 40-771-160 Added 24:2 VA.R. 234-242 11/1/07
22 VAC 42-10-10 through 22 VAC 42-10-1000 Repealed 24:6 VA.R. 849 12/28/07
22 VAC 42-11-10 through 22 VAC 42-11-1090 Added 24:6 VA.R. 850-885 12/28/07
Title 23. Taxation
23 VAC 10-210-485 Amended 23:24 VA.R. 4069 9/6/07
23 VAC 10-210-693 emer Amended 23:25 VA.R. 4364 7/26/07-07/25/08
23 VAC 10-210-6041 Amended 23:24 VA.R. 4068 9/6/07
23 VAC 10-210-6042 Amended 23:24 VA.R. 4069 9/6/07
23 VAC 10-210-6043 Amended 23:24 VA.R. 4069 9/6/07
23 VAC 10-240-20 through 23 VAC 10-240-60 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4372-4373 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-100 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4373 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-130 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4373 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-140 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4373 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-150 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4373 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-200 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4373 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-210 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4373 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-240 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4373 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-270 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4373 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-280 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4373 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-300 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4374 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-310 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4374 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-330 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4374 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-340 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4374 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-360 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4374 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-380 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4374 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-400 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4375 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-420 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4375 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-430 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4375 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-450 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4375 10/04/07
23 VAC 10-240-460 Repealed 23:25 VA.R. 4375 10/04/07
Title 24. Transportation and Motor Vehicles
24 VAC 20-120-10 through 24 VAC 20-120-180 Repealed 24:4 VAR. 516 1/1/08
24 VAC 20-121-10 through 24 VAC 20-121-220 Adding 24:4 VA.R. 516-529 1/1/08
24 VAC 22-20-10 Amended 24:3 VA.R. 439 12/1/07
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24 VAC 22-20-20 Amended 24:3 VA.R. 440 12/1/07
24 VAC 27-10-10 through 24 VAC 27-10-120 Added 23:24 VA.R. 4071-4075 9/20/07
24 VAC 30-45-10 Added 24:2 VAR. 243 10/1/07
24 VAC 30-45-20 Added 24:2 VA.R. 243 10/1/07
24 VAC 30-45-30 Added 24:2 VA.R. 244 10/1/07
24 VAC 30-200-10 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 529 11/28/07
24 VAC 30-200-20 Amended 24:4 VA.R. 530 11/28/07
24 VAC 30-200-30 Amended 24:4 VAR. 531 11/28/07
24 VAC 30-200-35 Added 24:4 VAR. 532 11/28/07
24 VAC 30-200-40 Amended 24:4 VAR. 533 11/28/07
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PETITIONS FOR RULEMAKING

TITLE 18. PROFESSIONAL AND
OCCUPATIONAL LICENSING

BOARDS OF NURSING AND MEDICINE

Initial Agency Notice

Titles of Regulations: 18VAC90-30. Regulations Governing
the Licensure of Nurse Practitioners.

18VAC 90-40. Regulations for Prescriptive Authority for
Licensed Nurse Practitioners.

Statutory Authority: §§54.1-2400 and 54.1-2957.01 of the
Code of Virginia.

Name of Petitioner: Aida Faline Johnson and Donald E.
Johnson.

Nature of Petitioner's Request: To amend regulations to
modify the definition of a "licensed physician"; remove all
requirements for nurse practitioners to develop and sign
practice agreements with physicians; require a nurse
practitioner to work for at least two years as a RN in a
hospital or medical facility.

Agency's Plan for Disposition of Request: The board will
publish the petition for rulemaking and request comment for
21 days, after which the request for amendments will be
considered by the Committee of the Joints Boards of Nursing
and Medicine for a recommendation on action by the boards.

Comments may be submitted until March 10, 2008.

Agency Contact: Jay P. Douglas, Executive Director, Board
of Nursing, 9960 Mayland Drive, Richmond, VA 23233-
1463, telephone (804) 367-4515, FAX (804) 527-4455, or
email jay.douglas@dhp.virginia.gov.

VA.R. Doc. No. R08-07; Filed January 22, 2008, 10:59 a.m.
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REGULATIONS

For information concerning the different types of regulations, see the Information Page.

Symbol Key
Roman type indicates existing text of regulations. Underscored language indicates proposed new text.
Language that has been stricken indicates proposed text for deletion. Brackets are used in final regulations to indicate changes from the
proposed regulation.

TITLE 4. CONSERVATION AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

MARINE RESOURCES COMMISSION

REGISTRAR’S NOTICE: The following regulations filed by
the Marine Resources Commission are exempt from the
Administrative Process Act in accordance with §2.2-4006 A
12 of the Code of Virginia; however, the commission is
required to publish the full text of final regulations.

Final Regulation

Title of Regulation: 4VAC20-320. Pertaining to the Taking
of Black Drum (amending 4VAC20-320-50).

Statutory Authority: §28.2-201 of the Code of Virginia.
Effective Date: February 1, 2008.

Agency Contact: Brandy L. Battle, Agency Regulatory
Coordinator, Marine Resources Commission, 2600
Washington Avenue, 3rd Floor, Newport News, VA 23607,
telephone (757) 247-2248, FAX (757) 247-2002, or email
brandy.battle@mrc.virginia.gov.

Summary:

This amendment allows the use of fish gill nets less than
five inches in stretched mesh in the special management
area.

4V AC?20-320-50.
restrictions.

Special  management  area/time

A. It shall be unlawful for any person to place, set, or fish
gill nets or trotlines from 7 a.m. to 8:30 p.m. of each day for
the period of May 1 to June 7, dates inclusive, in the
southeastern portion of the Chesapeake Bay in the area
bounded by a line drawn from the Cape Charles Jetty to the
36A Buoy to the RN-28 Buoy, then south along the Baltimore
Channel to the Fourth Island of the Chesapeake Bay Bridge
Tunnel, then north along Chesapeake Bay Bridge Tunnel to
Fisherman's Island then north along the coast, returning to the
Cape Charles Jetty, except as described in subsection B of
this section.

B. It shall be lawful to place, set, or fish gill nets less than

five inches in stretched mesh in the special management area
as described in subsection A of this section.

VA.R. Doc. No. R08-1137; Filed January 28, 2008, 3:20 p.m.

Final Regulation

Title of Regulation: 4VAC20-530. Pertaining to American
Shad (amending 4VAC20-530-20; repealing 4VAC20-530-
32).

Statutory Authority: §28.2-201 of the Code of Virginia.
Effective Date: February 1, 2008.

Agency Contact: Brandy L. Battle, Agency Regulatory
Coordinator, Marine Resources Commission, 2600
Washington Avenue, 3rd Floor, Newport News, VA 23607,
telephone (757) 247-2248, FAX (757) 247-2002, or email
brandy.battle@mrc.virginia.gov.

Summary:

The amendment repeals the section of the regulation
pertaining to the Spawning Reaches Bycatch Area fishery.

4V AC20-530-20. Definition.

The following words and terms when used in this chapter
shall have the following meanings unless the context clearly
indicates otherwise.

"Bycatch area" means those tidal waters of (i) the James
River, from the James River Bridge upstream to a line
connecting Dancing Point and New Sunken Meadow Creek;
(i1) the York River, from the George P. Coleman Bridge
upstream to the Rt. 33 Eltham and Lord Delaware bridges at
West Point; and (iii) the Rappahannock River, from the
Norris Bridge upstream to the Rt. 360 Downing Bridge at
Tappahannock.

"Chesapeake Bay" means all Virginia tidal waters west of
the Colregs Demarcation Line that connect the Cape Henry
Lighthouse in Virginia Beach to the Cape Charles Lighthouse
on Smith Island.

"Coastal area" means all Virginia tidal waters east of the
Colregs Demarcation Line that connect the Cape Henry
Lighthouse in Virginia Beach to the Cape Charles Lighthouse
on Smith Island.

" M "
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Regulations

VA.R. Doc. No. R08-1102; Filed January 28, 2008, 3:12 p.m.

Final Regulation

Title of Regulation: 4VAC20-720. Pertaining to
Restrictions on Oyster Harvest (amending 4VAC20-720-
40, 4VAC20-720-50, 4VAC20-720-60, 4VAC20-720-80).

Statutory Authority: §28.2-201 of the Code of Virginia.
Effective Date: February 1, 2008.

Agency Contact: Brandy L. Battle, Agency Regulatory
Coordinator, Marine  Resources Commission, 2600
Washington Avenue, 3rd Floor, Newport News, VA 23607,
telephone (757) 247-2248, FAX (757) 247-2002, or email
brandy.battle@mrc.virginia.gov.

Summary:

These amendments (i) reopen the James River Hand
Scrape Area and Thomas Rock Hand Scrape Area (James
River) from February 1, 2008, through March 31, 2008,
and (ii) close the James River Hand Scrape Area and the
Thomas Rock Hand Scrape Area (James River) from
January 1, 2008, through January 31, 2008, and April 1,
2008, through September 30, 2008.

4VAC20-720-40. Open season and areas.

The lawful seasons and areas for the harvest of oysters from
the public oyster grounds and unassigned grounds are as
follows:

1. James River Seed Area, including the Deep Water Shoal
State Replenishment Seed Area: October 1, 2007, through
April 30, 2008.

2. Seaside of Eastern Shore: for clean cull oysters only,
October 1, 2007, through January 31, 2008.

3. The following areas shall be opened from October 1,
2007, through December 31, 2007: the Rappahannock
River Areas 8 and 9; the Nomini River Hand Scrape Area;
the James River Hand Serape-Area: the Upper Chesapeake
Bay (Blackberry Hangs Hand Scrape Area); the York
River Hand Scrape Area; and Deep Rock Patent Tong Area
(Lower Chesapeake Bay):—and—the—ThemasReekHand
Serape-Area-(JamesRiver).

4. The Rappahannock River Rotation Areas 1 and 6:
October 1, 2007, through November 30, 2007.
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5. Tangier - Pocomoke Sounds Rotation Area 1: December
1, 2007, through February 28 29, 2008.

6. The James River Hand Scrape Area and the Thomas
Rock Hand Scrape Area (James River): October 1, 2007,
through December 31, 2007, and February 1, 2008,
through March 31, 2008.

4VVAC20-720-50. Closed harvest season and areas.

It shall be unlawful for any person to harvest oysters from
the following areas during the specified periods:

1. All public oyster grounds and unassigned grounds in the
Chesapeake Bay and its tributaries, including the
tributaries of the Potomac River, except those areas listed
in 4VAC20-720-40, are closed: October 1, 2007, through
September 30, 2008.

2. James River Seed Area, including the Deep Water Shoal
State Replenishment Seed Area: May 1, 2008, through
September 30, 2008.

3. All public oyster grounds and unassigned grounds on the
Seaside of Eastern Shore: for clean cull oysters, February
1, 2008, through September 30, 2008, and for seed oysters,
all year.

4. The following areas shall be closed from January 1,
2008, through September 30, 2008: Rappahannock River
Areas 8 and 9; the Nomini River Hand Scrape Area; the

JamesRiver Hand Serape-Area: Deep Rock Patent Tong
Area (Lower Chesapeake Bay); the—ThemasReckHand

Serape-Area(JamesRiver)-and the Upper Chesapeake Bay
(Blackberry Hangs Hand Scrape Area ); and the York
River Hand Scrape Area.

5. The Rappahannock River Rotation Areas 1 and 6:
December 1, 2007, through September 30, 2008.

6. Tangier - Pocomoke Sounds Rotation Area 1: October 1,
2007, through November 30, 2007, and March 1, 2008,
through September 30, 2008.

7. The James River Hand Scrape Area and the Thomas
Rock Hand Scrape Area (James River): January 1, 2008,
through January 31, 2008, and April 1, 2008, through
September 30, 2008.

4VAC20-720-60. Day and time limit.

A. It shall be unlawful to take, catch or possess oysters on
Saturday and Sunday from the public oyster grounds or
unassigned grounds in the waters of the Commonwealth of
Virginia, except that this provision shall not apply to any
person harvesting no more than one bushel per day by hand
or ordinary tong for household use only during the season
when the public oyster grounds or unassigned grounds are
legally open for harvest. The presence of any gear normally
associated with the harvesting of oysters on board the boat or

other vehicle used during any harvesting under this exception
shall be prima facie evidence of violation of this chapter.

B. It shall be unlawful for any person to harvest or attempt
to harvest oysters prior to sunrise or after 2 p.m. from the
areas described in subdivisions 1, 3 and, 5, and 6 of 4VAC20-
720-40, except as described in 4VAC20-720-105.

C. It shall be unlawful for any person to harvest or attempt
to harvest oysters in the Rappahannock River Rotation Areas
1 and 6 prior to 7 a.m. and after 1 p.m.

D. It shall be unlawful for a boat with an oyster dredge
aboard to leave the dock until one hour before sunrise or
return to the dock after sunset.

E. It shall be unlawful for a boat with a hand scrape aboard
to leave the dock until one-half hour before sunrise or return
to the dock after sunset.

4VAC20-720-80. Quotas and harvest limits.

A. In the James River Seed Area, including the Deep Water
Shoal State Replenishment Seed Area, there shall be an oyster
harvest quota of 80,000 bushels of seed oysters. It shall be
unlawful for any person to harvest seed oysters from the
James River Seed Area after the 80,000 bushel quota has been
reached. In the James River Seed Area, including the Deep
Water Shoal State Replenishment Seed Area, there shall be an
oyster harvest quota of 15,000 bushels of clean cull oysters. It
shall be unlawful for any person to harvest clean cull oysters
from the James River Seed Area, including the Deep Water
Shoal State Replenishment Seed Area, after the 15,000 bushel
quota has been reached.

B. The lawful daily limit of clean cull oysters harvested
from the areas as described in subdivisions 3 and, 4, and 6 of
4VAC20-720-40 shall be determined by the number of
registered commercial fishermen licensees on board the
vessel multiplied by eight bushels. It shall be unlawful to
possess on board any vessel or to land more than the daily
limit of clean cull oysters.

C. In the Tangier - Pocomoke Sounds Rotation Area 1,
where harvesting is allowed by dredge, there shall be a
harvest limit of eight bushels per registered commercial
fisherman licensee on board the vessel. It shall be unlawful
for any registered commercial fisherman licensee to possess
more than eight bushels per day. No blue crab bycatch is
allowed. It shall be unlawful to possess on board any vessel
more than 250 hard clams.

D. Harvesters who export the oysters to an out-of-state
market or do not sell the oysters to a licensed and Department
of Health certified Virginia buyer but sell the oysters directly
to the public for human consumption shall report oysters
harvested on a daily basis and pay oyster taxes weekly.

VA.R. Doc. No. R08-1135; Filed January 28, 2008, 3:17 p.m.
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Final Regulation

Title of Regulation: 4VAC20-1040. Pertaining to Crabbing
Licenses (adding 4VAC20-1040-35).

Statutory Authority: §28.2-201 of the Code of Virginia.
Effective Date: February 1, 2008.

Agency Contact: Brandy L. Battle, Agency Regulatory
Coordinator, Marine Resources Commission, 2600
Washington Avenue, 3rd Floor, Newport News, VA 23607,
telephone (757) 247-2248, FAX (757) 247-2002, or email
brandy.battle@mrc.virginia.gov.

Summary:

This amendment establishes December 17, 2007, as the
control date for management of all blue crab fisheries in
Virginia.

4VAC20-1040-35. Control date.

The commission hereby establishes December 17, 2007, as
the control date for management of all blue crab fisheries in

Virginia. Participation by any individual in a crab fishery
after the control date will not be considered in the calculation
or distribution of crabbing rights should further entry
limitations be established. Any individual entering the crab
fishery after the control date will have no right to future
participation in the crab fishery should further entry
limitations be established.

VA.R. Doc. No. R08-1146; Filed January 28, 2008, 3:27 p.m.

TITLE 14. INSURANCE
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Final Regulation

REGISTRAR'S NOTICE: The State Corporation
Commission is exempt from the Administrative Process Act
in accordance with §2.2-4002 A 2 of the Code of Virginia,
which exempts courts, any agency of the Supreme Court, and
any agency that by the Constitution is expressly granted any
of the powers of a court of record.

Title of Regulation: 14VAC5-270. Rules Governing Annual
Audited Financial Reports (amending 14VAC5-270-10
through 14VAC5-270-150, 14VAC5-270-170, 14VACS5-
270-180, adding 14VAC5-270-144, 14VAC5-270-146,
14VAC5-270-148, 14VAC5-270-174).

Statutory Authority: §§12.1-13 and 38.2-223 of the Code of
Virginia.

Effective Date: January 1, 2010.

Agency Contact: Raquel Pino-Moreno, Principal Insurance
Analyst, State Corporation Commission, 1300 East Main
Street, 6th Floor, P.O. Box 1157, Richmond, VA 23218,
telephone (804) 371-9499, FAX (804) 371-9511, or email
raquel.pino-moreno@scc.virginia.gov.

Summary:

The amendments incorporate the revisions made by the
National Association of Insurance Commissioners to its
Annual Financial Reporting Model Regulation, which
requires insurers and designated entities to comply with
certain best business practices related to auditor
independence, corporate governance, and internal controls
over financial reporting. These revisions need to be
promulgated two years in advance, because it will require
affected insurers and designated entities to include two
new reports with their current annual audited financial
report filings. It will also require a change in the rotation
period of the qualified independent certified public
accountant (accountant) from the current seven-year
rotation to a five-year rotation. Affected insurers and
designated entities need time to review the new reporting
requirements and to amend current agreements to allow
for the five-year accountant rotation.

AT RICHMOND, JANUARY 23, 2008
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION
CASE NO. INS-2007-00280

Ex Parte: In the matter of Adopting
Revisions to the Rules Governing
Annual Audited Financial Reports

ORDER ADOPTING RULES

By order entered herein September 26, 2007, all interested
persons were ordered to take notice that subsequent to
October 29, 2007, the State Corporation Commission
("Commission") would consider the entry of an order
adopting revisions proposed by the Bureau of Insurance
("Bureau") entitled Rules Governing Annual Audited
Financial Reports, set forth in Chapter 270 of Title 14 of the
Virginia Administrative Code, unless on or before
October 29, 2007, any person objecting to the adoption of the
proposed new rules filed a request for hearing with the Clerk
of the Commission ("Clerk").

The Order to Take Notice also required all interested
persons to file their comments in support of or in opposition
to the proposed revised rules on or before October 29, 2007.

On October 29, 2007, State Farm Mutual Automobile
Insurance Company and its affiliates ("State Farm") filed
comments to the proposed revisions and a request for hearing
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with the Clerk's Office. State Farm stated that it was opposed
to the proposed revisions due to concerns regarding the cost
of complying with the proposed amendments, as well as its
belief that the impact of imposing the new requirements
would far outweigh any potential benefit to the citizens of the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

On October 30, 2007, The National Association of Mutual
Insurance Companies ("NAMIC") filed comments to the
proposed revisions with the Clerk. NAMIC opposed the
adoption of the rules on similar grounds as State Farm. It
requested a hearing, but made its request contingent on the
Commission granting a hearing at the request of any other
interested party.

On October 29, 2007, American Council of Life Insurers,
American Insurance Association, America's Health Insurance
Plans, Blue Cross Blue Shield Association, Property Casualty
Insurers Association of America, and Reinsurance
Association of America ("the Associations") collectively filed
comments with the Clerk, in which they supported adoption
of the rules on the grounds that they were limited in scope
and enhanced the regulatory oversight of insurers without
undue burden on the industry.

On December 12, 2007, the Commission entered an Order
scheduling a hearing for February 6, 2008. The Order
directed that any parties intending to appear and be heard at
the hearing were to file a written notice of their intention to
do so with the Clerk on or before January 6, 2008.

On January 4, 2008, the Property Casualty Insurers
Association of America, by counsel, filed with the Clerk a
request reserving the right to appear and be heard at the
hearing scheduled for January 1, 2010, if such hearing was
held.

On January 9, 2008, State Farm filed a letter with the Clerk
withdrawing its request for a hearing.

Because NAMIC's request for a hearing was contingent
upon the Commission granting a hearing at the request of any
other interested party, it appears that a hearing in this matter
is no longer necessary.

THE COMMISSION, having considered the proposed
revisions and the filed comments, is of the opinion that the
attached revisions to the rules should be adopted.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:

(1) The revisions at Chapter 270 of Title 14 of the Virginia
Administrative Code entitled "Rules Governing Annual
Audited Financial Reports" which amend the rules at 14
VAC 5-270-10 through 14 VAC 5-270-150, 14 VAC 5-
270-170 and 14 VAC 5-270-180 and add new proposed
rules at 14 VAC 5-270-144, 14 VAC 5-270-146, 14 VAC
5-270-148, and 14 VAC 5-270-174, and which are attached
hereto and made a part hereof, should be, and they are
hereby, ADOPTED to be effective January 1, 2010.

(2) AN ATTESTED COPY hereof, shall be sent by the
Clerk of the Commission to the Bureau of Insurance in
care of Deputy Commissioner Douglas C. Stolte, who
forthwith shall give further notice of the adoption of the
revisions to the rules by mailing a copy of this Order,
including a clean copy of the attached final revised rules,
to all licensed insurers, home protection companies, burial
societies, fraternal benefit societies, health service plans,
health maintenance organizations, legal services plans,
dental or optometric services plans and dental plan
organizations authorized by the Commission pursuant to
Title 38.2 of the Code of Virginia, and certain interested
parties designated by the Bureau of Insurance.

(3) The Commission's Division of Information Resources
forthwith shall cause a copy of this Order, including a copy
of the attached new rules, to be forwarded to the Virginia
Registrar of Regulations for appropriate publication in the
Virginia Register of Regulations and shall make this Order
and the attached new rules available on the Commission's
website, http://www.scc.virginia.gov/caseinfo.htm.

(4) The Bureau of Insurance shall file with the Clerk of the
Commission an affidavit of compliance with the notice
requirements of paragraph (2) of this Order.

CHAPTER 270
RULES GOVERNING ANNUAL AUDHED FINANCIAL
REPORTS REPORTING

14VAC5-270-10. Purpose.

The purpose of this chapter is to improve the Commission's
moenitering commission’s surveillance of the financial
condition of licensed companies by requiring (i) an annual
examination audit of financial statements reporting the
financial position and the results of operations of insurers by
an Independent-Certified Public Accountant-of the finaneial

o the 6 ol . L g ltsof

operations—of —insurers independent certified public

accountant, (ii) Communicating Internal Control Related
Matters Identified in an Audit, and (iii) Management’s Report
of Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

14VAC5-270-20. Applicability.

This chapter H4VAES5-270-10-et-seq) shall apply to all life,
accident and health; sickness, and property and casualty
insurers licensed to transact the business of insurance in
Virginia this Commonwealth under Chapter 10 (§38.2-1000
et seq.) of Title 38.2 of the Code of Virginia and all other
organizations entities licensed to do business under any one
or more of the following chapters of Title 38.2 of the Code of
Virginia, subject to the limitations and/or exemptions as
further stated in this chapter- :

1. Chapter 11 - Captive Insurers.

2. Chapter 12 - Reciprocal Insurance.
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3. Chapter 25 - Mutual Assessment Property and Casualty
Insurers.

4. Chapter 26 (Article 1) - Home Protection Companies.
o 18 : . G Lif .

Ge-mp&ﬁ-les—. 0

. 39 Mutual Life, ” I

Sieknesstnsurers:

7. 5. Chapter 40 - Burial Societies.

& 6. Chapter 41 - Fraternal Benefit Societies.

9 7. Chapter 42 - Health Services Plans.

10 8. Chapter 43 - Health Maintenance Organizations.

H 9. Chapter 44 - Legal Services Plans.

42 10. Chapter 45 - Dental or Optometric Services Plans.

13 11. Chapter 46 - Title Insurance.

12. Chapter 61 - Dental Plan Organizations.

14VAC5-270-30. Scope.

This chapter GH4VAECS-270-10—et—seq) shall apply to all
organizatiens entities listed in 14VAC5-270-20, hereinafter

referred to as "insurers." Insurers having direct premiums
written of less than $1 million in any calendar year and
having less than 1,000 policyholders or certificate holders of
direetly direct written policies at the end of such calendar
year are exempt from the requirements of this chapter for
such year unless the commission deems that compliance with
the reporting requirements of this chapter is necessary to
establish the financial condition of an insurer. Insurers having
assumed premiums of $1 million or more pursuant to
contracts and/or treaties of reinsurance will not be so exempt.

Foreign or alien insurers filing the Audited Financial
Reperts Report in another state, pursuant to that state's
requirements for filing ef Audited Financial Reports and
where sueh the requirements have been found by the
commission to be substantially similar to the requirements
herein, are exempt from this-chapter 14VAC5-270-50 through
14VAC5-270-140 if:

1. Copies A copy of the Audited Financial Report, the
Sionif Cioneiosi | C |
Communicating Internal Control Related Matters
Identified in an Audit, and the Accountant's Letter of
Qualifications, which are filed with sueh the other state,
are filed with the commission in accordance with the filing
dates specified in 14VACS5-270-50, 14VAC5-270-120, and
14VAC5-270-130, respectively; (Canadian insurers may
submit accountants' reports as filed with the Canadian
Office of the Superintendent of Financial Institutions):-and

2. A copy of any Notification of Adverse Financial
Condition Report filed with sueh the other state is filed
with the commission within the time specified in 14VACS-
270-110.

Foreign or alien insurers required to file Management’s
Report of Internal Control over Financial Reporting in
another state are exempt from filing the report in this
Commonwealth provided the other state has substantially
similar reporting requirements and the report is filed with the

commissioner of the other state within the time specified.

This provision shall not prohibit, preclude or in any way
limit the commission's rights with respect to workpapers
described in 14VACS5-270-140 ef-this—ehapter or its rights
concerning the ordering and/or conducting and/or performing
of examinations of insurers under Title 38.2 of the Code of
Virginia.

14VAC5-270-40. Definitions.

The following words and terms when used in this chapter
shall have the following meanings, unless the context clearly
indicates otherwise:

"Accountant" and or ‘'independent Certified—Publie
Aeccountant—mean certified public accountant” means an
independent; certified public accountant or accounting firm in
good standing with the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("AICPA") and in all states in which sueh the
accountant or firm is licensed to practice; for Canadian and
British companies, they-ean it means a Canadian-chartered
or British-chartered accountant.

'Affiliate" of a specific person or a person “affiliated” with
a specific person means a person that directly or indirectly

through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by
or is under common control with the specific person.

"Audit Committee" means a committee (or equivalent body)

established by the board of directors of an entity for the
purpose of overseeing the accounting and financial reporting
processes of an insurer or group of insurers, and audits of
financial statements of the insurer or group of insurers. The
Audit Committee of an entity that controls a group of insurers
may be deemed to be the Audit Committee for one or more of
these controlled insurers solely for the purposes of this
chapter at the election of the controlling person. If an Audit

Committee is not designated by the insurer, the insurer’s
entire board of directors shall constitute the Audit Committee.

"Audited Financial Report" means and includes those items
specified in 14VAC5-270-60.

"Commission" means the State Corporation Commission
when acting pursuant to or in accordance with Title 38.2 of
the Code of Virginia.

"Due date" means (i) June 1 for all domestic insurers; (ii)
June 30 for all foreign or alien companies domiciled or
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entered through a state in which similar law, regulation or
administrative practice provides for a June 30 filing date; and
(iii) for all other insurers, the earlier of June 30 or the date
established by the insurer's state of domicile or entry for filing
similar audited financial reports.

"Group of insurers" means those licensed insurers included
in the reporting requirements of Article 5 (§38.2-1322 et seq.)
of Chapter 13 of Title 38.2 of the Code of Virginia, or a set of
insurers as identified by an entity’s management, for the

purpose of assessing the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting.

"Indemnification" means an agreement of indemnity or a
release from liability where the intent or effect is to shift or
limit in any manner the potential liability of the person or
firm for failure to adhere to applicable auditing or
professional standards, whether or not resulting in part from
knowing or other misrepresentations made by the insurer or
its representatives.

'Internal control over financial reporting”" means a process
effected by an entity’s board of directors, management and
other personnel designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of the financial statements and
includes those policies and procedures that:

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable
detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of assets;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the financial
statements and that receipts and expenditures are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

"NAIC" means the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners.

"RBC" means risk-based capital.

"RBC Level" means a licensee's Company Action Level
RBC, Regulatory Action Level RBC, Authorized Control
Level RBC, or Mandatory Control Level RBC where:

1. "Company Action Level RBC" means, with respect to
any licensee, the product of 2.0 and its Authorized Control
Level RBC;

2. "Regulatory Action Level RBC" means the product of
1.5 and its Authorized Control Level RBC;

3. "Authorized Control Level RBC" means the number
determined under the risk-based capital formula in
accordance with the RBC Instructions; and

4. "Mandatory Control Level RBC" means the product of
0.70 and the Authorized Control Level RBC.

"SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange

"Section 404" means Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 (15 USC §7201 et seq.) and the SEC’s rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder.

"Section 404 report" means management’s report on

“internal control over financial reporting” as defined by the
SEC and the related attestation report of the independent

certified public accountant.

"SOX compliant entity" means an entity that either is
required to be compliant with, or voluntarily is compliant
with, all of the following provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 (15 USC §7201 et seq.): (i) the preapproval
requirements of Section 201 (Section 10A(i) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 USC §78a et seq.)); (i1) the Audit
Committee independence requirements of Section 301
(Section 10A(m)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

(15 USC §78a et seq.)); and (iii) the internal control over

financial reporting requirements of Section 404 (Item 308 of
SEC Regulation S-K).

"Workpapers" means the records kept by the accountant of
the procedures followed, the tests performed, the information
obtained, and the conclusions reached pertinent to the
accountant's examination of the financial statements of an
insurer. Workpapers, accordingly, may include work
programs, analyses, memoranda, letters of confirmation and
representation, abstracts of company documents, and
schedules or commentaries prepared or obtained by the
accountant in the course of the examination of the financial
statements of an insurer and which support the accountant's
opinion thereof.

14VAC5-270-50. Filing General requirements related to
filing and extensions for filing of annual Audited
Financial Reports and Audit Committee appointment.

A. All insurers shall have an annual audit by an Aeceuntant
accountant and shall file an Audited Financial Report with the
Commission commission on or before the applicable due date
for the year ended ending the immediately preceding
December 31 immediately-preeceding.

The Cemmission commission may require an insurer to file
an Audited Financial Report earlier than the due date with 90
days advance notice to the insurer.

B. An extension of the due date filing date may be granted
by the Cemmissien commission for periods of up to 30 days
upon a showing by the insurer and its Aeeeuntant accountant
of the reasons for requesting sueh an extension and upon
determination by the Commisstonr commission of good cause
for an extension. The request for extension must shall be
submitted in writing not less than 10 days prior to the due
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date in sufficient detail to permit the Cemmission
commission to make an informed decision with respect to the
requested extension.

C. If an extension is granted in accordance with the
provisions of subsection B of this section, an extension of 30

days also is granted to the filing of Management’s Reports of
Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

D. An insurer required to file an annual Audited Financial
Report pursuant to this chapter shall designate a group of
individuals as constituting its Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee of an entity that controls an insurer may be
deemed to be the insurer’s Audit Committee for purposes of
this chapter at the election of the controlling person.

14VAC5-270-60. Contents of annual Audited Financial
Report.

The annual Audited Financial Report shall report the
financial position of the insurer as of the end of the most
recent calendar year and the results of its operations, cash
flews flow, and changes in capital and surplus for the year
then ended in conformity with statutory accounting practices
prescribed, or otherwise permitted, by the insurer's state of
domicile. The annual Audited Financial Report shall include
the following:

1. Report of independent Certified—Publie—Accountant
certified public accountant.

2. Balance sheet reporting admitted assets, liabilities,
capital, and surplus.

3. Statement of operations.
4. Statement of cash flews flow.
5. Statement of changes in capital and surplus.

6. Notes to financial statements. These notes shall be those
required by the appropriate annual statement and NAIC
accounting practices and procedures manual. The notes
shall include a reconciliation of differences, if any,
between the audited statutory financial statements and the
annual statement filed pursuant to §§38.2-1300, 38.2-4126
or 38.2-4307 of the Code of Virginia with a written
description of the nature of these differences.

7. The financial statements included in the annual Audited
Financial Report shall be prepared in a form and using
language and groupings substantially the same as the
relevant sections of the annual statement the insurer filed
with the commission, and the financial statements shall be
comparative, presenting the amounts as of December 31 of
the current year and the amounts as of the immediately
preceding December 31. However, in the first year in
which an insurer is required to file an Audited Financial
Report, the comparative data may be omitted.

14VAC5-270-70. Designation of Independent—Certified
Public—Accountant  independent  certified  public

accountant.

A. Each insurer required by this chapter to file an annual
Audited Financial Report, must within 60 days after
becoming subject to sueh the requirement, shall register with
the commission in writing the name and address of the
independent certified public accountant retained to conduct
the annual audit set forth in this chapter.

B. As part of this registration, the insurer shall obtain a letter
from the accountant and file a copy with the commission
stating that the accountant is aware of the provisions of the
insurance code and the rules and regulations of the insurance
department of the state of domicile that relate to accounting
and financial matters, and affirming that he the accountant
will express his an opinion on the financial statements in the
terms of their conformity to the statutory accounting practices
prescribed or otherwise permitted by that department,
specifying such exceptions as he the accountant may believe
appropriate.

C. If the accountant who was the insurer’s accountant for the
immediately preceding filed Audited Financial Report is
dismissed or resigns, the insurer shall notify the commission
within five business days of this event. The insurer also shall
furnish the commission with a separate letter within 10
business days of the above notification stating whether in the
24 months preceding sueh the event there were any
disagreements with the former accountant on any matter of
accounting principles or practices, financial statement
disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure:, which
disagreements; if not resolved to the satisfaction of the former
accountant, would have caused him the accountant to make
reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in his the
opinion. The disagreements required to be reported in
response to this seetien subsection include those resolved to
the former accountant's satisfaction and those not resolved to
the former accountant's satisfaction. Disagreements
contemplated by this seetion subsection are those that occur at
the decision-making level, i.e., between personnel of the
insurer responsible for presentation of its financial statements
and personnel of the accounting firm responsible for
rendering its report. The insurer also in writing shall request
sueh the former accountant to furnish a letter addressed to the
insurer stating whether the accountant agrees with the
statements contained in the insurer's letter and, if not, stating
the reasons for disagreement; and the insurer shall furnish
such a responsive letter from the former accountant to the
commission together with its own letter.

14VAC5-270-80. Qualifications of accountant.

A. The commission shall not recognize a person or firm as a
qualified accountant if that person or firm:
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1. Is not in good standing with the AICPA and in all states
in which the accountant is licensed to practice, or, for a
Canadian or British company, that is not a chartered
accountant; or

2. Has either directly or indirectly entered into an
agreement of indemnity or release from liability,
collectively referred to as indemnification, with respect to
the audit of the insurer.

B. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, the
commission shall recognize an independent CertifiedPublie
Aceountant certified public accountant as qualified as long as
he-er-she the accountant conforms to the standards of his-er
her the profession, as contained in the AICPA Code of
Professional Conduct ef—the—AJCPA and the Rules—and
Regulations—includingthe Standards—of Praetiee; regulations
of the Virginia Board of Accountancy (18VACS5-21) or
similar code.

C. A qualified independent Certified—Publie—Aececountant
certified public accountant may enter into an agreement with
an insurer to have disputes relating to an audit resolved by
mediation or arbitration. However, in the event of a
delinquency proceeding commenced against the insurer under
Chapter 15 (§38.2-1500 et seq.) of Title 38.2 of the Code of
Virginia, the mediation or arbitration provisions shall operate
at the option of the statutory successor.

D. No-partncr-or-other-person—responsible{forrenderinga
repoert The lead (or coordinating) audit partner (having
primary responsibility for the audit) may not act in that
capacity for more than seven five consecutive years.
Fellowing—any—period—of-serviee;—sueh The person shall be
disqualified from acting in that or a similar capacity for the
same company or its insurance subsidiaries or affiliates for a
period of twe five consecutive years. An insurer may make
application to the commission for relief from the above
rotation requirement on the basis of unusual circumstances.
This application shall be made at least 30 days before the end
of the calendar year. The commission may consider the
following factors in determining if the relief should be
granted:

1. Number of partners, expertise of the partners or the
number of insurance clients in the currently registered
firm;

2. Premium volume of the insurer; or

3. Number of jurisdictions in which the insurer transacts
business.

The insurer shall file, with its annual statement filing, the

commission’s letter granting relief from this subsection with
the states in which it is licensed or doing business and with

the NAIC. If the nondomestic state accepts electronic filing
with the NAIC, the insurer shall file the letter granting relief
in an electronic format acceptable to the NAIC.

E. The commission shall not recognize as a qualified
accountant,—ner or accept any annual Audited Financial
Report prepared in whole or in part by; any person who:

1. Has been convicted of fraud, bribery, a violation of the
Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act (18

USC—§§19611968) (18 USC §1961 et seq.) or any

dishonest conduct or practices under federal or state law;

2. Has violated the insurance laws of this Commonwealth
with respect to any previous reports submitted under this
chapter; or

3. Has demonstrated a pattern or practice of failing to
detect or disclose material information in previous reports
filed under the provisions of this chapter.

F. The commission may: (i) make a determination as to
whether an accountant is qualified and may, based upon the
facts considered, determine that such accountant is not
qualified for purposes of expressing an opinion on the
financial statements in the annual Audited Financial Report
made pursuant to this chapter; and (ii) require the insurer to
replace such accountant with another whose relationship with
the insurer is qualified within the meaning of this chapter.

G. The commission shall not recognize as a qualified
independent certified public accountant or accept an annual

Audited Financial Report prepared in whole or in part by an
accountant who provides to an insurer, contemporaneously
with the audit, the following nonaudit services:

1. Bookkeeping or other services related to the accounting
records or financial statements of the insurer;

2.  Financial _ information and

implementation;

3. Appraisal or valuation services, fairness opinions or
contribution-in-kind reports;

systems __ design

4. Actuarially oriented advisory services involving the
determination of amounts recorded in the financial
statements. The accountant may assist an insurer in
understanding the methods., assumptions and inputs used in
the determination of amounts recorded in the financial
statement only if it is reasonable to conclude that the
services provided will not be subject to audit procedures
during an audit of the insurer’s financial statements. An
accountant’s actuary may also issue an actuarial opinion or
certification (opinion) on an insurer’s reserves if the
following conditions have been met:

a. Neither the accountant nor the accountant’s actuary

has performed any management functions or made any
management decisions;

b. The insurer has competent personnel (or engages a
third-party actuary) to estimate the reserves for which
management takes responsibility; and
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c. The accountant’s actuary tests the reasonableness of
the reserves after the insurer’s management has
determined the amount of the reserves;

5. Internal audit outsourcing services;

6. Management functions or human resources;

7. Broker or dealer, investment adviser, or investment

the board of directors to whom authority to grant such
approvals has been delegated by the Audit Committee.

K. The Audit Committee may delegate to one or more
designated members of the Audit Committee the authority to
grant the preapprovals required by subsection J of this
section. The decisions of any member to whom this authority
is delegated shall be presented to the full Audit Committee at

banking services;

8. Legal services or expert services unrelated to the audit;
or

9. Any other services that the commission determines, by
regulation, are impermissible.

(In_general, the principles of independence with respect to
services provided by the accountant are largely predicated on
three basic principles, violations of which would impair the
accountant’s independence. These principles are that the
accountant cannot function in the role of management, cannot
audit his own work, and cannot serve in an advocacy role for

the insurer.)

H. Insurers having direct written and assumed premiums of

less than $100 million in any calendar year may request an
exemption from subsection G of this section. The insurer

shall file with the commission a written statement discussing
the reasons why the insurer should be exempt from these

provisions. An exemption may be granted if the commission
finds, upon review of this statement, that compliance with
this chapter would constitute a financial or organizational
hardship upon the insurer.

I. An accountant who performs the audit may engage in
other nonaudit services, including tax services, that are not
described in or that do not conflict with subsection G of this
section, only if the activity is approved in advance by the
Audit Committee, in accordance with subsection J of this
section.

J. All auditing services and nonaudit services provided to an
insurer by the accountant of the insurer shall be preapproved
by the Audit Committee. The preapproval requirement is
waived with respect to nonaudit services if the insurer is a
SOX compliant entity or a direct or indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of a SOX compliant entity or:

1. The aggregate amount of all nonaudit services provided
to_the insurer constitutes not more than 5.0% of the total
amount of fees paid by the insurer to its accountant during
the fiscal year in which the nonaudit services are provided;

2. The services were not recognized by the insurer at the
time of the engagement to be nonaudit services; and

3. The services are promptly brought to the attention of the
Audit Committee and approved prior to the completion of
the audit by the Audit Committee or by one or more
members of the Audit Committee who are the members of

each of its scheduled meetings.

L. The commission shall not recognize an accountant as
qualified for a particular insurer if a member of the board,

president, chief executive officer, controller, chief financial
officer, chief accounting officer, or any person serving in an
equivalent position for that insurer was employed by the
accountant and participated in the audit of that insurer during
the one-year period preceding the date that the most current
statutory opinion is due. This subsection shall only apply to
partners and senior managers involved in the audit. An

insurer may make application to the commission for relief
from the above requirement on the basis of unusual
circumstances.

The insurer shall file, with its Annual Statement filing, the
commission’s letter granting relief from this subsection with
the states in which it is licensed or doing business and the
NAIC. If the nondomestic state accepts electronic filing with
the NAIC, the insurer shall file the letter granting relief in an
electronic format acceptable to the NAIC.

14VAC5-270-90. Consolidated or combined audits.

An insurer may make written application to the Commission
commission for approval to include in its Audited Financial
Report audited consolidated or combined financial statements
in lieu of separate annual audited financial statements if the
insurer is part of a group of insurance companies whieh that
utilizes a pooling or 100% reinsurance agreement that affects
the solvency and integrity of the insurer's reserves and sueh
the insurer cedes all of its direct and assumed business to the
pool. In such cases, a columnar consolidating or combining
worksheet shall be filed with the report, as follows:

1. Amounts shown on the consolidated or combined
Audited Financial Report shall be shown on the worksheet.

2. Amounts for each insurer subject to this section shall be
stated separately.

3. Noninsurance operations may be shown on the
worksheet on a combined or individual basis.

4. Explanations of consolidating and eliminating entries
shall be included.

5. A reconciliation shall be included of any differences
between the amounts shown in the individual insurer
columns of the worksheet and comparable amounts shown
on the Annual Statements of the insurers.
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14VAC5-270-100. Scope of examinatien audit and report
of independent Certified—Public—Accountant certified
public accountant.

Financial statements furnished pursuant to 14VAC5-270-60
hereof shall be examined by an Aeeceuntant accountant. The
examination audit of the insurer's financial statements shall be
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. In accordance with Auditing (AU) Section 319 of
the AICPA Professional Standards, Consideration of Internal
Control in a Financial Statement Audit, the accountant shall
obtain an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan

C. If the Aeceountant accountant, subsequent to the date of
the Audited Financial Report filed pursuant to this chapter,
becomes aware of facts which might have affected his the
report, the Commisston commission notes the obligation of
the Aecountant accountant to take sueh action as prescribed in
Velume—1 AU Section 561 of the AICPA Professional
Standards—ef—the—AJCPA, Subsequent Discovery of Facts
Existing at the Date of the Auditor’s Report.

14VAC5-270-120. Repert—on—significant—deficiencies—in
internal-controls Communicating internal control related

matters identified in an audit.

the audit. To the extent required by AU Section 319, for
those insurers required to file a Management’s Report of
Internal Control over Financial Reporting pursuant to
14VAC5-270-148, the accountant should consider (as the
term should consider is defined in Statements on Auditing
Standards (SAS) No. 102 of the AICPA Professional

Standards, Defining Professional Requirements in Statements
on Auditing Standards) the most recently available report in

planning and performing the audit of the statutory financial
statements. Consideration shewld-alse shall be given to such
other the procedures illustrated in the Financial Condition
Examiner's Examiners Handbook promulgated by the
National-Association-of-Insurance-Commissioncrs NAIC as
the Aeeeuntant accountant deems necessary.

14VAC5-270-110.
condition.

Notification of adverse financial

A. The insurer required to furnish the annual Audited
Financial Report shall require the Aeeeuntant accountant to
report in writing within five business days to the board of
directors or its audit—committee Audit Committee any
determination by the Aeeeuntant accountant that the insurer
has materially misstated its financial condition as reported to
the Commission commission as of the balance sheet date
under examination or that the insurer does not meet its
minimum statutory capital and surplus requirements as of that
date pursuant to Virginia law. An insurer that has received a
report pursuant to this paragraph subsection shall forward a
copy of the report to the Commission commission within five
business days of receipt of sueh the report and shall provide
the Aeeeuntant accountant making the report with evidence
of the report being furnished to the Cemmissien commission.
If the Aeeeuntant accountant fails to receive sueh the
evidence within the required five business day period, the
Aececountant accountant shall furnish to the Cemmission
commission a copy of its report within the next five business
days.

B. No Aeeeuntant accountant shall be liable in any manner
to any person for any statement made in connection with the
abeve—paragraph subsection A of this section if sueh the
statement is made in good faith in compliance with the-abeve
paragraph subsection A of this section.

A. In addition to the annual audited—finaneial-statements
Audited Financial Report, each insurer shall furnish the
Commisston  commission with a  written  repert
communication as to any unremediated material weaknesses
in its internal controls over financial reporting identified

during the audit. The communication shall be prepared by the

accountant
within 60 days after the filing of the annual Audited Financial

: Thod : rod oo deserintion.of

*fﬁfd. *al.ae’ﬁs.ﬁ; Eak]eg oF—proposed—o efﬂee.f S;gﬂ.*ﬁea]m

Accountant'srepert Report, and shall contain a description of
any unremediated material weakness (as the term material
weakness is defined in SAS No. 112 of the AICPA
Professional Standards, Communicating Internal Control
Related Matters Identified in an Audit) as of the immediately
preceding December 31 (so as to coincide with the Audited
Financial Report discussed in 14VAC5-270-50 A) in the

insurer’s internal control over financial reporting identified by

the accountant during the course of the audit of the financial
statements. If no unremediated material weaknesses were

identified, the communication should so state.

B. The insurer is required to provide a description of
remedial actions taken or proposed to correct unremediated
material weaknesses, if the actions are not described in the
accountant’s communication.

C. The insurer is expected to maintain information about
significant deficiencies communicated by the independent
certified public accountant. The information should be made

available to the examiner conducting a financial condition
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examination for review and kept in a manner as to remain
confidential.

14VAC5-270-130. Accountant's letter of qualifications.

The Aeeeuntant accountant shall furnish the insurer in
connection with, and for inclusion in, the filing of the annual
Audited Financial Report, a letter stating:

1. That ke the accountant is independent with respect to the
insurer and conforms to the standards of his profession as
contained in the AICPA's Code of Professional Conduct
and pronouncements of its Financial Accounting Standards
Board, and the Standards of Practice of the Virginia Board
for Accountancy, or similar code.

2. The background and experience in general, and the
experience in audits of insurers of the staff assigned to the
engagement and whether each is an Aeceountant
accountant. Nothing within this chapter shall be construed
as prohibiting the Aeeeuntant accountant from utilizing
sueh staff as he-deems deemed appropriate where such use
is consistent with the standards prescribed by generally
accepted auditing standards.

3. That the Aeeountant accountant understands the annual
Audited Financial Report, and that its opinion thereon will
be filed in compliance with this chapter and that the
Commisston commission will be relying on this
information in the monitoring and regulation of the
financial position of insurers.

4. That the Aeeeuntant accountant consents to the
requirements of 14VACS5-270-140 ef-this—chapter and that
the Aeeeuntant accountant consents and agrees to make
available for review by the Cemmission commission, its
designee or appointed agent, the workpapers, as defined in
14VACS5-270-40.

5. That the Aeeeuntant accountant is properly licensed by
an appropriate state licensing authority and that he is a
member in good standing in the AICPA.

6. That the Aeeeuntant accountant is in compliance with
14VAC5-270-80.

14VAC5-270-140. Availability and maintenance of CPRA
independent certified public accountant workpapers.

Every insurer required to file the Audited Financial Report
described in this chapter; shall require the Aeeeuntant
accountant to make available for review by the Cemmission's
commission’s examiners, all workpapers prepared in the
conduct of his—examination the accountant’s audit and any
communications related to the audit between the Aceountant
accountant and the insurer, at the offices of the insurer, at the
Comymisston commission or at any other reasonable place
designated by the Commission commission. The insurer shall
require that the Aeeeuntant accountant retain the workpapers
and communications until the Cemmissior commission has

filed a Report on Examination covering the period of the
audit, but no longer than seven years from the date of the
audit report.

In the conduct of the aforementioned periodic review by the

Commisston's commission’s examiners, it shall be agreed that
photocopies of pertinent workpapers may be made and
retained by the Cemmissior commission. Sueh—reviews
Reviews by the Cemmisston's commission’s examiners shall
be considered investigations and all workpapers and
communications obtained during the course of sueh
investigations shall be confidential.

14VAC5-270-144. Requirements for Audit Committees.

A. This section shall not apply to foreign or alien insurers
licensed in Virginia or an insurer that is a SOX compliant
entity or a direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of a
SOX compliant entity.

B. The Audit Committee shall be directly responsible for the
appointment, compensation and oversight of the work of any

accountant (including resolution of disagreements between
management and the accountant regarding financial
reporting) for the purpose of preparing or issuing the Audited
Financial Report or related work pursuant to this chapter.
Each accountant shall report directly to the Audit Committee.

C. Each member of the Audit Committee shall be a member
of the board of directors of the insurer or a member of the
board of directors of an entity elected pursuant to subsection
F of this section.

D. In order to be considered independent for purposes of this
section, a member of the Audit Committee may not, other
than in the capacity as a member of the Audit Committee, the
board of directors, or any other board committee, accept any
consulting, advisory or other compensatory fee from the
entity or be an affiliated person of the entity or subsidiary
thereof. However, if Virginia law requires board participation
by otherwise nonindependent members, that law shall prevail
and such members may participate in the Audit Committee
and be designated as independent for Audit Committee
purposes, unless they are an officer or employee of the insurer
or one of its affiliates.

E. If a member of the Audit Committee ceases to be
independent for reasons outside the member’s reasonable
control, that member, with notice by the responsible entity to
the commission, may remain an Audit Committee member of
the responsible entity until the earlier of the next annual
meeting of the responsible entity or one year from the
occurrence of the event that caused the member to be no
longer independent.

F. To exercise the election of the controlling person to
designate the Audit Committee for purposes of this chapter,
the ultimate controlling person shall provide written notice to
the commission of the affected insurers. Notification shall be
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made timely prior to the issuance of the statutory audit report
and include a description of the basis for the election. The

Note B: All insurers with less than $500 million in prior year
direct written and assumed premiums are encouraged to

election can be changed through notice to the commission by

structure their Audit Committees with at least a supermajority

the insurer, which shall include a description of the basis for

of independent Audit Committee members.

the change. The election shall remain in effect for perpetuity,
unless rescinded.

G. The Audit Committee shall require the accountant that
conducts for an insurer any audit required by this chapter to

Note C: Prior calendar year direct written and assumed

premiums shall be the combined total of direct premiums and

assumed premiums from nonaffiliates for the reporting
entities.

timely report to the Audit Committee in accordance with the
requirements of SAS No. 114 of the AICPA Professional

Standards, The Auditor’s Communication with those Charged
with Governance, including:

1. All significant accounting policies and material

I. An insurer with direct written and assumed premiums,
excluding premiums reinsured with the Federal Crop
Insurance Corporation and Federal Flood Program, less than

$500 million may make application to the commission for a
waiver from the requirements of this section based upon

permitted practices;

2. All material alternative treatments of financial
information within statutory accounting principles that
have been discussed with management officials of the
insurer, ramifications of the wuse of the alternative
disclosures and treatments, and the treatment preferred by
the accountant; and

3. Other material written communications between the
accountant and the management of the insurer, such as any

hardship. The insurer shall file, with its annual statement
filing, the commission’s letter granting relief from this
section with the states in which it is licensed or doing
business and the NAIC. If the nondomestic state accepts
electronic filing with the NAIC, the insurer shall file the letter
granting relief in an electronic format acceptable to the
NAIC.

14VAC5-270-146. Conduct of insurer in connection with
the preparation of required reports and documents.

management [letter] or schedule of unadjusted A. No director or officer of an insurer shall, directly or
differences. indirectly:

If an insurer is a member of an insurance holding company

1. Make or cause to be made a materially false or

system, the reports required by this subsection may be

misleading statement to an accountant in connection with

provided to the Audit Committee on an aggregate basis for

any audit, review or communication required under this

insurers in the holding company system, provided that any

chapter; or

substantial differences among insurers in the system are
identified to the Audit Committee.

H. The proportion of independent Audit Committee

2. Omit to state, or cause another person to omit to state,
any material fact necessary in order to make statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which the

members shall meet or exceed the following criteria:

Prior Calendar Year Direct Written and Assumed Premiums

statements were made, not misleading to an accountant in
connection with any audit, review or communication
required under this chapter.

$0 - $300 Over $300 Over $500
million million - $500 million

million
No minimum Majority (50% Supermajority of
requirements. or more) of members (75% or

members shall more) shall be

See Notes A be independent. independent.
and B.
See Notes A and See Note A.
B.

Note A: The commission has authority afforded by state law
to require the entity’s board to enact improvements to the

independence of the Audit Committee membership if the
insurer is in a RBC level event, meets one or more of the
standards of an insurer deemed to be in hazardous financial
condition, or otherwise exhibits qualities of a troubled
insurer.

B. No officer or director of an insurer, or any other person
acting under the direction thereof, shall directly or indirectly
take any action to coerce, manipulate, mislead or fraudulently
influence any accountant engaged in the performance of an
audit pursuant to this chapter if that person knew or should
have known that the action, if successful, could result in

rendering the insurer’s financial statements materially
misleading.

C. For purposes of subsection B of this section, actions that,
"if successful, could result in rendering the insurer’s financial
statements materially misleading” include, but are not limited
to, actions taken at any time with respect to the professional
engagement period to coerce, manipulate, mislead or
fraudulently influence an accountant:

1. To issue or reissue a report on an insurer’s financial
statements that is not warranted in the circumstances (due
to_material violations of statutory accounting principles
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prescribed by the commission, generally accepted auditing
standards, or other professional or regulatory standards);

404 Report, the insurer or group of insurers may file (i) a
Management’s Report of Internal Control over Financial

2. Not to perform audit, review or other procedures
required by generally accepted auditing standards or other
professional standards;

3. Not to withdraw an issued report; or

4. Not to communicate matters to an insurer’s Audit
Committee.

14VAC5-270-148. Management’s Report of
Control over Financial Reporting.

Internal

A. An insurer required to file an Audited Financial Report
pursuant to this chapter that has annual direct written and
assumed premiums, excluding premiums reinsured with the
Federal Crop Insurance Corporation and Federal Flood
Program, of $500 million or more shall prepare a report of the
insurer’s or group of insurers’ internal control over financial
reporting. The report shall be filed with the commission along

with the Communicating Internal Control Related Matters
Identified in an Audit pursuant to 14VAC5-270-120.

Management’s Report of Internal Control over Financial
Reporting shall be as of the immediately preceding December
31

B. Notwithstanding the premium threshold in subsection A
of this section, the commission may require an insurer to file
Management’s Report of Internal Control over Financial
Reporting if the insurer is in any RBC level event, or meets
any one or more of the standards of an insurer deemed to be
in_hazardous financial condition pursuant to §§38.2-1038,

38.2-5505, 38.2-5506 and 38.2-5510 of the Code of Virginia.

C. An insurer or a group of insurers that is (i) directly
subject to Section 404 (ii) part of a holding company system
whose parent is directly subject to Section 404; (iii) not
directly subject to Section 404 but is a SOX compliant entity;
or (iv) a member of a holding company system whose parent
is not directly subject to Section 404 but is a SOX compliant
entity may file its or its parent’s Section 404 Report and an
addendum in satisfaction of this section’s requirement
provided that those internal controls of the insurer or group of
insurers having a material impact on the preparation of the
insurer’s or group of insurer’s audited statutory financial
statements (those items included in 14VACS5-270-60) were
included in the scope of the Section 404 Report. The

addendum shall be a positive statement by management that
there are no material processes with respect to the preparation

Reporting pursuant to this section, or (ii) the Section 404
Report and a Management’s Report of Internal Control over
Financial Reporting pursuant to this section for those internal
controls that have a material impact on the preparation of the

insurer’s or group of insurers’ audited statutory financial
statements not covered by the Section 404 Report.

D. Management’s Report of Internal Control over Financial
Reporting shall include:

1. A statement that management is responsible for

establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting;

2. A statement that management has established internal
control over financial reporting and an assertion, to the best
of management’s knowledge and belief, after diligent

inquiry, as to whether its internal control over financial
reporting is effective to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial statements in
accordance with statutory accounting principles;

3. A statement that briefly describes the approach or

processes by which management evaluated the
effectiveness of its internal control over financial

reporting;
4. A statement that briefly describes the scope of work that

is_included and whether any internal controls were
excluded;

5. Disclosure of any unremediated material weaknesses in

the internal control over financial reporting identified by
management as of the immediately preceding December
31. Management shall not conclude that the internal
control over financial reporting is effective to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
statements in accordance with statutory accounting

principles if there is one or more unremediated material
weaknesses in its internal control over financial reporting;

6. A statement regarding the inherent limitations of internal
control systems; and

7. Signatures of the chief executive officer and the chief
financial officer (or equivalent position or title).

E. Management shall document and make available upon

financial condition examination the basis upon which its
assertions, required in subsection D of this section, are made.

of the insurer’s or group of insurers’ audited statutory

Management may base its assertions, in part, upon its review,

financial statements (those items included in 14VAC5-270-

monitoring, and testing of internal controls undertaken in the

60) excluded from the Section 404 Report. If there are

normal course of its activities.

internal controls of the insurer or group of insurers that have a
material impact on the preparation of the insurer’s or group of
insurer’s audited statutory financial statements and those
internal controls were not included in the scope of the Section

1. Management shall have discretion as to the nature of the
internal control framework used and the nature and extent
of documentation in order to make its assertion in a cost
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effective manner and may include assembly of or reference

C. The requirements of 14VAC5-270-144 shall become

to existing documentation.

2. Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting, required by subsection A of this section, and
any documentation provided in support thereof during the
course of a financial condition examination, shall be kept
confidential by the commission.

14VAC5-270-150. Exemptions.

Upon written application of any an insurer, the Commission
commission may grant an exemption from any provision
and/or requirement of this chapter if the Cemmission
commission finds, upon review of the application, that
compliance with this chapter H4VAC5-270-10-etseq) would
constitute an undue financial or organizational hardship upon
the insurer. An exemption may be granted at any time and
from time to time for a specified period or periods. Upon
written application of anmy an insurer, the Cemmission
commission may, for a specified period or periods, permit an
insurer to file annual Audited Financial Reports on some
basis other than a calendar year basis.

14VAC5-270-170. Canadian and British companies.

A. In-the—ecase—of For Canadian and British insurers, the
annual Audited Financial Report shall be defined as the
annual statement of total business on the form filed by sueh
the companies with their domiciliary regulatory authority
duly audited by an independent chartered accountant.

B. For sueh Canadian and British insurers, the letter from
the accountant required in 14VACS5-270-70 shall state that the
Aeeountant accountant is aware of the requirements relating
to the annual Audited Financial Report filed with the
Commissionr commission pursuant to this section and
14VAC5-270-50 and shall affirm that the opinion expressed
is in conformity with saeh the requirements.

14VAC5-270-174. Retention of independent certified
public accountant on or after January 1, 2010, and other
effective dates.

A. Unless otherwise noted, the requirements of this chapter
shall become effective for the reporting period ending
December 31, 2010, and each year thereafter. An insurer or
group of insurers not required to file a report because its total
written premium is below the threshold that subsequently
becomes subject to the reporting requirements shall have two
years following the year the threshold is exceeded (but not
earlier than December 31, 2010) to file a report. Likewise, an
insurer acquired in a business combination shall have two
calendar vyears following the date of acquisition or
combination to comply with the reporting requirements.

B. The requirements of 14VAC5-270-80 D shall become

effective on January 1, 2010. An insurer or group of insurers
that is not required to have independent Audit Committee
members or only a majority of independent Audit Committee
members (as opposed to a supermajority) because the total
direct written and assumed premium is below the threshold
and subsequently becomes subject to one of the independence
requirements due to changes in premium shall have one year
following the year the threshold is exceeded (but not earlier
than January 1, 2010) to comply with the independence
requirements. Likewise, an insurer that becomes subject to
one of the independence requirements as a result of a business
combination shall have one calendar year following the date
of acquisition or combination to comply with the
independence requirements.

14VAC5-270-180. Severability provisien.

If any seetion—or—pertion—ef—a—seetion provision of this
chapter (H4VAECS-270-10—et—seq) or the applicability
application thereof to any person or circumstance is for any
reason held to be invalid, the remainder of the requirement-or

the—apphieability chapter and the application of sueh the
provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be
affected thereby.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

AICPA Professional Standards, Volume 1, June 1, 2007,
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

AICPA Professional Standards, Volume 2, June 1, 2007,
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

VA.R. Doc. No. R08-895; Filed January 29, 2008, 8:38 a.m.

TITLE 18. PROFESSIONAL AND
OCCUPATIONAL LICENSING

BOARD OF PSYCHOLOGY

Final Regulation

REGISTRAR'S NOTICE: The Board of Psychology is
claiming an exemption from the Administrative Process Act
in accordance with §2.2-4006 A 4 a of the Code of Virginia,
which excludes regulations that are necessary to conform to
changes in Virginia statutory law or the appropriation act
where no agency discretion is involved. The Board of
Psychology will receive, consider and respond to petitions by
any interested person at any time with respect to
reconsideration or revision.

Titles of Regulations: 18VAC125-20. Regulations

effective for audits of the year beginning January 1, 2010, and
thereafter.

Governing the Practice
18VAC125-20-170).

of Psychology (amending
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18VAC125-30. Regulations Governing the Certification of
Sex Offender Treatment Providers (amending
18VAC125-30-120).

Statutory Authority: §§54.1-2400 and 54.1-2408.2 of the
Code of Virginia.

Effective Date: March 19, 2008.

Agency Contact: Evelyn B. Brown, Executive Director,
Board of Psychology, 9960 Mayland Drive, Suite 300,
Richmond, VA 23233, telephone (804) 367-4697, FAX (804)
327-4435, or email evelyn.brown@dhp.virginia.gov.

Summary:

In conformance with 8§54.1-2408.2 of the Code of
Virginia, the amendments provide for a three-year period
after revocation of a license before a person can apply to
a health regulatory board for reinstatement.

18VAC125-20-170. Reinstatement following disciplinary
action.

A. Any person whose license has been revoked by the board
under the provisions of 18VACI125-20-160 may, twe three

TITLE 20. PUBLIC UTILITIES AND
TELECOMMUNICATIONS

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

Proposed Regulation

REGISTRAR'S NOTICE: The State Corporation
Commission is exempt from the Administrative Process Act
in accordance with §2.2-4002 A 2 of the Code of Virginia,
which exempts courts, any agency of the Supreme Court, and
any agency that by the Constitution is expressly granted any
of the powers of a court of record.

The distribution lists that are referenced as Appendices A and
B in the following order are not being published. However,
these lists are available for public inspection at the State
Corporation Commission, Document Control Center, Tyler
Building, 1st Floor, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond,
Virginia 23219, from 8:15 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through
Friday; or may be viewed at the Virginia Code Commission,
General Assembly Building, 2nd Floor, 910 Capitol Street,
Richmond, Virginia 23219, during regular office hours.

years subsequent to such board action, submit a new
application to the board for reinstatement of licensure. The
board in its discretion may, after a hearing, grant the
reinstatement.

B. The applicant for such reinstatement, if approved, shall
be licensed upon payment of the appropriate fee applicable at
the time of reinstatement.

18VAC125-30-120. Reinstatement following disciplinary
action.

A. Any person whose certificate has been revoked by the
board under the provisions of 18VAC125-30-110 may, three
years subsequent to such board action, submit a new
application to the board for certification to the board. Any
person whose certificate has been reveked-er denied renewal
by the board under the provisions of 18VAC125-30-110 may,
two years subsequent to such board action, submit a new
application to the board for certification to the board.

B. The board in its discretion may, after a hearing, grant
reinstatement.

C. The applicant for reinstatement, if approved, shall be
certified upon payment of the appropriate fees applicable at
the time of reinstatement.

VA.R. Doc. No. R08-1081; Filed January 23, 2008, 4:09 p.m.

Titles of Regulations: 20VAC5-200. Public

Accounting (repealing 20VAC5-200-30).

20VAC5-201. Rules Governing Utility Rate Applications
and Annual Informational Filings (adding 20VAC5-201-
10 through 20VAC5-201-110).

20VAC5-403. Rules Governing Small Investor-Owned
Telephone Utilities (amending 20VVAC5-403-70).

Statutory Authority: §§12.1-13 and 56-585.1 of the Code of
Virginia.

Utility

Public Hearing Information: A public hearing will be
scheduled upon request.

Public Comment: Public comments may be submitted until
5 p.m. on April 14, 2008.

Agency Contact: Kim Pate, Manager of Audits, Public Utility
Accounting Division, State Corporation Commission, P.O.
Box 1197, 1300 East Main Street, Richmond, VA 23218,
telephone (804) 371-9950, FAX (804) 371-9447, or email
kim.pate@scc.virginia.gov.

Background:

Chapter 933 of the 2007 Acts of Assembly (i) requires
incumbent utilities' rates to be reviewed in 2009 and
biennially thereafter, subject to certain, statutory earnings
benchmarks;  (ii)  establishes new  cost-recovery
mechanisms (including certain financial incentives) by
which Virginia's incumbent electric utilities may recover
their capital and operating costs, (iii) modifies statutory
provisions governing cost recovery applicable to rate
cases filed by all utilities to allow, for example, utilities'
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recovery in rates of costs that the Commission "finds
reasonably can be predicted to occur during the rate
year", and (iv) amends prior law governing performance-
based regulation of gas utilities to include electric utilities
within its scope.

The new regulatory scheme for Virginia electric utilities
necessitates revisions to the Commission's existing rules
governing utility rate increase applications ("Rate Case
Rules™), 20 VAC 5-200-30, and the provisions of Chapter
933 of the 2007 Acts of Assembly correspondingly direct
the Commission to promulgate such rules and regulations
"as may be necessary" to implement this new legislation.
Additionally, the necessity of changing the rules in order to
implement Chapter 933 provides the Commission an
opportunity to update and refine the provisions of these
rules generally applicable to all utilities whose rates are
subject to the commission's ratemaking authority.

Summary:

Based on Chapter 933 of the 2007 Acts of Assembly the
commission proposes to repeal the existing Rate Case
Rules in 20 VAC 5-200-30, and to promulgate revised Rate
Case Rules 9 in a new Chapter 201 in Title 20 of the
Virginia Administrative Code, consisting of 20 VAC 5-201-
10 through 20 VAC 5-201-90.

The proposed rules include the following: (i) new general
filing requirements; (ii) requirements for optional
performance based rate regulation, biennial reviews and
rate adjustment clauses; and (iii) refinement of general
and expedited rate case requirements, annual
informational filing requirements, temporary increase
requirements and fuel factor requirements.

AT RICHMOND, JANUARY 29, 2008
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
At the relation of the
STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

CASE NO. PUE-2008-00001

Ex Parte: In the matter of revising
the rules of the State Corporation Commission
governing utility rate increase applications

ORDER FOR NOTICE AND COMMENT

The 2007 Session of the Virginia General Assembly of
Virginia approved Senate Bill 1416 (and companion bill,
House Bill 3068), enacted as Chapter 933 of the 2007 Acts of
Assembly.' This legislation, inter alia, (i) requires incumbent
electric utilities' rates to be reviewed in 2009 and biennially
thereafter, subject to certain, statutory earnings benchmarks;’
(ii) establishes new cost-recovery mechanisms (including
certain financial incentives) by which Virginia's incumbent
electric utilities may recover their capital and operating
costs,” (iii) modifies statutory provisions governing cost

recovery applicable to rate cases filed by all utilities to allow,
inter alia, utilities' recovery in rates of costs that the
Commission "finds reasonably can be predicted to occur
during the rate year";* and (iv) amends prior law governing
performance-based regulation of gas utilities to include

electric utilities within its scope.’

The new regulatory scheme for Virginia electric utilities
thus necessitates revisions to the Commission's existing rules
governing utility rate increase applications ("Rate Case
Rules"), 20 VAC 5-200-30, and the provisions of SB 1416
correspondingly direct the Commission to promulgate such
rules and regulations "as may be necessary" to implement this
new legislation.

NOW THE COMMISSION, upon consideration of the
matter, is of the opinion and finds that a proceeding should be
established to revise its existing Rate Case Rules to reflect
and to accommodate statutory changes enacted in Chapter
933 of the 2007 Acts of Assembly. Additionally, the
necessity of making such changes also provides the
Commission an opportunity to update and refine the
provisions of these rules generally applicable to all utilities
whose rates are subject to the Commission's ratemaking
authority.

Accordingly, the Commission proposes to repeal the
existing Rate Case Rules in 20 VAC 5-200-30, and to
promulgate revised Rate Case Rules in a new Chapter 201 in
Title 20 of the Virginia Administrative Code, consisting of
sections 20 VAC 5-201-10 through 20 VAC 5-201-110. To
initiate this proceeding, the Commission's Staff has prepared
proposed rules ("Proposed Rules") which are appended to this
Order. We will direct that notice of the Proposed Rules be
given to the public and that interested persons be provided an
opportunity to file written comments on, propose
modifications or supplements to, or request oral argument on
the Proposed Rules.

In addition, we note that the new legislation shortens the
time periods within which electricity rate cases must be
completed. These shorter time periods reduce the time
available for discovery and analysis of the requested rate
changes. To meet these shorter time frames, the Proposed
Rules make several changes to current practice, with the goal
of affording all parties due process. Thus, interested persons
may comment on, among other things, whether the filing
requirements set forth in the Proposed Rules should be
expanded, reduced or otherwise modified to address such
matters.

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:

(1) This matter is docketed and assigned Case No. PUE-
2008-00001.

(2) The Commission's Division of Information Resources
shall forward a copy of this Order to the Registrar of
Regulations for publication in the Virginia Register.
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(3) On or before February 18, 2008, the Commission's
Division of Information Resources shall publish the following
notice as classified advertising in newspapers of general
circulation throughout the Commonwealth of Virginia.

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC
OF A PROCEEDING TO AMEND
REGULATIONS GOVERNING UTILITY
RATE INCREASE APPLICATIONS
CASE NO. PUE-2008-00001

The 2007 Session of the Virginia General Assembly of
Virginia approved Senate Bill 1416 (and companion bill,
House Bill 3068), enacted as Chapter 933 of the 2007
Acts of Assembly. This legislation: (i) requires
incumbent electric utilities' rates to be reviewed in 2009
and biennially thereafter, subject to certain, statutory
earnings benchmarks; (ii) establishes new cost-recovery
mechanisms (including certain financial incentives) by
which Virginia's incumbent electric utilities may recover
their capital and operating costs; (iii) modifies statutory
provisions governing cost recovery applicable to rate
cases filed by all utilities to allow, inter alia, utilities'
recovery in rates of costs that the Commission "finds
reasonably can be predicted to occur during the rate
year"; and (iv) amends prior law governing performance-
based regulation of gas utilities to include electric
utilities within its scope. In particular, the new legislation
shortens the time periods within which electricity rate
cases must be completed. These shorter time periods
reduce the time available for discovery and analysis of
the requested rate changes. To meet these shorter time
frames, these proposed rules make several changes to
current practice, with the goal of affording all parties due
process.

The new regulatory scheme for Virginia electric utilities
thus necessitates revisions to the Commission's existing
rules governing utility rate increase applications ("Rate
Case Rules"), 20 VAC 5-200-30, and the provisions of
Chapter 933  of the 2007 Acts of Assembly
correspondingly direct the Commission to promulgate
such rules and regulations "as may be necessary" to
implement this new legislation. Additionally, the
necessity of making such changes also provides the
Commission an opportunity to update and refine the
provisions of these rules generally applicable to all
utilities whose rates are subject to the Commission's
ratemaking authority.

Accordingly, the Commission has established a
proceeding in which it proposes to repeal the existing
Rate Case Rules in 20 VAC 5-200-30, and to promulgate
revised Rate Case Rules in a new Chapter 201 in Title 20
of the Virginia Administrative Code, consisting of
sections 20 VAC 5-201-10 through 20 VAC 5-201-110
("Proposed Rules"). The Proposed Rules were prepared

by the Commission's Staff, and are appended to the
Commission's Order for Notice and Comment
establishing this proceeding. Interested persons are
encouraged to obtain copies of this Commission Order
and the Proposed Rules. Copies are available for public
inspection at the Commission's Document Control
Center, Tyler building, First Floor, 1300 East Main
Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219, Monday through
Friday, 8:15 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Copies may also be
downloaded from the Commission's
website: http://www.scc.virginia.gov/caseinfo.htm

On or before April 14, 2008, any interested person may
comment on, propose modifications or supplements to, or
request oral argument on the Proposed Rules by filing an
original and fifteen (15) copies of such comments with
the Clerk of the Commission, ¢/o Document Control
Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218-2118,
making reference in such comments to Case No.
PUE-2008-00001. Interested persons desiring to submit
comments electronically may do so by following the
instructions available at the Commission's website:
http://www.scc.virginia.gov/caseinfo.htm.

All filings in this proceeding shall be directed to the
Clerk of the Commission, ¢/o Document Control Center,
P.O. Box 2118, Richmond, Virginia 23218-2118, making
reference in such comments to Case No.
PUE-2008-00001.

STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION

(4) On or before April 14, 2008, any interested person or
respondent may comment on, propose modifications or
supplements to by filing an original and fifteen (15) copies of
such comments with the Clerk of the Commission, c/o
Document Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond,
Virginia 23218-2118, making reference in such comments to
Case No. PUE-2008-00001. Interested persons desiring to
submit comments electronically may do so by following the
instructions available at the Commission's website:
http://www.scc.virginia.gov/caseinfo.htm.

(5) On or before April 14, 2008, any person desiring to
participate in this proceeding as a respondent shall file an
original and fifteen (15) copies of a notice of participation
with the Clerk of the Commission at the address in Ordering
Paragraph (4), referencing Case No. PUE-2008-00001.
Pursuant to Rule 5 VAC 5-20-80 of the Commission's Rules
of Practice of Proceeding, any notice of participation shall set
forth (i) a precise statement of the interest of the respondent;
(ii) a statement of the specific action sought to the extent then
known; and (iii) the factual and legal basis for the action.

(6) On or before April 14, 2008, any respondent herein may
request oral argument in conjunction with the Commission's
consideration of the Proposed Rules by filing any such
request with the Clerk of the Commission at the address in
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Ordering  Paragraph  (4), referencing Case No.
PUE-2008-00001. Any such request for oral argument shall
state with specificity why the issues raised in such a request
cannot be adequately addressed in written comments. If a
sufficient request for oral argument is not received, the
Commission may consider the matter and enter an order
based upon the papers filed herein.

(7) The Commission Staff shall file a report with the Clerk
of the Commission on or before May 9, 2008, concerning
comments submitted to the Commission by interested parties
and respondents concerning the Proposed Rules.

(8) This matter is continued for further Orders of the
Commission.

AN ATTESTED COPY hereof shall be sent by the Clerk of
the Commission to: all gas companies in Virginia as shown
in Appendix A; all electric companies in Virginia as shown in
Appendix B; Brian R. Greene, Esquire, SeltzerGreene, PLC,
Bank of America Center, 1111 East Main Street, Suite 1720,
Richmond, Virginia 23219; JoAnne L. Nolte, Esquire, The
Conrad Firm, 1520 West Main Street, Suite 204, Richmond,
Virginia 23220; Irene Leech, President, Virginia Citizens
Consumer Council, 4220 North Fork Road, Elliston, Virginia
24087; Jeannie A. Adams, Esquire, Hancock, Daniel,
Johnson & Nagle, PC, 4701 Cox Road, Suite 400, P.O.
Box 72050, Glen Allen, Virginia 23255; JamesS.
Copenhaver, Senior Attorney, NiSource Corporate Services
Company, 1809 Coyote Drive, Chester, Virginia 23836;
Edward L.  Flippen, Esquire, McGuireWoods LLP,
One James Center, 901 East Cary Street, Richmond, Virginia
23219-4030; James C. Dimitri, Esquire, McGuireWoods
LLP, One James Center, 901 East Cary Street, Richmond,
Virginia 23219-4030; Anthony Gambardella, Esquire, Woods
Rogers P.L.C., 823 East Main Street, Suite 1200, Richmond,
Virginia 23219; Guy T. Tripp, III, Esquire, and Richard D.
Gary, Esquire, Hunton & Williams LLP, Riverfront Plaza,
East Tower, 951 East Byrd Street, Richmond, Virginia
23219-4074; Karen L. Bell, Esquire, Dominion Resources,
Inc., P.O. Box 26532, Richmond, Virginia 23261; Carl
Daniel, Massanutten Public Service Utilities, 5701 Westpark
Drive, Suite 101, Charlotte, North Carolina 28217; Norris
Sisson, Dale Service Corporation, 5609 Mapledale Plaza,
Dale City, Virginia 22193; Greg Odell, AquaSource Ultility-
Virginia, Inc., Aqua Virginia, Inc., 2414 Granite Road,
Rockville, Virginia 23146; William Walsh, Manager,
Virginia American Water Company, 2223 Duke Street,
Alexandria, Virginia 22310; Tom McCabe, Manager-External
Relations, Amelia Telephone Corporation, New Castle
Telephone Company, and Virginia Telephone Company,
107 West Franklin Street, Quincy, Florida 32351-0189; Ralph
Frye, Vice President, Burke's Garden Telephone Exchange,
9981 Mill Pond Run, Toano, Virginia 23168; C. Steve
Parrott, State Executive - Virginia, Central Telephone
Company of Virginia and United Telephone-Southeast, Inc.,
14111 Capital Boulevard, Wake Forest, North Carolina

27587; L. Ronald Smith, President/General Manager, MGW
Telephone Company, Inc., P.O. Box 105, Williamsville,
Virginia 24487; Mary McDermott, NTELOS Telephone Inc.
and Roanoke & Botetourt Telephone Company, P.O.
Box 1990, Waynesboro, Virginia 22980; Hart Ashworth,
Peoples Mutual Telephone Company, Inc., 123 Watts Street,
P.O. Box 367, Gretna, Virginia 24557; David Ferguson, V.P.
Customer Services, Shenandoah Telephone Company, P.O.
Box 459, Edinburg, Virginia 22824; Lydia R. Pulley, Vice
President and General Counsel, Mid-Atlantic-South, Verizon
Virginia Inc., 600 East Main Street, Suite 1100, Richmond,
Virginia 23219-2441; Robert W. Woltz, President, Verizon
Virginia, Inc., 600 East Main Street, P.O. Box 27241,
Richmond, Virginia 23261-7241; Donald G. Owens, Esquire,
Troutman Sanders LLP, Troutman Sanders Building,
1001 Haxall Point, P.O. Box 1122, Richmond, Virginia
23218-1122; C.Meade Browder, Jr., Senior Assistant
Attorney General, Division of Consumer Counsel, Office of
Attorney General, 900 East Main Street, 2nd Floor,
Richmond, Virginia 23219; and the Commission's Office of
General Counsel and Divisions of Energy Regulation, Public
Utility Accounting, and Economics and Finance.

! Chapter 933 amends and reenacts §§ 56-233.1, 56-234.2, 56-235.2,
56-235.6, 56-249.6, 56-576 through 56-581, 56-582, 56-584, 56-585, 56-587,
56-589, 56-590, and 56-594 of the Code of Virginia ("Code"); amends the
Code by adding sections numbered 56-585.1, 56-585.2, and 56-585.3; and
repeals §§ 56-581.1 and 56-583 of the Code, relating to the regulation of
electric utility service.

2 As described in SB 1416's legislative summary "[T]he ratemaking
procedure requires the State Corporation Commission (SCC) to conduct a
rate case for investor-owned utilities in 2009; thereafter, the SCC will review
each utility's rates, terms, and conditions using two 12-month test periods
ending December 31, 2010, though the SCC is given discretion to stagger the
years in which it conducts such reviews. In these biennial reviews the SCC
will determine fair rates of return on common equity for the utility's
generation and distribution services, using any methodology it finds
consistent with the public interest. However, the return shall not be set: (i)
lower than the average of the returns on common equity reported to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for the three most recent annual
periods by a peer group of a majority of the other vertically-integrated
investor-owned electric utilities in the southeastern United States with a
Moody's bond rating of at least Baa: or (ii) higher than 300 basis points
above that average."

* As described in SB 1416's legislative summary "[E]ach utility may seek rate
adjustment clauses to recover: (i) costs for transmission services provided by
PJM Interconnection under applicable rates, terms and conditions approved
by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) and costs of FERC-
approved demand response programs; (ii) deferred environmental and
reliability costs authorized under prior capped rate rules; (iii) costs of
providing incentives for the utility to design and operate fair and effective
demand-management, conservation, energy efficiency, and load management
programs; (iv) costs of participation in the new renewable energy portfolio
standard program; and (v) costs of projects that the SCC finds to be necessary
to comply with state or federal environmental laws or regulations applicable
to generation facilities used to serve the utility's native load obligations,
which costs may include the enhanced rate of return for new base load
generation if the project would reduce the need for construction of new
generation facilities by enabling the continued operation of existing
generation facilities. A utility may also apply a rate adjustment clause for
recovery from customers of the costs of: (i) a coal-fired generation facility
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that utilizes Virginia coal and is located in the coalfield region of the
Commonwealth, (ii) one or more other generation facilities, or (iii) one or
more major unit modifications of generation facilities, to meet the utility's
projected native load obligations. The utility may recover an enhanced rate
of return on common equity associated with the type of project, which may
include projects utilizing nuclear power, renewable technologies, carbon
capture facilities, combined cycle combustion turbines, and conventional coal
facilities."

4§ 56-235.2 of the Code.
® § 56-235.6 of the Code.

CHAPTER 201
RULES GOVERNING UTILITY RATE APPLICATIONS
AND ANNUAL INFORMATIONAL FILINGS

20VAC5-201-10. General filing instructions.

A. An applicant shall provide a notice of intent to file an
application pursuant to 20VAC5-201-20, 20VAC5-201-40
and 20VAC5-201-70 to the commission 60 days prior to the
application filing date.

B. Applications pursuant to 20VAC5-201-20 through
20VACS5-201-70 shall include:

1. The name and post office address of the applicant and
the name and post office address of its counsel.

2. A full clear statement of the facts that the applicant is
prepared to prove by competent evidence.

3. A statement of details of the objective or objectives
sought and the legal basis therefore.

4. All direct testimony by which the applicant expects to
support the objective or objectives sought.

5. Information or documentation conforming to the
following general instructions:

a. Attach a table of contents of the company's
application, including exhibits.

b. Each exhibit shall be labeled with the name of the
applicant and the initials of the sponsoring witness in the
upper right hand corner as shown below:

Exhibit No. (Leave Blank)
Witness: (Initials)
Statement or

Schedule Number

c. The first page of all exhibits shall contain a caption
that describes the subject matter of the exhibit.

d. If the accounting and statistical data submitted differ
from the books of the applicant, then the applicant shall
include in its filing a reconciliation schedule for each
account or subaccount that differs, together with an
explanation describing the nature of the difference.

e. The required accounting and statistical data shall
include all work papers and other information necessary

to ensure that the items, statements and schedules are not
misleading.

C. These rules do not limit the commission staff or parties
from raising issues for commission consideration that have
not been addressed in the applicant's filing before the

D. An application shall not be deemed filed per Chapter 10
(§56-232 et seq.) or Chapter 23 (§56-576 et seq.) of Title 56
of the Code of Virginia unless it is in full compliance with
these rules.

E. The commission may waive any or all parts of these rate
case rules for good cause shown.

F. Where a filing contains information that the applicant
claims to be confidential, the filing may be made under seal

provided it is accompanied by both a motion for protective
order or other confidential treatment and an additional five
copies of a redacted version of the filing to be available for
public disclosure. Unredacted filings containing the

confidential information shall, however, be immediately
available to the commission staff for internal use at the

commission.

G. Filings containing confidential (or redacted) information
shall so state on the cover of the filing, and the precise
portions of the filing containing such confidential (or

redacted) information, including supporting material, shall be
clearly marked within the filing.

H. Applicants shall file a disk containing a Microsoft Excel
version of Schedules 1-5, 8-28, 36, 40, and 50, as applicable,
with the Division of Public Utility Accounting, the Division
of Economics and Finance and the Division of Energy
Regulation or the Division of Communications, as
appropriate. Additional Excel versions of such schedules shall
be made available to parties upon request.

1. All applications, including direct testimony and Schedules
1-28., 30-39 and 41-50., as applicable, shall be filed in an
original and 12 copies with the Clerk of the Commission, c/o
Document Control Center, P.O. Box 2118, Richmond,
Virginia 23218. One copy of Schedules 29 and 40 shall be
filed with the Clerk of the Commission.

Two copies of Schedules 29 and 40 shall be submitted to the
Division of Public Utility Accounting or the Division of
Communications, as appropriate. Two copies of Schedule 40
shall be submitted to the Division of Energy Regulation.

J. For any application made pursuant to 20VAC5-201-20
and 20VAC5-201-40 through 20VAC5-201-70, the applicant
shall serve a copy of the information required in 20VAC5-
201-10 A and B 1 through 3. upon the Commonwealth's
Attorney and chairman of the board of supervisors of each
county (or equivalent officials in the counties having alternate
forms of government) in this Commonwealth affected by the
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proposed increase and upon the mayor or manager and the

filed. Expedited rate increases may also take effect in less

attorney of every city and town (or equivalent officials in

than 12 months after the applicant's preceding rate increase so

towns and cities having alternate forms of government) in this

long as rates are not increased as a result thereof more than

Commonwealth affected by the proposed increase. The

once in any calendar year. An applicant making an expedited

applicant shall also serve each such official with a statement

application shall also comply with the following rules:

that a copy of the complete application may be obtained at no
cost by making a request therefor orally or in writing to a
specified company official or location. In addition, the
applicant shall serve a copy of its complete application upon
the Division of Consumer Counsel of the Office of the
Attorney General of Virginia. All such service specified by
this rule shall be made either by (i) personal delivery or (ii)
first class mail, to the customary place of business or to the

1. In computing its cost of capital, as prescribed in
Schedule 3 in 20VAC5-201-90, the applicant, other than
those utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia,
shall use the equity return rate approved by the
commission and used to determine the revenue
requirements in the utility's most recent rate proceeding.

2. An applicant, in developing its rate of return statement,

residence of the person served.

20VAC5-201-20. General and expedited rate increase
applications.

A. An application for a general or expedited rate increase
pursuant to Chapter 10 (§56-232 et seq.) of Title 56 of the

Code of Virginia for a public utility having annual revenues
exceeding $1 million, shall conform to the following
requirements:

1. Exhibits consisting of Schedules 1 through 44 and the
utility's direct testimony shall be submitted. Such
schedules shall be identified with the appropriate schedule
number and shall be prepared in accordance with the
instructions contained in 20VAC5-201-90.

2. An applicant subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of
Virginia shall file Schedules 46 and 49 in addition to the
schedules required in 20VAC5-201-20 A 1 in accordance

shall make adjustments to its test period jurisdictional
results only in accordance with the instructions
accompanying Schedule 25 in 20VAC5-201-90.

3. The applicant may propose new _ allocation
methodologies, rate designs and new or revised terms and
conditions provided such proposals are supported by

appropriate cost studies. Such support shall be included in
Schedule 40.

D. Rates authorized to take effect 30 days following the

filing of any application for an expedited rate increase shall
be subject to refund in a manner prescribed by the
commission. Whenever rates are subject to refund, the

commission may also direct that such refund bear interest at a
rate set by the commission.

20VAC5-201-30. Annual informational filings.

Unless modified per a commission-approved alternative

with the instructions accompanying such schedules in

regulatory plan, each utility not subject to §56-585.1 of the

20VAC5-201-90.

3. An exhibit consisting of additional schedules may be
submitted with the utility's direct testimony. Such exhibit
shall be identified as Schedule 50 (this exhibit may include
numerous sub-schedules labeled 50A et seq.).

B. The selection of a historic test period is up to the
applicant. However, the use of overlapping test periods will

Code of Virginia, and which is not requesting a base rate
increase shall make an annual informational filing consisting
of Schedules 1-7. 9, 11-12, 14-19, 21-22, 24-25. 27-31, 34-
36, 38-40 and 44 as identified in 20VAC5-201-90. The test
period shall be the current 12 months ending in the same
month used in the utility's most recent rate application. This
information shall be filed with the commission within 120
days after the end of the test period. Accounting adjustments

not be allowed.

C. If not otherwise constrained by law or regulatory
requirements, an _applicant who has not experienced a
substantial change in circumstances may file an expedited
rate application as an alternative to a general rate application.
Such application need not propose an increase in regulated
operating_revenues. If, upon timely consideration of the

reflected in Column (2) of Schedule 21 shall incorporate the
ratemaking treatment approved by the commission in the
utility's last rate case and shall be calculated in accordance
with the Expedited Rules of Schedule 25. Requirements
found in 20VAC5-201-10 B 2 through 4 may be omitted in

Annual Informational Filings.
20VAC5-201-40. Optional performance-based requlations

expedited application and supporting evidence, it appears that

applications.

a substantial change in circumstances has taken place since
the applicant's last rate case, then the commission may take
appropriate action, such as directing that the expedited
application be dismissed or treated as a general rate
application. Prior to public hearing, and subject to applicable
provisions of law, an application for expedited rate increase
may take effect within 30 days after the date the application is

A. An applicant, other than those subject to §56-585.1 of the
Code of Virginia, that files an application for performance-
based regulation pursuant to §56-585.1 of the Code of
Virginia shall file Schedules 1-32 and 34-43 as identified in
20VAC5-201-90.
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B. An applicant subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia

B. Applicants subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia

that files a performance-based regulation filing pursuant to
§56-235.6 of the Code of Virginia shall file Schedules 1-46

that file a request for a temporary increase in rates pursuant to
§56-245 of the Code of Virginia shall file Schedules 44-46

and 49 as identified in 20VAC5-201-90.

20VAC5-201-50. Biennial review applications.

A. A biennial review application filed pursuant to §56-585.1
of the Code of Virginia shall include the following:

1. Exhibits consisting of Schedules 3, 6-7, 9-18, 40a and
44-45 as identified in 20VAC5-201-90 shall be submitted
with the utility's direct testimony for two successive 12-
month test periods.

2. Exhibits consisting of Schedules 1-2, 4-5. 8, 19-39. 40b-
d. 41-43, 46, and 49 as identified in 20VAC5-201-90 shall
be submitted with the utility’s direct testimony for the
second of the two successive 12-month test periods.

3. An exhibit consisting of additional schedules may be
submitted with the utility's direct testimony. Such exhibit
shall be identified as Schedule 50 (this exhibit may include
numerous sub-schedules labeled 50A et seq.).

4. A reconciliation of Schedules 19 and 22 to the statement
of income and comparative balance sheet contained in
FERC Form No. 1.

B. The assumed rate year for purposes of determining

ratemaking adjustment in Schedules 21 and 24, as identified
in 20VAC5-201-90, shall begin on December 1 of the year

following the two successive 12-month test periods.

C. For purposes of attaining timelines established for

and 49 as identified and described in 20VAC5-201-90 in
addition to the schedules required in subsection A of this
section.

C. Nothing in these rules shall be interpreted to apply to
applications for temporary reductions of rates pursuant to

§56-242 of the Code of Virginia.
20VAC5-201-80. Fuel factor filings.

A. In the event that an electric utility files an application to
increase the fuel factor, fuel factor projections shall be filed
six weeks prior to the proposed effective date. The filing shall
include projections required by the commission's Fuel
Monitoring System as well as the testimony and exhibits
supporting the fuel factor projections.

B. Electric utilities not seeking a change in the fuel factor
shall file fuel factor projections at least six weeks prior to the

expiration of the last projection or as required by the
commission.

20VAC5-201-90. Schedules and exhibits for Chapter 201.

The following schedules are to be used in conjunction with
this chapter:

Schedule 1 - Historic Profitability and Market Data

Instructions: Using the format of the attached schedule and
the definitions provided below, provide the data for the test
year and four prior fiscal years. The information shall be

biennial reviews in §56-585.1 A 8 of the Code of Virginia, by

compatible with the latest stockholder's annual report

March 31 of each year that a biennial review is not filed

(including any restatements). Information in Sections A and

pursuant to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia, each investor-
owned electric utility subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of

Virginia shall submit two copies of Schedules 9-25, 27-29,
40, and 44-45 for the previous 12-month test period with the

commission’s Division of Public Utility Accounting, the
Division of Economics and Finance and the Division of
Energy Regulation. These schedules do not constitute an
Annual Informational Filing and will not result in any
findings or conclusions outside the context of legislated
biennial reviews.

20VAC5-201-60. Rate adjustment clause filings.

An application filed pursuant to §56-582 or 56-585.1 A 4,5

or 6 of the Code of Virginia shall include Schedules 46-48 as
identified and described in 20VAC5-201-90, and that shall be

submitted with the utility's direct testimony.

20VAC5-201-70. Temporary increases of rates.

A. Applicants that file a request for a temporary increase in
rates pursuant to §56-245 of the Code shall include Schedules
1-43 as identified and described in 20VAC5-201-90.

B shall be compiled for the corporate entity that raises equity

capital in the marketplace. Information in Section C shall be
compiled for the subsidiary company that provides regulated

utility service in Virginia.
Definitions for Schedule 1

Earnings Available for Common

Returnon Year ~ _ Shareholders

End Equity* = Year End Common Equity

Earnings Available for Common

Return on Average Shareholders

Equity* = The Average of Year End Equity

for the Current & Previous Year

Earnings Available for Common

Earnings Per Share Shareholders

= Average No. Common Shares
Outstanding

Volume 24, Issue 12

Virginia Register of Regulations

February 18, 2008

1477



Regulations

Dividends Per Share = Common Dividends Paid per Share

format in the attached schedule. The information shall be

During the Year
Payout Ratio = DPS/EPS

Average Market Price** = (Yearly High + Yearly Low

provided for the test period, the four prior fiscal years, and on
a 13-month average or five-quarter average basis for the test
period. The data shall be provided for the entity whose capital
structure was approved for use in the applicant's last rate case.

Price)/2
Dividend Yield = DPS/ Average Market Price**

Price Earnings Ratio = Average Market Price**/EPS

*Job Development Credits shall not be included as part of
equity capital nor shall a deduction be made from earnings for
a capital charge on these Job Development Credits in
Schedule 1.

**An average based on monthly highs and lows is also
acceptable. If this alternative is chosen, provide monthly

market prices and sufficient data to show how the calculation
was made.

Schedule 2 - Interest and Cash Flow Coverage Data

Instructions: This schedule shall be prepared using the
definitions and instructions given below and presented in the
format of the attached schedule. The information shall be
provided for the test year and the four prior fiscal years based
on information for the Applicant and for the consolidated
company if Applicant is a subsidiary.

- Interest (Lines 3, 4, & 5) shall include amortization of
expenses, discounts, and premiums on debt without
deducting an allowance for borrowed funds used during
construction.

- Income taxes (Line 2) shall include federal and state
income taxes.

- Allowance for Funds Used During Construction
("AFUDC") (Line 8), where applicable, is total AFUDC --
for borrowed and other funds.

- Preferred dividends (Line 13) for a subsidiary may need
to be allocated from the parent's total preferred dividends.
Specify the allocation factor and the methodology used in a
footnote.

- Construction expenditures (Line 15) are net of AFUDC.

- Common dividends (Line 16) for a subsidiary shall be
stated per books. If the subsidiary's dividend payout ratio
differs from the consolidated company's payout ratio, show
in a footnote the subsidiary's common dividends based on
the consolidated company's payout ratio.

Schedule 3 - Capital Structure and Cost of Capital
Statement — Per Books and Average

Instructions: This schedule shall show the amount of each
capital component per balance sheet, the amount for

ratemaking purposes, the percentage weight in the capital
structure, the component cost and weighted cost, using the

In Part A, the information shall be compatible with the latest
Stockholders' Annual Report (including any restatements). In

Parts B, C, and D the methodology shall be consistent with
that approved in the applicant's last rate case. Reconcile
differences between Parts A and B for both end-of-test-period
and average capital structures.

The amounts for short-term debt and revolving credit
agreements (and similar arrangements) in Part B shall be
based where possible on a daily average over the test year, or
alternatively on a 13-month average over the test year. Except
for the Part B amount for short-term debt and average
amounts in Column (6), all other accounts are end-of-year
and end-of-test period.

The component weighted cost rates equal the product of
each component's capital structure weight for ratemaking
purposes times its cost rate. The weighted cost of capital is
equal to the sum of the component weighted cost rates. The
Job Development Credits cost is equal to the weighted cost of
permanent capital (long-term debt, preferred stock, and

common equity).

For investor-owned electric utilities subject to §56-585.1 of
the Code of Virginia, Parts A, B, C, and D shall be based on
the utility’s actual, end-of-period capital structure.

Schedule 4 - Schedules of Long-Term Debt, Preferred
and Preference Stock, Job Development Credits, and Any
Other Component of Ratemaking Capital

Instructions: For each applicable capital component, provide
a schedule that shows, for each issue, the amount outstanding,
its percentage of the total capital component, and effective
cost based on the embedded cost rate. This data shall support
the amount and cost rate of the respective capital components
contained in Schedule 3, consistent with the methodology
approved in applicant’s last rate case. In addition, a detailed
breakdown of all job development credits should be provided
that reconciles to the per books balance of investment tax
credits. These schedules should reflect disclosure of any
associated hedging/derivative instruments, their respective
terms and conditions (instrument type, notional amount and
associated series of debt or preferred stock hedged, period in
effect, etc.), and the impact of such instruments on the cost of
debt or preferred stock.

Schedule 5 - Schedule of Short-Term Debt, Revolving
Credit Agreements, and similar Short-Term Financing

Arrangements
Instructions: Utilities that are not subject to §56-585.1 of the
Code of Virginia shall provide data and explain the
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methodology, which should be consistent with the

average capital structure included in Schedule 3 B and

methodology approved in the applicant’s last rate case, used

average rate base.

to calculate the cost and balance contained in Schedule 3 for
short-term debt, revolving credit agreements, and similar

arrangements.

Investor-owned electric utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the

Code of Virginia shall file data consistent with the utility’s
end of test period capital structure and cost of short-term debt.

Utilities not subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia
shall file only Columns (1)-(3) on Schedule 9.

Schedule 10 - Rate of Return Statement — Earnings Test
— Generation and Distribution Per Books

Instructions: For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of

This schedule should also provide detailed disclosure of any
hedging/derivative instruments related to short-term debt,
their respective terms and conditions (instrument type,
notional amount and associated series of debt hedged, period
in effect, etc.), and the impact of such instruments on the cost
of short-term debt.

Schedule 6 - Public Financial Reports

Instructions: Provide copies of the most recent Stockholder's

Annual Report, Securities and Exchange Commission Form
10-K, and Form 10-Q for the applicant and the consolidated

Virginia, Schedule 10 shall reflect combined generation and
distribution operations. Additionally, such utilities shall file

Schedule 10A, reflecting generation only operations and
Schedule 10B, reflecting distribution only operations, using
the same format as Schedule 10.

Utilities not subject to §56-585.1 of the Code may omit
Schedule 10.

Use format of attached schedule.

Schedule 10 shall reflect average rate base, capital and
common equity capital. Interest expense, preferred dividends

parent company if applicant is a subsidiary. If published,

and common equity capital shall be calculated by using the

provide a copy of the most recent statistical or financial
supplement for the consolidated parent company.

Schedule 7 - Comparative Financial Statements

Instructions: If not provided in the public financial reports
for Schedule 6. provide comparative balance sheets, income
statements, and cash flow statements for the test year and the
12-month period preceding the test year for the applicant and

average capital structure included in Schedule 3 B and
average rate base.

Schedule 10 Columns (2) - (3) shall reflect revenues,

expenses and rate base for each commission-approved rate
adjustment clause pursuant to §§56-585.1 A5b.canddor A

6 of the Code of Virginia.

Schedule 11 - Rate of Return Statement — Earnings Test

its consolidated parent company if applicant is a subsidiary.

— Adjusted to A Requlatory Accounting Basis

Schedule 8 - Proposed Cost of Capital Statement

Instructions: Provide the applicant’s proposed capital
structure/cost _of capital schedule. In conjunction, provide
schedules that support the amount and cost of each
component of the proposed capital structure, and explain all
assumptions used.

Schedule 9 - Rate of Return Statement —Earnings Test —

Instructions: Applicants meeting each of the four following
criteria_may omit this schedule in Annual Informational
Filings and rate applications: (1) the applicant is not subject
to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia; (2) the applicant is not
currently bound by performance-based regulation plan
authorized by the commission pursuant to §56-235.6 of the
Code of Virginia; (3) the applicant has no Virginia
jurisdictional regulatory assets on its books; and (4) the

Per Books

Instructions: Applicants meeting each of the four following

applicant is not seeking to establish a regulatory asset.

For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia,

criteria_may omit this schedule in Annual Informational

Schedule 11 shall reflect combined generation and

Filings and rate applications: (1) the applicant is not subject

distribution operations. Additionally, such utilities shall file

to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia; (2) the applicant is not

Schedule 11A. reflecting generation only operation, and

currently bound by a performance-based regulation plan
authorized by the commission pursuant to §56-235.6 of the

Code of Virginia; (3) the applicant has no Virginia
jurisdictional regulatory assets on its books; and (4) the
applicant is not seeking to establish a regulatory asset.

Use format of attached schedule.

Schedule 9 shall reflect average rate base, capital and
common equity capital. Interest expense, preferred dividends

Schedule 11B, reflecting distribution only operations, using
the same format as Schedule 11.

Use format of attached schedule.

Schedule 11 adjustments in Column (2) shall reflect any

financial differences between Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ("GAAP") and regulatory accounting as prescribed

by the commission. Each Column (2) adjustment shall be

separately identified and reflected in Schedule 16.

and common equity capital shall be calculated by using the

Volume 24, Issue 12

Virginia Register of Regulations

February 18, 2008

1479



Regulations

A per books regulatory accounting adjustment to reflect Job

Schedule 13 Columns (2)-(3) shall reflect rate base

Development Credit (JDC) Capital Expense shall be reflected
in Schedule 11 Column (2), if applicable. Column (3) JDC

information for each Commission approved rate adjustment
clause pursuant to §§56-585.1 A5 b, ¢ and d or A6 of the

Capital Expense shall be calculated as follows:

JDC Capital Expense = Rate Base (line 25) * weighted cost

Code of Virginia.

Cash working capital allowance shall be calculated using a

of JDC Capital in Schedule 3

The associated income tax savings shall be reflected in lines
5 and 6, Column (2) as follows:

Associated income tax savings = total average rate base

lead/lag study. Schedules 17 and 18 shall be provided

detailing the cash working capital computation for Schedule
13 Column (5). Applicants with jurisdictional per books

operating revenues less than $150 million may include a zero
cash working capital requirement rather than perform a

(line 25) * weight of JDC capital (Sch. 3) * weighted cost

lead/lag study.

of debt component of the JDC cost component (Sch. 3) *
(Federal and State Income Tax rate * -1)

Schedule 11 Line 15 other income/(expense) shown in
Column (3) shall be the current amount of other
income/(expense) categorized as jurisdictional in the
applicant’s last rate case.

Schedule 12 - Rate Base Statement — Earnings Test — Per

Schedule 14 - Rate Base Statement— Earnings Test —
Adjusted to Regulatory Accounting Basis

Instructions: Applicants meeting each of the four following
criteria_may omit this schedule in Annual Informational
Filings and rate applications: (1) the applicant is not subject
to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia; (2) the applicant is not
currently bound by performance-based regulation plan

Books

Instructions: Applicants meeting each of the four following
criteria_may omit this schedule in Annual Informational
Filings and rate applications: (1) the applicant is not subject
to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia; (2) the applicant is not
currently bound by performance-based regulation plan

authorized by the Commission pursuant to §56-235.6 of the

Code of Virginia; (3) the applicant has no Virginia
jurisdictional regulatory assets on its books; and (4) the

applicant is not seeking to establish a regulatory asset.

For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia,
Schedule 14 shall reflect combined generation and

authorized by the commission pursuant to §56-235.6 of the

Code of Virginia; (3) the applicant has no Virginia

distribution operations. Additionally, such utilities shall file
Schedule 14A, reflecting generation only operations, and

jurisdictional regulatory assets on its books; and (4) the

Schedule 14B, reflecting distribution only operations, using

applicant is not seeking to establish a regulatory asset.

Use format of attached schedule.

Utilities not subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia
shall file only Columns (1)-(3) on Schedule 12.

Cash working capital allowance shall be calculated using a
lead/lag study. Schedules 17 and 18 shall be provided

detailing the cash working capital computation for Schedule
12 Columns (1) and (3). Applicants with jurisdictional per

books operating revenues less than $150 million may include
a zero cash working capital requirement rather than perform a

the same format as Schedule 14.

Use format of attached schedule.

Cash working capital allowance shall be calculated using a
lead/lag study. Schedules 17 and 18 shall be provided

detailing the cash working capital computation for Schedule
14 Column (3). Applicants with jurisdictional per books

operating revenues less than $150 million may include a zero
cash working capital requirement rather than perform a

lead/lag study.
Schedule 14 Column (2) shall reflect adjustments necessary

lead/lag study.

Schedule 13 - Rate Base Statement — Earnings Test —
Generation and Distribution Per Books

Instructions: Utilities not subject to §56-585.1 of the Code
of Virginia may omit Schedule 13.

For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia,

Schedule 13 shall reflect combined generation and

to identify any financial differences between Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles and regulatory accounting as

prescribed by the commission.
Schedule 15 - Schedule of Regulatory Assets

If applicable per Schedules 9 and 12

Instructions:
instructions.

Use format of attached schedule.

distribution operations. Additionally, such utilities shall file
Schedule 13A, reflecting generation only operations, and
Schedule 13B, reflecting distribution only operations, using
the same format as Schedule 13.

Use format of attached schedule.

For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia,
Schedule 15 shall reflect combined generation and
distribution operations as well as generation only operations
and distribution only operations.
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All regulatory assets shall be individually listed with

All sources/uses of cash working capital shall be detailed in

associated deferred income tax. Indicate whether the

this schedule. The associated accumulated deferred income

regulatory asset is included in financial reporting or is

tax shall also be included as a source/use.

currently recognized for ratemaking purposes only.

The Net Source/Use of Average Cash Working Capital
determined in this schedule shall be included in Schedule 17.

Schedule 16 - Detail of Regulatory Accounting
Adjustments
Instructions: If applicable per Schedules 9 and 12

Support for the above schedule shall include a list of all
balance sheet subaccounts and titles. Indicate whether the

instructions.

Use format of attached schedule.

For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia,

account’s impact is included in (1) the balance sheet analysis,
(2) the capital structure, (3) the income statement portion of
the lead/lag study., or (4) excluded from cost of service.
Include a brief description of the costs included in each

Schedule 16 shall reflect combined generation and

account.

distribution operations as well as generation only operations
and distribution only operations.

Each regulatory accounting adjustment shall be numbered
sequentially beginning with ET-1 and listed under the

Schedule 19 - Rate of Return Statement — Per Books

Instructions: Use format of attached schedule.

For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia

appropriate description category (Operating Revenues,

Schedule 19 shall reflect combined generation and

Interest Expense, Common Equity Capital, etc.).

Each regulatory accounting adjustment shall be fully
explained in the description column of this schedule.

Regulatory accounting adjustments shall adjust from a
financial accounting basis to a regulatory accounting basis.
Adjustments to reflect going-forward operations shall not be
included on this schedule.

Detailed workpapers substantiating each adjustment shall be

distribution operations. Additionally, such utilities shall file
Schedule 19A, reflecting generation only operations, and
Schedule 19B, reflecting distribution only operations, using
the same format as Schedule 19.

Utilities not subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia
shall file only Columns (1)-(3) on Schedule 19.

Interest expense, preferred dividends and common equity
capital shall be calculated by using the capital structure

provided in Schedule 29.

Schedule 17 - Lead/Lag Cash Working Capital
Calculation — Earnings Test

Instructions: Use format of attached schedule.

For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia,

Schedule 17 shall reflect combined generation and
distribution operations. Additionally, such utilities shall file

Schedule 17A., reflecting generation only operations, and
Schedule 17B, reflecting distribution only operations, using
the same format as Schedule 17.

Total Balance Sheet Net Source/Use of Average Cash
Working Capital determined in Schedule 18 shall be included
in the Total Cash Working Capital amount in this schedule.

included in Schedule 3 or Schedule 8 and average rate year
level rate base.

Schedule 20 - Rate of Return Statement — Generation
and Distribution Per Books

Instructions: For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of
Virginia, Schedule 20 shall reflect combined generation and
distribution operations. Additionally, such utilities shall file
Schedule 20A, reflecting generation only operations, and
Schedule 20B, reflecting distribution only operations, using
the same format as Schedule 20.

Utilities not subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia
may omit Schedule 20.

Use format of attached schedule.

The Total Cash Working Capital amount determined in this

Schedule 20 Columns (2)-(4) shall reflect revenues,

schedule shall be included in Schedules 12-14.

Schedule 18 - Balance Sheet Analysis — Earnings Test

Instructions: Use format of attached schedule.

For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia,

Schedule 18 shall reflect combined generation and

expenses and rate base for each commission-approved rate
adjustment clause pursuant to §§56-585.1 A4, A5b,candd

or A 6 of the Code of Virginia.
Interest expense, preferred dividends and common equity

capital shall be calculated by using the capital structure
included in Schedule 3 or Schedule 8 and average rate year

distribution operations as well as generation only operations

level rate base.

and distribution only operations.
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Schedule 21 - Rate of Return Statement — Reflecting
Ratemaking Adjustments

Instructions: Use format of attached schedule.

For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia

detailing the cash working capital computation for Column
(5). Applicants with jurisdictional per books operating

revenues less than $150 million may include a zero cash
working capital requirement rather than perform a lead/lag
study.

Schedule 21 shall reflect combined generation and
distribution operations. Additionally, such utilities shall file
Schedule 21A, reflecting generation only operations, and
Schedule 21B, reflecting distribution only operations, using

Schedule 24 - Rate Base Statement — Adjusted -
Reflecting Ratemaking Adjustments

Instructions: Use format of attached schedule.

the same format as Schedule 21.

Schedule 21 Column (2) adjustments shall be separately

For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia,
Schedule 24 shall reflect combined generation and

identified and reflected in Schedule 25.

Interest expense, preferred dividends and common equity
capital shall be calculated by using the capital structure
included in Schedule 3 or Schedule 8 and average rate year
level rate base.

After ratemaking adjustments, JDC capital expense shall be
calculated as follows:

Total rate base (line 28) * weighted cost of JDC capital in
Schedule 3 or 8

Schedule 22 - Rate Base Statement — Per Books

Instructions: Use format of attached schedule.

Utilities not subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia
shall file only Columns (1)-(3) on Schedule 22.

Cash working capital allowance shall be calculated using a
lead/lag study. Schedules 27 and 28 shall be provided
detailing the cash working capital computation for Column
(1), (3) and (7). Applicants with jurisdictional per books

distribution operations. Additionally, such utilities shall file
Schedule 24A, reflecting generation only operations, and
Schedule 24B, reflecting distribution only operations, using
the same format as Schedule 24.

Cash working capital allowance shall be calculated using a
lead/lag study. Schedules 27 and 28 shall be provided
detailing the cash working capital computation for Column
(3). Applicants with jurisdictional per books operating
revenues less than $150 million may include a zero cash
working capital requirement rather than perform a lead/lag
study.

Schedule 25 - Detail of Ratemaking Adjustments

Instructions: Use format of attached schedule.

For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia,
Schedule 25 shall reflect combined generation and
distribution operations as well as generation only operations
and distribution only operations.

Each adjustment shall be numbered sequentially and listed

operating revenues less than $150 million may include a zero

under the appropriate description category (Operating

cash working capital requirement rather than perform a

Revenues, Interest Expense, Common Equity Capital, etc.).

lead/lag study.

Schedule 23 - Rate Base Statement — Generation and
Distribution Per Books

Instructions: Use format of attached schedule.

For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia,
Schedule 23 shall reflect combined generation and
distribution operations. Additionally, such utilities shall file
Schedule 23A, reflecting generation only operations, and
Schedule 23B, reflecting distribution only operations, using

Ratemaking adjustments shall reflect a rate year level of
revenues and expenses. Rate base adjustments may reflect no
more than a rate year average. In Expedited Filings, Column
(4) Ratemaking Adjustments shall reflect a rate year level of

only those types of adjustments previously approved for the
applicant.

Detailed workpapers substantiating each adjustment shall be
provided in Schedule 29.

Schedule 26 - Revenue Requirement Reconciliation

the same format as Schedule 23.

Utilities not subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia
may omit Schedule 23.
Schedule 23 Columns (2) - (4) shall reflect rate base

information for each commission-approved rate adjustment
clause pursuant to §§56-585.1 A4, AS5b,cand d or A 6 of

the Code of Virginia.

Cash working capital allowance shall be calculated using a
lead/lag study. Schedules 27 and 28 shall be provided

Instructions: For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of
Virginia, Schedule 26 shall reflect combined generation and
distribution operations. Additionally, such utilities shall file
Schedule 26A., reflecting generation only operations, and
Schedule 26B, reflecting distribution only operations, using
the same format as Schedule 26.

Provide a revenue reconciliation of each issue that affects
the revenue requirement. All components of each issue shall
be detailed (i.e. payroll and related = payroll, benefits, payroll
taxes, and related tax effect). Cash working capital shall be
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considered a separate issue rather than as a component of
each issue.

Schedule 27 - Lead/Lag Cash Working Capital
Calculation — Adjusted

Instructions: Use format of attached schedule.

For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia,

Schedule 27 shall reflect combined generation and
distribution operations. Additionally, such utilities shall file

Schedule 27A., reflecting generation only operations, and
Schedule 27B, reflecting distribution only operations, using
the same format as Schedule 27.

Total Balance Sheet Net Source/Use of Average Cash
Working Capital determined in Schedule 28 shall be included
in the Total Cash Working Capital amount in this schedule.

The Total Cash Working Capital amount determined in this
schedule shall be included in Schedules 22-24.

Schedule 28 - Balance Sheet Analysis — Adjusted

Instructions: Use format of attached schedule.

For utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia,

Schedule 28 shall reflect combined generation and
distribution operations as well as generation only operations
and distribution only operations.

All sources/uses of cash working capital shall be detailed in
this schedule. The associated accumulated deferred income
tax shall also be included as a source/use.

The Net Source/Use of Average Cash Working Capital
determined in this schedule shall be included in Schedule 27.

Support for the above schedule should include a list of all
balance sheet subaccounts and titles. Indicate whether the
account’s impact is included in (1) the balance sheet analysis,
(2) the capital structure, (3) the income statement portion of
the lead lag study, or (4) excluded from cost of service.
Include a brief description of the costs included in each
account.

Schedule 29 - Workpapers for Earnings Test and
Ratemaking Adjustments

Instructions:

(a) Provide a detailed narrative explaining the purpose,
methodology, any relative Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) statement and commission precedent for
each adjustment identified in subsections (b) and (d)
below.

b) Provide a summary calculation of each earnings test
adjustment included in Schedule 16. Fach summary
calculation shall identify the origin of each data item
shown and include a reference to all source documents.

(c) Provide all documents and information necessary to
support the summary calculation required in subsection (b)
for each proposed earnings test adjustment. Amounts
identified as per books costs shall include any
documentation necessary to verify such amount to
Schedule 40A. Working papers shall be indexed and
tabbed for each adjustment and include the name, phone
number and email address of all employees responsible for
the adjustment. All documents and information as
referenced above should include, but not be limited to,

general ledgers, payroll distributions, billing determinants,
invoices, and actuarial reports.

(d) Provide a summary calculation of each rate year
adjustment included in Schedule 25. Each summary
calculation shall identify the origin of each data item
shown and include a reference to all source documents.

(e) Provide all documents and information necessary to
support the summary calculation required in subsection (d)
for each proposed rate year adjustment. Amounts identified
as per books costs shall include any documentation
necessary to verify such amount to Schedule 40b. Working
papers shall be indexed and tabbed for each adjustment and
include the name, phone number and email address of all
employees responsible for the adjustment. All documents
and information as referenced above should include, but
not be limited to, general ledgers, payroll distributions,
billing determinants, invoices, and actuarial reports.

(f) Investor-owned electric utilities subject to §56-585.1 of

the Code of Virginia shall separately identify functional

information for each earnings test and proposed rate year
adjustment required in subsections (b) and (d)

Schedule 30 - Revenue and Expense Variance Analysis

Instructions:  Applicant _shall quantify  jurisdictional

operating_revenues and system operating and maintenance
(O&M) expenses by primary account as specified by the
appropriate federal or state Uniform System of Accounts
(Federal  Energy  Regulatory  Commission,  Federal
Communications Commission, National Association of
Regulatory Commissioners) (hereinafter referred to as
"USOA account") during the test period and the preceding 12
months. Also, provide jurisdictional sales volumes by
customer class for the test period.

Applicants not subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia

shall provide a detailed explanation of all jurisdictional
revenue and system expense increases or decreases of more
than 10% during the test period compared to the previous 12-
month period. The expense variance analysis applies to test
period expense items greater than one-hundredth of one
percent (.0001) of total Operating & Maintenance (O&M)
expenses for utilities with O&M expenses exceeding $100

million, and one-tenth of one percent (.001) of total O&M
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expenses for utilities with O&M expenses below $100

report clearly identifying what portions of the required

million.

Applicants subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia
shall provide a detailed analysis of all jurisdictional revenue

information are included in the Annual Report of Affiliate
Transactions.

Provide a narrative description of each affiliated service

and system expense increases or decreases of more than 10%

received or provided during the test period.

during the 12-month test period compared to the previous 12-
month period. The analysis shall be by month and identify
applicant payroll and overheads as well as each third party
cost by transaction. Additionally, the applicant shall have an
accounts payable ledger or schedule of all accounts payable
for review at the applicant’s office as of the date of the

applicant’s filing.
Schedule 31 - Advertising Expense

Instructions: A schedule detailing advertising expense by
USOA account and grouped according to the categories
identified in §56-235.2 of the Code of Virginia shall be
provided. Advertising costs that are not identifiable to any of
those categories shall be included in a separate category titled
"other." If applicant seeks rate relief, demonstrate that the
applicant's advertising meets the criteria established in §56-

235.2 of the Code of Virginia.
Schedule 32 - Storm Damage

Instructions: Provide a schedule identifying minor and major
storm damage expense by month, FERC account and internal

Provide a summary of affiliate transactions detailing costs
by type of service provided (e.g. accounting, auditing, legal

and regulatory, human resources, etc.) for each month of the

test period. Show the final USOA account distribution of all
costs billed to or by the regulated entity by month for the test

period.

Identify all amounts billed to an affiliate and then billed
back to the regulated entity.

Cost records and market analyses supporting all affiliated
charges billed to or by the regulated entity/division shall be
maintained and made readily available for commission staff
review. This shall include supporting detail of costs
including the return component) incurred by the affiliated
interest rendering the service and the allocation methodology.
In situations when the pricing is required to be the higher
lower) of cost or market and market is unavailable, note each
such transaction and have data supporting such a finding
available for commission staff review.

If affiliate charges are booked per a pricing mechanism

or_third-party cost for the test year and the previous three
years. Include a detailed description of the damage sustained,

other than that approved by the commission, the regulated
entity shall provide a reconciliation of books to commission-

the length of outages associated with the storm damage and

approved pricing, including an explanation of why the

work necessary to restore service.

Schedule 33 - Scheduled and Unscheduled Generation
Unit OQutages

Instructions: This schedule applies to those applicants

subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia. Provide a

detailed schedule of each generating unit outage identifying

commission-approved pricing is not used for booking
purposes.

Schedule 36 - Income Taxes

Instructions: Provide a schedule detailing the computation of
test period current state and federal income taxes on a total

company and Virginia jurisdictional basis. Such schedule

whether the outage was scheduled or unscheduled, length of

should provide a complete reconciliation between book and

outage, description of cause of outage and cost by FERC

taxable income showing all individual differences.

account.

Schedule 34 - Miscellaneous Expenses

Instructions: Provide a description of amounts paid and
USOA accounts charged for each charitable and educational
donation, each payment to associated industry organizations,
and all other miscellaneous general expenses. Advertising
expenses included in Schedule 31 should be excluded from
this schedule.

Schedule 35 - Affiliate Services

Instructions: For purposes of this schedule affiliate services

Additionally, provide a schedule detailing the computation of
fully adjusted, current state and federal income taxes
applicable to the Virginia jurisdiction.

Provide a schedule detailing the individual items of deferred
state and federal income tax expense for the test period on a
total company and Virginia jurisdictional basis. Additionally,
provide a schedule detailing the computation of fully
adjusted, deferred state and federal income tax applicable to
the Virginia jurisdiction.

Provide a detailed reconciliation between the statutory and
effective income tax rates for the test period. Schedule should

shall be defined to include those services between regulated

quantify individual reconciling items by dollar amount and

and nonregulated divisions of an incumbent utility. If any

percentage. Individual items should include but not be limited

portion of the required information has been filed with the

to  permanent  differences  (itemize) flow-through

commission as part of an applicant's Annual Report of

depreciation, excess deferred FIT amortization and deferred

Affiliate Transactions, the applicant may reference such

Investment Tax Credit (ITC) amortization.
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Provide a detailed listing of individual accumulated deferred

Schedule 39 - Out-of-Period Book Entries

income tax and accumulated deferred ITC amounts as of the
end of test period. Separately identify those items affecting
the computation of rate base on both a total company and
Virginia jurisdictional basis. Additionally, provide a detailed
listing of individual accumulated deferred income tax and

accumulated deferred ITC amounts for the earnings test rate
base (if applicable), the end of test period rate base, and the

Instructions: Provide a summary schedule prepared from an
analysis of journal entries showing "out-of-period" items

booked during the test period. Show journal entry number,
amount, USOA account and explanation of charge.

Schedule 40 - Jurisdictional and Class Cost of Service
Study

fully-adjusted rate base, on a Virginia jurisdictional basis.

Provide stand-alone federal and state income tax returns
applicable to the test period.

Provide a detailed reconciliation between the federal and

Instructions: Use format of attached schedule.

Investor-owned electric utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the

Code of Virginia shall provide separate generation,
transmission and distribution information for subsections (a),

state income tax liabilities per these stand-alone tax returns

(b) and (c) as well as bundled information. Transmission shall

and the actual per book federal and state income tax liabilities

reflect the Virginia retail information that has been converted

for the test period, on a total company and Virginia

from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)

jurisdictional basis.

Provide a detailed reconciliation between deferred federal
and state income tax expense computed on a stand-alone basis
and the actual per book deferred federal and state income tax

expense, on a total company and Virginia jurisdictional basis.

Provide a detailed reconciliation between individual
accumulated deferred federal and state income tax assets and
liabilities computed on a stand-alone basis and the actual per
book accumulated deferred income tax amounts as of the end
of the test period, on a total company and Virginia
jurisdictional basis. Additionally, provide a detailed listing of
individual accumulated deferred income tax assets and
liabilities computed on a stand-alone basis for the earnings
test rate base (if applicable), the end of test period rate base,

and the fully-adjusted rate base, on a Virginia jurisdictional
basis.

Tax returns filed per this schedule may be excluded from the
Microsoft Excel version required per 20VAC5-201-10 H.

Schedule 37 - Organization

Instructions: Provide an organizational chart of the applicant
and its parent company detailing subsidiaries and divisions.
Provide details of any material corporate reorganizations
since the applicant’s last rate case. Explain the reasons and
any ratemaking impact of each such reorganization.

Schedule 38 - Changes in Accounting Procedures

Instructions: Detail any material changes in accounting
procedures adopted by either the parent/service company or

the utility since the applicant’s last rate case. Explain any
ratemaking impact of such changes.
Identify any write-offs or write-downs associated with assets

(i.e. plant, tax accounts, etc.) that have been retained,
transferred or sold.

approved wholesale information. Additionally, provide a
detailed calculation and explanation showing how the FERC

wholesale transmission information is converted to Virginia
retail information.

(a) Provide detailed calculations for all jurisdictional
allocations for each revenue, expense and rate base USOA
account used to create Schedules 9 and 10. Allocations
should be based on test year average data. Show the
allocation basis for each primary USOA account and for
any amount included therein with a unique allocation basis.
Explain the methodology used and why such method is
proposed. Discuss all changes in the applicant’s operations
that have materially changed any allocation factor since the
last rate case.

(b) Provide detailed calculations for all jurisdictional
allocations for each revenue, expense and rate base USOA
account used to create Schedules 19 and 22. Show the
allocation basis for each primary USOA account and for
any amount included therein with a unique allocation basis.
Explain the methodology used and why such method is
proposed. Discuss all changes in the applicant’s operations
that have materially changed any allocation factor since the
last rate case. For electric utilities, provide the calculations
supporting the applicant’s line loss percentages.

(c) Provide a class cost of service study used to create
Schedules 21 and 24. Show the allocation basis for each
primary  USOA account and for any amount included
therein with a unique allocation basis. Explain the
methodology used and why such method is proposed.

Discuss all changes in the applicant’s operations that have

materially changed any allocation factor since the last rate
case.

(d) Applicant shall provide appropriate supporting cost
data for new allocation methodologies or rate design
proposals in expedited rate applications.
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Schedule 41 - Proposed Rates and Tariffs

Instructions: Provide a summary of the rates designed to
effect the proposed revenue increase. Provide a copy of all
tariff pages that the applicant proposes to revise in this
proceeding, with revisions indicated by a dashed line (--)

Applicant shall file a Schedule 45 for each rate clause
approved by the commission by month for both the first and
second year of the two successive 12-month test periods in a
biennial review.

Provide a calculation of the Allowance for Funds Used

through proposed deletions and by underlining proposed
additions.

Schedule 42 - Present and Proposed Revenues

Instructions:

(a) Provide the detailed calculations supporting total per
books revenues in Column (3) of Schedule 21. The present
revenues from each of the applicant’s services shall be
determined by multiplying the current rates times the test
period billing units (by rate block, if applicable).

(b) Provide a detailed calculation supporting total adjusted
revenues in Column (5) of Schedule 21. The proposed

During Construction rate that was recorded during the test
ear.

Provide support for the monthly Allowance for Funds Used
During_Construction accruals recorded on the applicant’s
books.

Provide a schedule of costs for each rate adjustment clause,
by month and FERC account, for the test year. Indicate which
clauses the applicant will propose to include in future base
rates rather than through a separate rate adjustment clause.

Schedule 46 - Return on Equity Peer Group Benchmark

Investor-owned electric utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the

revenues from each of applicant's services shall be
determined by multiplying the proposed rates by the

adjusted billing units (by rate block, if applicable). Detail
by rate schedule all miscellaneous charges and other

Code of Virginia shall provide all documentation supporting

the return on equity benchmark proposed pursuant to §56-
585.1 A 2 a and b of the Code of Virginia. Such

documentation shall include a complete list of all potential

revenues, if applicable. Reconcile per books billing units to

adjusted billing units itemizing changes such as customer
growth, weather, btu content and miscellaneous revenues.

The revenue changes for applicant’s services should be

peer group utilities with corresponding returns calculated for
each of the three years within the requisite three-year period,

Securities and Exchange Commission documents in which
such peer group returns are reported for the three-year period,

subtotaled into the applicant’s traditional categories.

Schedule 43 - Sample Billing

Instructions: Electric, natural gas and water or sewer utilities
shall provide a sample billing analysis detailing the effect on
each rate schedule at representative levels of consumption.

Schedule 44 - Per Books Deferrals Recorded Pursuant to
§856-249.6, 56-582 and 58.1-3833 of the Code of Virginia

Instructions: Use format of attached schedule.

Applicant shall file a Schedule 44 for each per books
deferral by month for the test year.

Investor-owned electric utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the
Code of Virginia shall file Schedule 44 for both the first and

a detailed explanation of why utilities were excluded from the
proxy group, and a spreadsheet showing how such returns
were calculated.

Schedule 47 - Rate Cap Adjustments filed Pursuant to
§56-582 or §56-585.1 A5 of the Code of Virginia

Provide all documents, contracts, studies, investigations or
correspondence that support projected costs for each rate
adjustment. Such information should demonstrate that the
costs are incremental and not reflected in previously approved
rates.

Provide the annual revenue requirement for the projected
cost by year by rate adjustment.

Provide a detailed description of the accounting procedures

second year of the two successive 12-month test periods in a

and internal controls that the company will institute to

biennial review.

Investor-owned electric utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the

identify all costs associated with each rate adjustment.

Schedule 48 - Projected Rate Adjustment Clause

Code of Virginia shall identify off-system sales margins
calculated pursuant to §56-249.6 of the Code of Virginia in

Schedule 44 and demonstrate that such margins have no
effect on Virginia jurisdictional returns reflected in Schedules
11 and Schedule 21 in a biennial review.

Schedule 45 - Rate Adjustment Clauses Pursuant to 856-
585.1 A 4, 5 or 6 of the Code of Virginia

Instructions: Use format of attached schedule.

Pursuant to 856-585.1 A 4,5 b, c and d or 6 of the Code of
Virginia

Instructions: Applicant shall provide a schedule of all
projected costs by type of cost and year associated with each
rate adjustment clause pursuant to §56-585.1 A4,5b,cand d
or 6 of the Code of Virginia that has been approved by the

commission or for which the applicant is seeking initial
approval.
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Provide all documents, contracts, studies, investigations or

Provide detailed information relative to the applicant’s

correspondence that support projected costs proposed to be

methodology for allocating the revenue requirement among

recovered via a rate adjustment clause.

Provide the annual revenue requirement over the duration of

rate classes and the design of the class rates.

Schedule 49 - Total Aggregated Revenues and Consumer

the proposed rate adjustment clause by year and by class.

Provide a detailed description of the accounting procedures

Price Index (*'CPI'")

Investor-owned electric utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the

and internal controls that the company will institute to
identify all costs associated with each rate adjustment clause.

(a) For a rate adjustment clause filed pursuant to §56-585.1
A 4 of the Code of Virginia provide the docket/case
number and FERC ruling approving the wholesale
transmission rate/cost for which the applicant is seeking
recovery approval.

(b) For a rate adjustment clause filed pursuant to §56-585.1
A 6 of the Code of Virginia provide information relative to
the need and prudence of proposed generating unit
addition(s). Such statement should demonstrate that the
proposed generating unit is consistent with a least cost
integrated resource plan.

Schedule 50 - Additional Schedules

Code of Virginia shall file the following:

(a) A detailed schedule showing the calculation of total
aggregate regulated rates as defined in §56-585.1 A9 of
the Code of Virginia for each year beginning with calendar
year 2010. Provide supporting documentation of the
calculation of the average rate for each class.

(b) A schedule of annual increases in the United States
Average Consumer Price Index as described in §56-585.1
A 9 of the Code of Virginia beginning with calendar year
2010. Additionally, include the annual compounded
amount.

Reserved for additional exhibits presented by the applicant to be labeled S0A et seq.

COMPANY NAME

Exhibit No.:
HISTORIC PROFITABILITY AND MARKET DATA Witness:
CASE NO. PUE------ Schedule 1
Consolidated Company Profitability and  4th Year 3rd Year 2nd Year Ist Year Test Period
Capital Market Data Prior Prior Prior Prior

A. Ratios

Return on Year End Equity
Return on Average Equity

Earnings Per Share
Dividends Per Share

Payout Ratio

Market Price of Common Stock:

Year's High
Year's Low

Average Price

Dividend Yield on Common Stock:

Price Earnings Ratio
B. External Funds Raised
External Funds Raised - Debt:

Dollar Amount Raised

Coupon Rate
Bond Rating(s)
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(Rating Service)

External Funds Raised - Preferred Stock:

Dollar Amount Raised
Dividend Rate
Preferred Stock Rating(s)

(Rating Service)

External Funds Raised - Common Equity

Dollar Amount from Public Offering
Number Shares Issued
Average Offering Price

C. Subsidiary Data

Return on Year End Equity
Return on Average Equity

External Funds Raised - Bonds:

Dollar Amount Raised

Coupon Rate
Bond Rating(s)

(Rating Service)

External Funds Raised - Preferred Stock

Dollar Amount Raised
Dividend Rate
Preferred Stock Rating(s)

(Rating Service)

Equity Capital Transfer

From Parent

(Dollar Amount-Net)
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COMPANY NAME
INTEREST AND CASH FLOW COVERAGE DATA
CASE NO. PUE------

4th Year

3rd Year

Exhibit No.:

Witness:

Schedule 2
1st Year Test

2nd Year

Coverage Ratios and Cash Flow Profile Data Prior

Prior

Prior

A. Consolidated Company Data

Interest Coverage Ratio

Pre-Tax

Cash Flow Coverage Ratios

a. Common Dividend Coverage

b. Cash Flow Coverage of Construction Expenditures

c. Cash After Dividends Coverage of Construction
Expenditures

Data for Interest Coverage

1 Net Income
2 Income Taxes

3 Interest on Mortgages

4 Other Interest
5 Total Interest

6 Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (Lines 1+2+5)

Data for Cash Flow Coverage

7 Net Income

8 AFUDC

9 Amortization

10 Depreciation

11 Change in Deferred Taxes

12 Change in Investment Tax Credits
13 Preferred Dividends Paid

14 Cash Flow Generated (Lines 1-8+9+10+11+12-13)

15 Construction Expenditures
16 Common Dividends Paid
B. Subsidiary Data

Interest Coverage Ratio

Pre-Tax (Line 6+Line 5)

Cash Flow Coverage Ratios

a. Common Dividend Coverage (Line 14,16)

b. Cash Flow Coverage of Construction Expenditures

(Line 14,15)

Prior

Period
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c. Cash After Dividends Coverage of Construction
Expenditures ((Lines 14-16).15)

Data for Interest Coverage

1 Net Income
2 Income Taxes

3 Interest on Mortgages

4 Other Interest
5 Total Interest

6 Earnings Before Interest and Taxes

Data for Cash Flow Coverage

7 Net Income
8 AFUDC

9 Amortization

10 Depreciation
11 Change in Deferred Taxes

12 Change in Investment Tax Credits
13 Preferred Dividends Paid

14 Cash Flow Generated

15 Construction Expenditures

16 Common Dividends Paid

COMPANY NAME Exhibit No.:
CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND COST OF CAPITAL STATEMENT - PER BOOKS AND AVERAGE ~ Witness:
CASE NO. PUE------ Schedule 3

@ 2 3) €3] (6)] (6)

Five-Quarter
4th Year 3rd Year 2nd Year Ist Year Test or 13-Month

Prior Prior Prior Prior Period Average

A. Capital Structure Per Balance Sheet ($)

Short-Term Debt

Customer Deposits
Other Current Liabilities

Long-Term Debt
Preferred & Preference Stock

Common Equity
Investment Tax Credits

Other Tax Deferrals
Other Liabilities

Total Capitalization
B. Capital Structure Approved for
Ratemaking Purposes ($)
Short-Term Debt'”
Long-Term Debt
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Preferred & Preference Stock
Job Development Credits
Common Equity

Other (specify)

Total Capitalization

C. Capital Structure Weights for
Ratemaking Purposes

Short-Term Debt

Long-Term Debt

Preferred & Preference Stock
Job Development Credits
Common Equity

Other (specify)
Total Capitalization (100%)

D. Component Capital Cost Rates (%)

Short-Term Debt

Long-Term Debt

Preferred & Preference Stock
Job Development Credits
Common Equity (Authorized)

Other (specify)
E. Component Weighted Cost Rates (%)

Short-Term Debt

Long-Term Debt

Preferred & Preference Stock
Job Development Credits
Common Equity (Authorized)

Other (specify)
Weighted Cost of Capital

DOFor ratemaking purposes, short-term debt shall be based on a daily average balance over the test year or alternatively on a 13-month

average balance over the test year.

COMPANY NAME
RATE OF RETURN STATEMENT - EARNINGS TEST - PER BOOKS FOR THE TEST YEAR  Exhibit No.:
ENDED --/--/-- Witness:
USING THIRTEEN MONTH AVERAGE RATE BASE AND COMMON EQUITY Schedule 9
@ 2) 3) 4 (®)] (6) @
Distribution Virginia
Virginia Retail Per Books Jurisdictional
CLt.Of Transmission  Generation M
. Service Per Books Per Books Distr. Cost of C_OSt of
LINE Total Non-Juris- Amount Service
NO. Company ictional (D-(2) (5) +(6)
1 OPERATING REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE
DEDUCTIONS
3 OPERATION &
MAINTENANCE EXPENSE
4 DEPRECIATION &
AMORTIZATION
5 FEDERAL INCOME TAXES
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I

STATE INCOME TAXES

TAXES OTHER THAN
INCOME TAXES

(GAIN)/LOSS ON
DISPOSITION OF

PROPERTY

9 TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
DEDUCTIONS

10 OPERATING INCOME
11 PLUS: AFUDC

1

|oo

12 LESS: CHARITABLE
DONATIONS

13 INTEREST EXPENSE ON
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

14 INTEREST ON SUPPLIER
REFUNDS

15 OTHER INTEREST EXPENSE
(INCOME)

16 ADJUSTED OPERATING INCOME

17 PLUS: OTHER INCOME
EXPENSE)

18 LESS: INTEREST EXPENSE-
BOOKED

19 PREFERRED DIVIDENDS
20 JDC CAPITAL EXPENSE n/a

21 INCOME AVAILABLE FOR
COMMON EQUITY

22  ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING
CAPITAL

PLUS: NET UTILITY PLANT

LESS: OTHER RATE BASE
DEDUCTIONS

TOTAL AVERAGE RATE BASE
TOTAL AVERAGE CAPITAL

AVERAGE COMMON EQUITY
CAPITAL

28 % RATE OF RETURN EARNED
ON AVG. RATE BASE

29 % RATE OF RETURN EARNED
ON AVG. COMMON EQ.

R I3
I

I

kR

n/a n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a n/a

Column (2) nonjurisdictional shall include generation, transmission and distribution amounts attributable to nonjurisdictional customers.

Retail transmission shall not be excluded in this column.
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COMPANY NAME
RATE OF RETURN STATEMENT - EARNINGS TEST Exhibit No.:
GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION - PER BOOKS FOR THE TEST YEAR ENDED --/--/-- Witness:
USING THIRTEEN MONTH AVERAGE RATE BASE AND COMMON EQUITY Schedule 10

] @] 3 €]

Rate Virginia Juris.
Adjustment Cost of Service

Virginia Juris. Rate Adjustment Clause Excluding Rate

Cost of Service  Clause Pursuant to Pursuant to Adjustment
LINE Including Rate ~ §56-585.1 ASb,c  §56-585.1 A Clauses
NO. Adjusting Clauses ord 6 ()-2)-(3)

OPERATING REVENUE

—_

N

OPERATING REVENUE
DEDUCTIONS

OPERATION &
MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

DEPRECIATION &
AMORTIZATION

|

|

FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

STATE INCOME TAXES

(o))

TAXES OTHER THAN
INCOME TAXES

8 (GAINYLOSS ON
DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
DEDUCTIONS

10 OPERATING INCOME

1

o

11 PLUS: AFUDC

12 LESS: CHARITABLE
DONATIONS

13 INTEREST EXPENSE
ON CUSTOMER
DEPOSITS

14 INTEREST ON
SUPPLIER REFUNDS

15 OTHER INTEREST
EXPENSE/(INCOME)

16 ADJUSTED OPERATING
INCOME

17 PLUS: OTHER
INCOME/(EXPENSE)

18 LESS: INTEREST EXPENSE-
BOOKED

19 PREFERRED
DIVIDENDS
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20

21

3

|l\)
~

[\ [\ [\
|\l |O\ (%]

29

JDC CAPITAL n/a n/a
EXPENSE

INCOME AVAILABLE FOR
COMMON EQUITY

ALLOWANCE FOR
WORKING CAPITAL

PLUS: NET UTILITY PLANT

LESS: OTHER RATE BASE
DEDUCTIONS

TOTAL AVERAGE RATE BASE

TOTAL AVERAGE CAPITAL

AVERAGE COMMON EQUITY
CAPITAL

% RATE OF RETURN EARNED
ON AVG. RATE BASE

% RATE OF RETURN EARNED
ON AVG. COMMON EQ.

n/a

n/a

Column (1) amounts for utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia shall come from Schedule 9 Column (7).

COMPANY NAME

RATE OF RETURN STATEMENT - EARNINGS TEST

ADJUSTED TO A REGULATORY ACCOUNTING BASIS FOR THE TEST YEAR ENDED --/--/--

LINE NO.

|—

[\S]

(9%}

I

I

1

[Ne)

USING THIRTEEN MONTH AVERAGE RATE BASE AND COMMON EQUITY

€] 2

Per Books Regulatory

Exhibit No.:
Witness:
Schedule 11
(€)] “4) (5)
Virginia
Jurisdictional
Cost of Quantification Cost of Service
Service after of after

Virginia Juris. Accounting
Cost of Service Adjustments

OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING REVENUE
DEDUCTIONS

OPERATION &
MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

DEPRECIATION &
AMORTIZATION

FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

STATE INCOME TAXES

TAXES OTHER THAN
INCOME TAXES

(GAIN)/LOSS ON
DISPOSITION OF

PROPERTY

TOTAL OPERATING
REVENUE DEDUCTIONS

Adjustments

Over/Under Quantification

(d+2)

Earnings

3)+4)
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10 OPERATING INCOME

11 PLUS:
12 LESS:

AFUDC
CHARITABLE

DONATIONS

INTEREST
EXPENSE ON
CUSTOMER
DEPOSITS

INTEREST ON
SUPPLIER
REFUNDS

OTHER INTEREST
EXPENSE/(INCOME)

16 ADJUSTED OPERATING

INCOME
17 PLUS:

18 LESS:

OTHER
INCOME/(EXPENSE)

INTEREST

EXPENSE-BOOKED

PREFERRED
DIVIDENDS

JIDC CAPITAL
EXPENSE

21 INCOME AVAILABLE FOR

COMMON EQUITY

22 ALLOWANCE FOR

WORKING CAPITAL

23 PLUS:

NET UTILITY

24 LESS:

PLANT
OTHER RATE BASE

DEDUCTIONS

25 TOTAL AVERAGE RATE

BASE

26 TOTAL AVERAGE CAPITAL

27 AVERAGE COMMON EQUITY
CAPITAL

28 % RATE OF RETURN EARNED
ON AVG. RATE BASE

29 % RATE OF RETURN EARNED

ON AVG. COMMON EQ.

Column (1) amounts for utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia shall come from Schedule 10 Column (4) and shall exclude Rate

Adjustment Clauses.

Column (1) amounts for utilities not subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia shall come from Schedule 9 Column (3).
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COMPANY NAME
RATE OF RETURN STATEMENT - EARNINGS TEST Exhibit No.:
GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION PER BOOKS Witness:
THIRTEEN-MONTH AVERAGE PER BOOKS RATE BASE Schedule 13
@D 2 (€] (€]
Rate
Virginia Juris. Adjustment
Cost of Service ~ Rate Adjustment Clause Virginia Juris. Cost of
Including Rate  Clause Pursuant to Pursuant to Service Excluding Rate
LINE Adjustment §56-585.1 A5b, ¢ §56-585.1 A Adjustment Clauses
NO. Clauses ord 6 (1)-(2)-(3)
1 ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING

CAPITAL
MATERIAL AND SUPPLIES

[\S]

CASH WORKING CAPITAL
(LEAD LAG STUDY)

DEFERRED FUEL/DEFERRED
GAS NET OF FIT

OTHER WORKING CAPITAL

TOTAL ALLOWANCE FOR
WORKING CAPITAL

NET UTILITY PLANT

(98}

I+~

|

(o)

UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
ACQUISITION ADJUSTMENTS

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN
PROGRESS

11 PLANT HELD FOR FUTURE
USE

12 LESS: ACCUMULATED
PROVISION FOR
DEPRECIATION

13 AND
AMORTIZATION

14 CUSTOMER
ADVANCES FOR
CONSTRUCTION

15 TOTAL NET UTILITY PLANT
RATE BASE DEDUCTIONS
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
SUPPLIER REFUNDS

ACCUMULATED DEFERRED
INCOME TAXES

OTHER COST FREE CAPITAL

TOTAL RATE BASE
DEDUCTIONS

TOTAL AVERAGE RATE BASE

S 1o o 1N

(S
—_ (e}

N
\S}

Column (1) amounts for utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia shall come from Schedule 12 Column (7).
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COMPANY NAME
RATE BASE STATEMENT - EARNINGS TEST Exhibit No.:
ADJUSTED TO A REGULATORY ACCOUNTING BASIS Witness:
THIRTEEN-MONTH AVERAGE PER BOOKS RATE BASE Schedule 14
(€8] 2 3)
Virginia
oo Jurisdictional
Per Books Virginia Regulatory Cost of Service
LINE Juris. Cost of Accounting after Adjustments
NO. Service Adjustments (OH)+(2)
1 ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL
2 MATERIAL AND SUPPLIES
3 CASH WORKING CAPITAL (LEAD LAG STUDY)
4 DEFERRED FUEL/DEFERRED GAS NET OF FIT
5 OTHER WORKING CAPITAL
6 TOTAL ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL
7 NET UTILITY PLANT
8 UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
9 ACQUISITION ADJUSTMENTS
10 CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS
11 PLANT HELD FOR FUTURE USE
12 LESS: ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR
DEPRECIATION
13 AND AMORTIZATION
14 CUSTOMER ADVANCES FOR
CONSTRUCTION
15 TOTAL NET UTILITY PLANT
16 RATE BASE DEDUCTIONS
17 CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
18 SUPPLIER REFUNDS
19 ACCUMULATED DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
20 OTHER COST FREE CAPITAL
21 TOTAL RATE BASE DEDUCTIONS
22 TOTAL AVERAGE RATE BASE

Column (1) amounts for utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia shall come from Schedule 13 Column (4) and shall exclude
Rate Adjustment Clauses.
Column (1) amounts for utilities not subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia shall come from Schedule 12 Column (3).
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20VAC5-201-100. Schedules 15 through 22 for Chapter 201.

The following schedules are to be used in conjunction with this chapter.

Account
Number

Totals

BE

COMPANY NAME
SCHEDULE OF REGULATORY ASSETS
AS OF --/--/--
A 2 3

Start of Year

Start of Year

4

Test Year

Year Juris.

Description Date System

Date Juris.

Amortization

Factor

Amount Amount

Expense

Individual Regulatory Asset

Related Deferred Income
Tax

Individual Regulatory Asset

Related Deferred Income
Tax

Individual Regulatory Asset

Related Deferred Income
Tax

COMPANY NAME

DETAIL OF REGULATORY ACCOUNTING ADJUSTMENTS

REFLECTED IN COL. (--) OF SCHEDULES -- AND --

ADJUSTMENT
INCOME ADJUSTMENTS
OPERATING REVENUE ADJUSTMENTS
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES ADJUSTMENTS
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS
INCOME TAXES ADJUSTMENTS
TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME ADJUSTMENTS

GAIN ON PROPERTY DISPOSITION ADJUSTMENTS
CHARITABLE DONATIONS ADJUSTMENTS

OTHER INTEREST EXPENSE/(INCOME) ADJUSTMENTS
INTEREST EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS

PREFERRED DIVIDENDS ADJUSTMENTS

JDC CAPITAL EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS

ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL ADJUSTMENTS

Exhibit No.:
Schedule 15
3 6)
TestVer O8O
Accruals zate adusied
— Amount
Exhibit No.:
Witness:
Schedule 16
AMOUNT
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ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS
PLANT HELD FOR FUTURE USE ADJUSTMENTS

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS ADJUSTMENTS

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION ADJUSTMENTS

OTHER RATE BASE DEDUCTIONS ADJUSTMENTS
COMMON EQUITY CAPITAL ADJUSTMENTS

COMPANY NAME

LEAD/LAG CASH WORKING CAPITAL CALCULATION - EARNINGS TEST

FOR THE YEAR ENDED --/--/--

SUPPORTING COLUMN -- OF SCHEDULE --

) @ 3) €3]

Virginia
Juris. Per Books

Per Regulatory Amounts Average

(6]

Expense

Books Accounting After Daily

(Lead)/Lag

©6)

Revenue

(W)

Net
(Lead)/L

Amounts Adjustments Adj. Amount

OPERATING
EXPENSES

O&M Expenses:

Account # - Fuel Clause

Account # - Fuel Clause

Account # - Fuel Clause

Account # - Deferred Fuel

Payroll Expense

Benefits and Pension Expense

OPEB Expense

Regulatory Asset Amortization Expense

Uncollectible Expense

Stores Issues

Stored Undistributed

Accrued Vacation Expense

Prepaid Insurance Amortization Expense

Worker's Compensation Expense

Directors' Deferred Compensation Exp.

Storm Damage Expense

Transition Cost Expense

Restructuring Expense

Days

Lag

ag Days

Exhibit No.:
Witness:
Schedule 17

(8)

Working
Capital
(Provided)/
Required
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Contingent Liabilities

Other O&M Expenses

Depreciation Expense:

Depreciation Expense

Amortization Expense

Amortization Expense

Amortization of Regulatory Assets

Federal Income Taxes:

Current
Deferred
DFIT on items excluded from Rate Base

Deferred ITC

State Income Tax Expense

Taxes Other Than Income:

Property Tax Expense

Valuation Tax Expense

Business and Occupation Tax Expense

Payroll Tax Expense

Other Taxes
AFUDC

Gain/Loss of Disposition of Property

Charitable Donations

Interest on Customer Deposits

Other Expense/Income (A-t-1)

Other Income/Expense (B-t-1)

Interest Expense
Preferred Dividends

JDC Expense

Income Available for Common Equity

Totals

Plus: Customer Utility Taxes

BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

TOTAL CASH WORKING CAPITAL
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COMPANY NAME

BALANCE SHEET ANALYSIS - EARNINGS TEST

FOR THE THIRTEEN MONTHS ENDED  --/--/--

Additional Uses of Average Cash Working Capital

Month First
Prior Month Month

Second

Third

Month  Month

Fourth  Fifth Sixth

Seventh
Month

Month  Month

Eighth
Month Month  Month

Exhibit No.:
Witness:

Tenth

Schedule 18

Eleventh Twelfth  Thirteen

Month Month Month

to of of Test
Test Test Yr.
Yr. Yr.

Account Account Title

Number

Individual
Uses of Cash
Working

Capital
Individual

Uses of Cash

Working

Capital
Individual

Uses of Cash
Working

Capital
Individual

Uses of Cash

Working
Capital

Total Additional Uses of

Average Cash Working
Capital

Additional Sources of
Average Cash Working

Capital

Account Account Title

Number

Individual
Sources of

Cash Working

Capital
Individual

Sources of
Cash Workin

Capital
Individual

Sources of

Cash Working

Capital
Individual

Sources of
Cash Workin
Capital

of
Test
Yr.

of of of of Test

Test Test Test Yr. Test

of

Yr.

of of Test of Test
Test Yr. Yr.
Yr.

Average

Thirteen
Month

Average
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Total Additional Sources
of Average Cash Working

Capital
Net (Source)/Use of
Average Cash Working
Capital
COMPANY NAME
RATE OF RETURN STATEMENT - PER BOOKS
FOR THE TEST YEAR ENDED --/--/--
@ 2) 3) “)
Virginia
Cost of
Service
Line Total Non-Juris- Amount Retail
No. Company dictional (D-(2) Transmission
1 OPERATING REVENUES
2 BASE RATE REVENUES
3 FUEL REVENUES
4 LATE PAYMENT FEES
5 OTHER OPERATING REVENUES
6 TOTAL
OPERATING
REVENUES

7 OPERATING
REVENUE
DEDUCTIONS

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSE
DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION

8
9
10 FEDERAL INCOME TAXES
11 STATE INCOME TAXES
12
13

TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAXES
GAIN)Y/LOSS ON DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY

14 TOTAL OPERATING
REVENUE
DEDUCTIONS

Generation

Exhibit No.:
Witness:
Schedule 19

©) (@)
Virginia
Juris-
dictional
Gen. and
Distr.
Cost of
Service

Distribution (5YH(6)

Volume 24, Issue 12 Virginia Register of Regulations

February 18, 2008

1502



Regulations

15 OPERATING

INCOME
PLUS: AFUDC
LESS: CHARITABLE DONATIONS

INTEREST EXPENSE ON CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

OTHER INTEREST EXPENSE/(INCOME)

20  ADJUSTED

OPERATING
INCOME
21 PLUS: OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE
22 LESS: INTEREST EXPENSE
23 PREFERRED DIVIDENDS
24 JDC CAPITAL EXPENSE
25  INCOME
AVAILABLE FOR
COMMON EQUITY
26 ALLOWANCE
FOR WORKING
CAPITAL
27 PLUS: NET UTILITY PLANT
28 LESS OTHER RATE BASE DEDUCTIONS

29 TOTAL RATE BASE

30 TOTAL CAPITAL

31 COMMON EQUITY
CAPITAL

32 % RATE OF RETURN EARNED ON RATE BASE
% RATE OF RETURN EARNED ON COMMON EQUITY
% RATE OF RETURN EARNED ON COMMON EQUITY

®
EN W

Column (2) nonjurisdictional shall include generation, transmission and distribution amounts attributable to nonjurisdictional customers.

Retail transmission shall not be excluded in this column.
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COMPANY NAME
RATE OF RETURN STATEMENT Exhibit No.:
GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION PER BOOKS Witness:
FOR THE TEST YEAR ENDED --/--/-- Schedule 20
@ 2 Q) 4
Virginia Juris.
Cost of
Virginia Juris. Rate Service
Cost of Adjustment Rate Excluding
Service Clause Adjustment Rate
Including Rate Pursuant to Clause Adjustment
Line Adjustment §56-585.1 AS Pursuant to Clauses
No. Clauses b.cord §56-585.1 A6 1)-(2)-(3)
1 OPERATING REVENUES
2 BASE RATE REVENUES
3 FUEL REVENUES
4 LATE PAYMENT FEES
OTHER OPERATING
5 REVENUES
6 TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING REVENUE
7 DEDUCTIONS
OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
8 EXPENSE
DEPRECIATION &
9 AMORTIZATION
10 FEDERAL INCOME TAXES
11 STATE INCOME TAXES
TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME
12 TAXES
(GAIN)/LOSS ON DISPOSITION
13 OF PROPERTY
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
14 DEDUCTIONS
15 OPERATING INCOME
16 PLUS: AFUDC
17 LESS: CHARITABLE DONATIONS
18 INTEREST EXPENSE ON CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
19 OTHER INTEREST EXPENSE/(INCOME)
ADJUSTED OPERATING
20 INCOME
21 PLUS: OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE)
Volume 24, Issue 12 Virginia Register of Regulations February 18, 2008
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3

=818 IR

LESS: INTEREST EXPENSE
PREFERRED DIVIDENDS

JDC CAPITAL EXPENSE

INCOME AVAILABLE FOR
COMMON EQUITY

ALLOWANCE FOR
WORKING CAPITAL

PLUS: NET UTILITY
PLANT

LESS: OTHER RATE
BASE DEDUCTIONS

TOTAL RATE BASE
TOTAL CAPITAL

COMMON EQUITY CAPITAL

% RATE OF RETURN
EARNED ON RATE BASE

% RATE OF RETURN
EARNED ON COMMON

EQUITY

% EQUITY RETURN
AUTHORIZED

Column (1) amounts for utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia shall come from Schedule 19 Column (7),

COMPANY NAME

RATE OF RETURN STATEMENT

REFLECTING RATEMAKING ADJUSTMENTS

FOR THE TEST YEAR ENDED --/--/--

B @ 2) A 4
Virginia
Per Books Jurisdictional
Virginia Cost of Service
Juris. Regulatory after Quantification
Cost of Accounting Adjustments of Over/Under
LINE NO. Service Adjustments A+2) Earnings

1 OPERATING REVENUES
2 BASE RATE REVENUES
3 FUEL REVENUES
4 LATE PAYMENT FEES
5 OTHER OPERATING REVENUES
6 TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
7 OPERATING REVENUE DEDUCTIONS

Exhibit No.:
Witness:
Schedule 21

3

Cost of Service
after
Quantification
B)+4)
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OPERATION & MAINTENANCE EXPENSE

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

STATE INCOME TAXES

TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAXES

(GAIN)/LOSS ON DISPOSITION OF
PROPERTY

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
DEDUCTIONS

OPERATING INCOME
PLUS: AFUDC
LESS: CHARITABLE DONATIONS

INTEREST EXPENSE ON
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

OTHER INTEREST
EXPENSE/(INCOME)

ADJUSTED OPERATING INCOME

PLUS: OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE)

LESS: INTEREST EXPENSE
PREFERRED DIVIDENDS
JDC CAPITAL EXPENSE

INCOME AVAILABLE FOR
COMMON EQUITY

ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING
CAPITAL

PLUS: NET UTILITY PLANT

LESS: OTHER RATE BASE
DEDUCTIONS

TOTAL RATE BASE
TOTAL CAPITAL
COMMON EQUITY CAPITAL

% RATE OF RETURN EARNED ON
RATE BASE

% RATE OF RETURN EARNED ON
COMMON EQUITY

% EQUITY RETURN AUTHORIZED

Column (1) amounts for utilities subject to § 56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia shall come from Schedule 20 Column (4) and
shall exclude Rate Adjustment Clauses.

Column (1) amounts for utilities not subject to § 56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia shall come from Schedule 19 Column (3).
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COMPANY NAME
RATE BASE STATEMENT - PER BOOKS
AS OF --/--/--
@ 2) A 4 3 ©6)

Virginia

Cost of

Service Retail
LINE Total Non- Amount Transmission Generation Distribution
NO. Company Jurisdictional (1)-(2) Per Books Per Books Per Books

ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL

MATERIAL AND SUPPLIES
CASH WORKING CAPITAL (LEAD LAG STUDY)
DEFERRED FUEL/DEFERRED GAS NET OF FIT
OTHER WORKING CAPITAL
TOTAL ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL
NET UTILITY PLANT
UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
ACQUISITION ADJUSTMENT
CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS
PLANT HELD FOR FUTURE USE
LESS: ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION
AND AMORTIZATION
CUSTOMER ADVANCES FOR CONSTRUCTION
TOTAL NET UTILITY PLANT
RATE BASE DEDUCTIONS
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
SUPPLIER REFUNDS
ACCUMULATED DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
OTHER COST FREE CAPITAL
TOTAL RATE BASE DEDUCTIONS
TOTAL RATE BASE

REREEEEGEERREE o~ o v is w o - |

Exhibit No.:
Witness:
Schedule 22

[@A)]
Virginia
Jurisdictional
Gen. and
Distr. Cost of
Service

(5)+(6)

Column (2) nonjurisdictional shall include generation, transmission and distribution amounts attributable to nonjurisdictional

customers.

Retail transmission shall not be excluded in this column.

Volume 24, Issue 12 Virginia Register of Regulations

February 18, 2008

1507



Regulations

20VAC5-201-110. Schedules 23 through 45 and exhibits for Chapter 201.

The following schedules and exhibits are to be used in conjunction with this chapter.

LINE

COMPANY NAME
RATE BASE STATEMENT - GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION PER BOOKS AS OF --/--/--
(03] 2) (€)]
Virginia Juris. Cost of
Service Including Rate Adjustment Clause Rate Adjustment
Rate Adjustment Pursuant to §56-585.1 A Clause Pursuant to
Clauses S5b,cord §56-585.1 A 6

NO.

BREBRERERRIERIGSISIEIRB 0o v e v -

ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL
MATERIAL AND SUPPLIES

CASH WORKING CAPITAL (LEAD LAG STUDY)
DEFERRED FUEL/DEFERRED GAS NET OF FIT
OTHER WORKING CAPITAL

TOTAL ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL
NET UTILITY PLANT

UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE

ACQUISITION ADJUSTMENT

CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS

PLANT HELD FOR FUTURE USE

LESS: ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION

AND AMORTIZATION
CUSTOMER ADVANCES FOR CONSTRUCTION
TOTAL NET UTILITY PLANT
RATE BASE DEDUCTIONS
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
SUPPLIER REFUNDS
ACCUMULATED DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
OTHER COST FREE CAPITAL
TOTAL RATE BASE DEDUCTIONS
TOTAL RATE BASE

Exhibit No.:
Witness:
Schedule 23

(€))]

Virginia Juris. Cost
of Service Excluding
Rate Adjustment
Clauses (1)-(2)-(3)

Column (1) amounts for utilities subject to § 56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia shall come from Schedule 22 Column (7).
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COMPANY NAME Exhibit No.:
RATE BASE STATEMENT REFLECTING RATEMAKING ADJUSTMENTS AS OF --/-- Witness:
/- Schedule 24
@ Q)
Per Books Virginia (2) Regulatory Virginia Jurisdictional
LINE Juris. Cost of Accounting Cost of Service after
Service Adjustments Adjustments (1)+(2)

ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL
MATERIAL AND SUPPLIES
CASH WORKING CAPITAL (LEAD LAG STUDY)
DEFERRED FUEL/DEFERRED GAS NET OF FIT
OTHER WORKING CAPITAL
TOTAL ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL
NET UTILITY PLANT
UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
ACQUISITION ADJUSTMENT
CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS
PLANT HELD FOR FUTURE USE
LESS: ACCUMULATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION
AND AMORTIZATION
CUSTOMER ADVANCES FOR CONSTRUCTION
TOTAL NET UTILITY PLANT
RATE BASE DEDUCTIONS
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS
SUPPLIER REFUNDS
ACCUMULATED DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
OTHER COST FREE CAPITAL
TOTAL RATE BASE DEDUCTIONS
TOTAL RATE BASE

Column (1) amounts for utilities subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia hall come from Schedule 23 Column (4)
and shall exclude Rate Adjustment Clauses.

Column (1) amounts for utilities not subject to §56-585.1 of the Code of Virginia shall come from Schedule 22 Column
Q).

REEBRREEEEEEREIR © e o mewe -8
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COMPANY NAME Exhibit No.:
DETAIL OF RATEMAKING ADJUSTMENTS Witness:
REFLECTED IN COL. (--) OF SCHEDULES -- AND -- Schedule 25
ADJ.
NO. ADJUSTMENT AMOUNT
INCOME ADJUSTMENTS

OPERATING REVENUE ADJUSTMENTS

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS

INCOME TAX ADJUSTMENTS

TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME ADJUSTMENTS

GAIN ON PROPERTY DISPOSITION ADJUSTMENTS
CHARITABLE DONATION ADJUSTMENTS

OTHER INTEREST EXPENSE/(INCOME) ADJUSTMENTS
INTEREST EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS

PREFERRED DIVIDENDS ADJUSTMENTS

JDC CAPITAL EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS

ALLOWANCE FOR WORKING CAPITAL ADJUSTMENTS
ELECTRIC PLANT IN SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS

PLANT HELD FOR FUTURE USE ADJUSTMENTS
CONSTRUCTION WORK IN PROGRESS ADJUSTMENTS
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION ADJUSTMENTS
OTHER RATE BASE DEDUCTIONS ADJUSTMENTS

COMMON EQUITY CAPITAL
COMPANY NAME Exhibit No.:
LEAD/LAG CASH WORKING CAPITAL CALCULATION — ADJUSTED Witness:
FOR THE YEAR ENDED --/--/-- Schedule 27
SUPPORTING COLUMN -- OF SCHEDULE --
@ @ 3) ) (@] (©) (@) (8)
Virginia Ratemaking Amounts Average Expense Revenue Net Working
Juris. Per Adjustments  After Adj. Daily (Lead)/Lag Lag (Lead)/Lag Capital
Books Amount Days Days (Provided/
Amounts Required)
OPERATING EXPENSES

O&M Expenses:

Account # - Fuel Clause

Account # - Fuel Clause

Account # - Fuel Clause
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Account # - Deferred Fuel

Payroll Expense

Benefits and Pension Expense

OPEB Expense

Regulatory Asset Amortization Expense

Uncollectible Expense

Stores Issues

Stored Undistributed

Accrued Vacation Expense

Prepaid Insurance Amortization Expense

Worker's Compensation Expense

Directors' Deferred Compensation Exp.

Storm Damage Expense

Transition Cost Expense

Restructuring Expense

Contingent Liabilities

Other O&M Expenses

Depreciation Expense:

Depreciation Expense

Amortization Expense

Amortization Expense

Am